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Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements

The performance and the results of operations of Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as set out in this annual report
are historical in nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements and opinions (including
statements, figures, plans, images and other information) that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor any of its directors, employees or agents shall assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any
forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialise or turns out to be incorrect.
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In case of any inconsistency between the English text and the Chinese translation of this annual report, the English text shall prevail.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) was founded in 1965 and listed on
the Main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 1972. The Company
has been included as a constituent for the MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index in
May 2021 and as a constituent for the Hang Seng Composite Index in March 2022
respectively. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) primarily
engages in property development, property investment, project management
services and securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas.

With the change of controlling shareholder of the Company since July 2015, the
Group has been expanding its business in the property development sector in the
PRC. From mid 2015 and up to 2021, the Group completed 161 land acquisitions
through tenders, public listings for sale auctions and other merger and acquisitions
in support of the land reserves for property development business in Henan
Province, Beijing and Hubei Province. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
30 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 63 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 123 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
5.21 million square metres (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated GFA of approximately
10.72 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return, the land reserves will bring to the Group
an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.76
million sg.m. and estimated GFA under planning of approximately 3.96 million
sg.m. After the ambitious land acquisitions completed in recent years, the Group
built up strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business in
the PRC for the next three to four years with a strong presence in Henan Province.
In the foreseeable future, the Company will continue to identify new property
development projects and bid for land use rights of selective land parcels in the
PRC with focus on Henan Province, as well as other selective first and second tier
cities in the PRC.

In the United States (“USA” or “U.S.”), the Group holds approximately 5.7% equity
interest over the NYSE-listed real estate investment trust (“REIT”), Global Medical
REIT, Inc. (“GMR”) as of 31 December 2021, and continues to share GMR’s
growth through receipt of dividend income, thereby achieving long-term capital
appreciation of the Group’s investment.

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas with an aim to create new sustainable revenue streams and enhance
its shareholder value.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zensun Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Company”, and its subsidiaries, collectively, the
“Group”), am pleased to present you the consolidated
annual results and business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

BHMBFNMRR :
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Everything starts afresh as time goes by. Looking back on the past 2021, the
COVID-19 pandemic has continued to rage around the world, threatening the
global economic and social development and making substantially all businesses
experience a “great change unseen in a century”. In China, due to various
difficulties and challenges caused by the macro-control policies, the economic
development situation and other unfavourable factors including the COVID-19
pandemic and the flood, the development of the real estate industry is challenging,
there is an increasing operating pressure and therefore a reshuffle within the real
estate industry. Despite such a severe environment, all the employees of the
Group worked together closely and made various efforts to fight back against
the adversity in a flexible manner. With their strong determination and unremitting
efforts, the Group achieved relatively good development results and realised stable
operation against the adversity.
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ARETE BUSTHHEEENZERKE  RERZH

BH TR -



For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue and
gross profit amounted to approximately RMB13,421.5 million and approximately
RMB1,262.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 66.3% and
a decrease approximately 27.7% respectively compared with that of the
corresponding period of 2020, which were primarily derived from the property
development business in the PRC. The decrease in gross profit was resulted from
the recognition of certain lower profit margin property projects during the Year,
which included (i) property projects which are designated as policy-related housing
of which the selling prices are strictly controlled by the government; (ii) property
projects which had a higher unexpected construction cost due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic which prolonged development progress and resulted
in a lower profit margin at the time of recognition upon delivery during the Year;
and (jii) property projects with suppressed selling prices under the impact of the
general downturn in the property market as affected by national regulatory control
measures and policies restricting the purchase of properties and the COVID-19
pandemic.

The Group’s development in 2021 can be summed up as “highly effective”. Firstly,
over the past year, the Group carried out the “focus on details” (f&z=fB4H + 4030
#M&D) special campaign in an all-round way by adhering to the refined construction
and carefully implementing detail-focused management, enabling its various
projects from Shangjing series and Pinzhijia series, and premium commercial and
office projects as well, to be highly recognised by the market and customers for
outstanding quality. Secondly, the Group implemented organisation restructuring
and personnel allocation, and optimised assessment systems, which further
improved the cohesion and effectiveness of employees. Third, the Group reduced
costs in a detail-focused manner, from design, construction, operation, recruitment
and marketing to administrative management, which further optimized costs and
improved operation efficiency. Fourth, the Group made reasonable arrangement in
relation to the use of funds and the decrease of debt, which effectively reduced the
risk of funds and further improved the security and stability of corporate operation.
Fifth, the Group actively implemented the asset-light operation strategy and
invested more resources to further expand the property management business.
The Group entered into agreements in relation to 12 new management projects
during this year, with a contracted area of 2.06 million sg.m., accelerating the
expansion of the asset-light business.
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On offshore financing, the Group continues to focus on investor relations and
maintains good communication with investors to gradually expand offshore
financing channels. In September 2021, the Group completed the issue of US$200
million senior notes with a term of 2 years and US$160 million senior notes with a
term of 2 years and 7 months respectively, representing a remarkable performance
in 2021 when the real estate industry is generally deemed to have a dim future.

In 2021, the Company’s efforts and performance continued to be recognised
by the capital market. The inclusion of the shares of the Company (“Shares”) in
the MSCI Hong Kong Small Cap Index in May 2021 is expected to improve the
reputation of the Company and increase the liquidity of the Shares in the market,
thereby realising the investment value of the Company. In addition, the Group
completed share consolidation in August 2021, which makes investing in the
Shares more attractive to a broader range of investors and enhances the liquidity
of the Shares of the Company.

In 2021, affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the macro-control policies
implemented by the PRC Government for the real estate market, the Group
acquires land in a more prudent manner. In strict compliance with the project
selection mechanism, investment criteria and approval process in place, the Group
finally won the bid of 15 land parcels, with a total consideration of approximately
RMB3,132.2 million. These newly acquired land parcels are mainly located in
Zhengzhou City and regions in cities and towns in Henan Province where the
population density is high and people have greater demands for acquisition of
housing. Leveraging on the Group’s extensive experience of project development
in Henan Province, we believe that the Group will make satisfactory achievements.

ERIIBENTE  AEEDEESREEBRERE
BITE BREAFRERBE  ZLBAFIE
BEB - YRR 2021F9A DRI T HIR AR FH
2EELEBEZBERARAMFT LEAMI6(EET
BARBNET - EE2021FEMEITE L BTN
REFOERTRIEFHSH -

R2021F  KRRINME W MEREBEESERATEN
RA] e RRAIRE([ARRMRE])R202145 B
MAMSCIE B NRRRIEE - R E RN RARQF]
MMBERENAAFRZEEEN R  HMER
RABIIREEE - 1IN - REBR2021F8 A1) TTK
THRHEEH R TREEHARFTREZIRERS
N BARTARBZ WERER RIGE T AQAIKE

TENE o

2021%F » ZEIFEMAZERTFRABUTREHETT
BRBRATHENEE  ASERDTEARENE
MWAERE » SRR HI T IEE R EG - REIEEM
FERRERGBISE LM tHHEBESHEFOARE
3,132.2B & T  MERUB I F B &R R BT &oa /@
BEEARNAOLEBRZE ARsBETROMHET -
BEASBECIEHARREENERMARLER - HE
AEE-—TEEEILRENES -



Looking forward, based on the overall situation of the real estate industry and in
order to improve its risk prevention capability, the Group will focus on Zhengzhou in
Henan Province with a view to ensure the continuity of the Company’s operations
and upon in-depth research and careful planning, and continue to expand its land
reserve by selecting projects with fast development and high gross profit margin
to ensure that the Company will continue as a going concern and develop in a
sustainable manner.

An outstanding enterprise must perform its social responsibility and make solid
contribution to society. Facing the severe flood control and disaster relief situation
as a result of the heavy rain on 20 July 2021 in Henan and the impact of recurring
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group donated money and resources to fight the flood
and the disaster, organised all employees to go to the frontline of anti-flood and
pandemic prevention, worked with the property owners to fight against the flood
and the pandemic, and protected the interests of property owners with practical
actions.

Overseas

In the U.S., the Group now holds equity interests in two REITs, namely GMR (listed
on NYSE) and American Housing REIT, Inc. (*“AHR”). GMR has been focusing on
acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose-built, licenced and specialised medical
facilities in the U.S., and currently owns 167 medical and healthcare facilities, with
approximately 4.3 million net leasable square feet. The Group expects that GMR
will continue to grow rapidly with its robust property portfolio in the future years. As
of 31 December 2021, the Group has approximately 5.7% equity interest in GMR,
and receives quarterly dividends paid by GMR.
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AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. Now, AHR owns two senior housing
communities, namely Oxford Derby in Kansas and Oxford Mckinney in Texas.
We will closely monitor the local COVID-19 situation and market environment in
the USA, and adjust business strategy and development direction as and when
appropriate. In addition, the Group owns 28 SOHO portfolios of commercial and
residential units and five quality residential property portfolios in Singapore for the
purpose of rental and capital appreciation. We will regularly review the Singapore
property market to explore any business opportunities in the foreseeable future.

Appreciation

Looking back, the Group lived up to the original aspiration and overcame the
difficulties. The sustainable and steady development of the Group depends on
the hard work and cooperation of all employees, as well as the care, support and
assistance of all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”), partners and
customers. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
our wholehearted gratitude and sincere respect to all Shareholders, partners,
customers and employees of the Company.

Looking forward, the road ahead is long; striving is the only way forward. In 2022,
the Group will continue to fulfil its corporate social responsibility, and achieve better
results with innovative and clear thinking and strong determination, so as to create
greater value for Shareholders and customers, and contribute to the country and
society. Finally, | sincerely wish everyone good health, all the best and a happy
family.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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HONG KONG AND OVERSEAS PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

BRKEIIMIFERAS

The Group owns a diverse range of residential, commercial properties and senior
housing communities located in Singapore, Hong Kong and the U.S..

(1) (2]

1. Dakota Residences 2&83. Southbank Soho

SINGAPORE PROPERTIES

The Group’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in locations near Mass
Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s railway system, ensuring convenience
and connectivity. The Group owns a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which
features high-ceilings and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both
residential and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. The Group
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences adjacent to the
Dakota MRT station.

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

The Group owns two floors and two car-parking spaces in Wyndham Place, a
prime commercial office building located in the Central district of Hong Kong — the
central business district of the region. The Group currently uses one floor as its
headquarters and treats the remaining portion as investment properties for earning
rental income and/or capital appreciation.

N E/E S

AEERERBEFLEAMEREETEMEEN - ZEFTR/ERTRIENR
DA - (UREEF LS - REBERBER —EEREE - EHaD HERK
By ARBIE S WA R REREE -

(1) (2]

1&2. Glen Carr House, senior housing community
3&4. Oxford Grand McKinney, senior housing community
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U.S. PROPERTIES

The Group owns two senior housing communities
(one in Texas and one in Kansas) with total area of
approximately 98,700 sq.ft. which were held through
its U.S. subsidiary, AHR. The Group also owns freehold
land parcels with approximately 273,200 sg.m. in
California and two apartment residential units situated
on Wall Street in New York.
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Zhengzhou Zensun Longshuishangjing 6 Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan 11 Xinyang Zensun Golden Mile House
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Zhengzhou Zensun Longhushangjing 7 Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion 12 Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological City
EP)N IE R BRI £ 35 REERERERN B0 1F 75 A BB

Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley 8 Beijing Zensun Xinghai Court 13 Zhengzhou Zensun Yating Mansion
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Zhengzhou Zensun River Home 9 Zhengzhou Zensun Fenghuashangjing 14 Zhengzhou Zensun Xin Harbour Home
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Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage Mansion 10 Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House 15 Zhengzhou Zensun West Lakeside
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EREXERAF

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC

EREYERRE 2EERE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 30 completed property projects and/
or sub-phases and 63 on-going complex property projects on hand with 123 land
parcels under development and planning constituting the Group’s land reserves
with an aggregate site area of approximately 5.21 million sq.m. and aggregate
estimated GFA of approximately 10.72 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return, the
land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under
development of approximately 6.76 million sg.m. and estimated GFA under

planning of approximately 3.96 million sg.m.

Project

Number Property Project

EER

VELE]

Location

BERMY

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS
ERREPELESE

1

Zhengzhou Zensun
Jingkai Plaza
BNEAERRS

Zhengzhou Zensun
Xinghan Garden
IHIARELR

Zhengzhou Zensun
Scholar Garden

DTEEEE

Zensun Zensun
Longhushangjing
SNEFRN LR

Zhengzhou Zensun
River Valley Phase |
(Green-view Garden No. 1)
INEETEH-5
(ER-¥R)

Zhengzhou Zensun
River Valley Phase I
L -

Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
Phase | (Courtyard No. 1)

INEAER 5
(2E-k)

North of Jingnan 2nd Road and east of
Jingkai 9th Avenue, Zhengzhou City
INTEEZRI - BRENAEIR

East of the intersection of Dahe Road
and Guxu Road, Zhengzhou City
INTATAREERRNANR

The intersection of east to Senglin East Road
and north to Ruifeng Road, Zhengzhou City
DT EARAR B TER

North of Chaoyang Road and east of Zhongyi
Road, Zhengzhou City
DTGB - RERNR

North of Lvda Road and west of Yuxiu Road,
and south of Chunxi Road, and west of
Jinzun Road, Zhengzhou City

NTRERIY - BARNERERH
W SERIA

North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road,
and Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi Road,
and east of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City

ENTRERIL - LRRNE - 285
HRRERKNE  §AENUE

South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road,
and east of Xinxi Street Znengzhou City
SHmRANE  RERIRRIEGHE

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiAIRE

4ih quarter of 2017
NTEZMER

Ath quarter of 2017
NITEEREE

Ath quarter of 2019
NI9FENEE

4ih quarter of 2019
PREEE

Ath quarter of 2019
W9EEMER

Ath quarter of 2020 to
2nd quarter of 2021

ANEERFEE
WIEEFR

Ath quarter of 2019
WEEMER

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

LEd]
REEHH
i

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

NARBIH AR EmIEHS.96 BB FITK »

Estimated

saleable/

Completed leasable

saleable/  GFAunder

Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development

area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sqm)

Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately

BRITE/ HRWAE/

BiEwER  ZNESER  HERYER  HERYER

(T5%) (T5R) (T5R) (Thk

B# 4 # 4 #

Commercial 47,736 211,748 211,748 -
[

Residential 34439 66,103 66,103 -
iz

Commercial 25,357 100,662 100,662 -
[

Residential 62,286 93,399 93,399 -
iz

Residential 182,111 176,845 176,845 -
iz

Residential 186,648 191,971 191,971 -
=2

Residential 178,559 289,951 289,951 -
iz

R2021F 12 A31H » AEBRH RHEEIEEEKZ
WEER N, HIBE D H KE3ERITERE NI LR
AYEIBEE (K123MRR) - BEAEEEBRNAEEZ -
WEEE @ENERNABS21IEB KRGt
LEMBELHAR10.72BEF K - LivEEARNERIEH
BREPGHAIHE HMEEEEENC 768 EF K

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sa.m.)
Approximately
EEL]

i EEmE
(T5R)

f



Project
Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)

EHERZANFEE ()

8 Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
Phase Il (Courtyard No. 2)

NERZTF -
(ZE-%R)

9 Zhengzhou Zensun
Prospertty Court
YN EEREER

10 Zhengzhou Zensun
Voyage Mansion

NIRENSE

1 Dengfeng Zensun City + Yu

Garden
BHTEN + #E

12 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ Xiang

Garden
BHIERY +ER

13 Dengfeng Zensun City ¢ He

Garden

BRI HE

1 Dengfeng Zensun City # Xi

Garden
BHIEEY +ER

15 Dengfeng Zensun Cty # Tai

Garden
EHEEN 2R

16 Xuchang Zensun
Scholar Mansion
FELEERER

17 Zhengzhou Zensun
Longshuishangjing
FEERK LR

*

South of Xinyun Road, east of Yule Road,

east of Xinxi Street and west of

Tianshan Road, Zhengzhou City
DNTEERIR  RERIR  HEE

WRBRIBANE

South of Shisu Road and east of

Fengshuo South Road, Zhengzhou City

DNDRERIE  SERRIR

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of
Hanghai East Road, Zhengzhou City
SNTERETCABNE  FaREML

Southwest District of Intersection of Taihe Road
and Zhengtong Road, Dengfeng City
BHTAMREN AR EREY,

Northeast comer of Intersection of Hanque Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BUTERRERDELNARLA

Northeast comer of Intersection of Yinghe Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BATEARERTRRNAFILA

Northeast corner of Intersection of Denggao
Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BT EBARARRRRNARLA

Northwest corner of Intersection of Denggao
Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BUMERLRRRARINOELA

North of Nongda Road, south of Gui Hua Nong
Xuan Road and west of Gui Hua Han Lin Road,

Jianan District, Xuchang City

HETRRERARIL  RERSHIE

RERMANE

South of North 3rd Ring Road and east of

Longhu Neihuan East Road,

Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou City
SHPERIEL=RBUE - EINRRENE

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

3rd quarter of 2021
NNFEZFE

2nd quarter of 2020
NNEEZER

Ath quarter of 2020 to
4th quarter of 2022

ANEERZEE
NREERER

3rd quarter of 2020
NNFE=FE

3rdl quarter of 2020
NNFE=ZR

3rd quarter of 2020
NNFEZZR

3rdl quarter of 2021
WNFE=FE

3rdl quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

4th quarter of 2020 to
4ih quarter of 2022

NNFEMERE
NNFENER

3rdl quarter of 2020
NNFE=FE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total site
area (sq.m)
Type Approximately

BiEbER

(¥5%)

R f

Residential 188,643
iz

Residential 8,051
=2

Commercial 55,631
[

Residential 46,899
iz

Residential & 21210
commercial

ERYS

Residential & 50436
commercial

&%

Residential & 15,992
commercial

[ #%

Residential & 32,986
commercial

iz 5%

Residential 115,449
iz

Residential 58,338
fiz

Annual Report 2021

Completed
saleable/

Aggregated leasable
GFA (sq.m.)
Approximately  Approximately

GFA (sq.m.)

BRITE/

ZitREER HEREER
(B5K) (BN

# #

210275 20275
2,476 2,476
19385t 132,129
78137 78197

59,967 59,087

127818 121818

37,635 3763

81,307 81,307

305,318 295,889

96,549 96,549

TR -FFR

Estimated

saleable/
leasable Estimated
GFAunder ~ GFAunder
development planning
(sq.m) (sqm.)

Approximately  Approximately

LT
ERREER (R
(5K (FR

m m

61,722" -

9,429 -

represented the estimated saleable/leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.
AEBYEEE HEERTOHNEAE THERERE -

15
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Zensun Enterprises Limited 1[FRIEXEEAT

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY IN THE PRC
EREYERRE 2EERE

Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately
BAITE/ BRWTE/
A58 BEWER ZRESER HEREEN HEEYER
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (TFR)
BRS  MEER AR Bl /BiAIRE BE R 4 f L] 8
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
ZitBRzANFEAE ()
18 Xinxiang Zensun Smart North of Health Avenue and west of Central 4th quarter of 2020 100%  Residentiel & 40279 45,126 45,126 -
City » Rong Garden Avenue, Qliying Town, Central District, NNFERER commercial
FHTAEEE R Xinxiang County iz #%
FRECEERMAARNE  RERRAENL
19 Xinxiang Zensun Smart Intersection of Central Avenue and 4th quarter of 2021 100%  Residential & 58,642 96,465 96,465 -
Clty » Xiang Garden Financial Road, Qliying Town, WHFEREE commercial
FAEAEEN R Central District, Xinxiang County REET
HAGLBRER A ABEERERND
20 Luoyang Zensun City East of West Ring Road and north of Tank Road, ~ 4th quarter of 2017 100%  Residential & 52,128 185,261 185,261 -
North Garden Phase 1 Jianyi District, Luoyang Cty NITEERZR commercial
BELENIA-B BETRER SRR BRERRRE % #%
2 Zhengzhou Zensun West of Zhengxin Highway and both east 1st quarter of 2019 100%  Residential 147,988 262,672 252,672 -
Princess Lake Phase | and south of Princess Lake Xincun Town, M9FE-2E fiz
SNEERER-H Zhengzhou City
SRR RERERRES R AT
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess North of Xincun North Road and west of 4th quarter of 2020 100%  Residential 40819 81,551 81,951 -
Lake Phase Il (Huanhuxiar) Huarui Road, Xincun Town, Zhengzhou Clty 2005 15 iz
INEBRTH=E SHmIR R LB ERRER
(RHER)
23 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingnan  2nd quarter of 2020 100%  Residentiel & 31462 119,251 119,251 -
Riveniew Garden 9t Road, Jingkal District, Zhengzhou Clty 2020553 commercial
INEEELE INTEREERARANER tEAERE fiz &%
% Beiing Zensun Grand Garden Huaifang Vilage & Xingong Village, 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 53,214 89,017 89,017 -
IREAER Nanyuan County, Fengtai District, Bejing MIFEZZR =
AT REERAREHRIEN
2 Befing Zensun Yazhu Garden 5th Avenue District, Shunyi Newtown, 2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Residential 4,170 59,397 50,397 -
IREFERER Renhe Town, Shunyi District, Befing NWANEEZZR £z
IRTEERCAZREIIELSR
2% Znengzhou Zensun Voyage South of Heshou Outer Ring Road and west of  2nd quarter of 2021 100%  Commercial 11216 38,029 38,029 -
International Plaza (Phase | Shuanghe Lake 2nd Sireet, and east of Heshou 202155 =% [
N EBTmERES Quter Ring Road and north of Wanhui Road,

Zhengzhou City
SHmEENRRNE  EBH_ENE

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately
£l
HHREER
(¥AR)

H]



Project

Number Property Project

LR

VELL]

Location

Rk

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS (Continued)
EHERZANFEE ()

27

28

2

30

Zhengzhou Zensun
Orchids Mansion
(Valley-view Garen)

DNIARRER(RZER)

Xuchang Zensun Golden
Mile House
FELHDELR

Xinxiang Zensun Golden
Mie House (Phase Il)
G e |

Zhengzhou Zensun
International Building

NTBEEAR

West of Guihua 3rd Road and north of

reserve land of Government,

Longhu Town, Xinzheng City
FETEEREE=RIE  RERRDIL

East of Laodong North Road and south of
Gui Hua Zhou Zhuang Strest, Jianan District,
Xuchang City
SETRERAHLANE - REALENE

West of Xinzhong Avenue, southeast comer
of intersection of Hongyuan Strest
and Guihua Road, Xinxiang City
MATIERENE  BREE
REAROFRA

South of Qiine South Road and the west of
Jiayuan Road Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou City

NTERARLRTERIE  FERANE

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING
35/ B2 0%ER

1

Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley
(Green-view
Commercial Centre)
SNEBTRH-
BEEkHL

Zhengzhou Zensun Boyue
Commercial Centre

IERREED

Znengzhou Zensun River
Home Lane
IiEEZA2

Znengzhou Zensun River
Home Horizon
UNEEFTER

represented the estimated saleable/leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.

North of Lvda Road, and east of
Wenyun Road, Zhengzhou City
ENTRERIL - XERNE

South of Xincheng Road, and east of
Nanbei Avenue, Znengzhou City
SRR BAAEE

South of Xinyun Road and east of
Fengshuo South Strest, Zhengzhou City
INTEERIE SRR

West of Xinxi Street, and south of
Kaiyuan Road, Zhengzhou City
NTRTRE  FELE

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

Ath quarter of 2021 to
Ath quarter of 2022

WNFENEEE
NNEEMER

3rd quarter of 2021
NNFEZER

4th quarter of 2021
NNEERER

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEEZER

Ath quarter of 2022

NNEERER

4th quarter of 2023
N03EENER

2nd quarter of 2025
NBEE_ER

REBYMEREMEERT S PINEAIE TAERAEE -

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fiig

Residential
=2

Residential
fiz

Residential &
commercial

ERY S

Commercial

[

Commercial

Bx

Commercial

Bx

Commercial

[

Residential
iz

Total site
area (sq.m)
Approximately

BERER
(¥5%)
f

43470

60,948

10,701

13442

28,062

31,005

14647

33,446

Annual Report 2021

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
m

130,135

144381

121,708

107,388

84,217

108,019

32,023

100,338

BRITE/
fERgER
(F5%)

#

130,185

37,358

121,708

107,388

TR -FFR

Estimated
saleable/
leasable Estimated
GFAunder ~ GFAunder
development planning
(sqm) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately
$ERIE/ EHE
HEREER (HEZER
(F5K) (¥5%)
f f
107,023° -
84017 -
108,519 -
- 32,223
- 100,338

17
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Dengfeng Zensun City  Rui
Garden

BHIER RE

Dengfeng Zensun
City » Jing Garden
BHERGBE

Dengfeng Zensun
City » Ya Garden
BHERN R

Dengfeng Zensun
City * Xin Garden
BYEE B

Zhengzhou Zensun Vioyage
International Plaza (Phase Il

DNTERRERE S

Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mie
House (Phase |)
TATELHER -4

Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
Garden (Phase | &

INEEERER
(~8R=%)

Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view Court)

DN fesdiilined

EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY-IN
EFENEER 2EERE

Location

RRM

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (H)

Southeast comer of the Intersection of
Shaolin Avenue and Fuyou Road,
Dengfeng City

BT BEERRRN R A

Southeast comer of the Intersection of Dizhong
Road and Zhongyi Road, Dengfeng City
BATHPRESERINORAA

Southwest comer of the Intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City
MR ERERRR N OERA

Northwest corner of the Intersection of Yudai
Road and Dizhong Road, Dengfeng City
BT ERREAAR AR A

East of Heshou Quter Ring Road and north of
Wanhu Road, Zhengzhou City
SNTERRBIL - BENFRNR

South of Kelong Avenue and east of Xiner Stregt,
Xinxiang City
FETMEAENE  HoENE

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, south of Jingbei
4th Road, and north of Jingbei 1st Road,
Zhengzhou City

NTERETLARIE  EARRIER
BB

South of Guhua 1st Road, west of Qiushi Road,
north of Guihua 2nd Road and west of
reserve land of Government, Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City

Gl R e
WE - RERANEREE B

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH

Total site
area (sq.m,

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

KR/ RiMIRE Bt

4th quarter of 2022 100%
NREEMER
4th quarter of 2023 100%
NBFEMER
4ih quarter of 2024 100%
NAEERER
2nd quarter of 2025 100%

NBEE-ZR

2nd quarter of 2022 100%
NFE-FE

2nd quarter of 2023 100%
NBFE-FE

2nd quarter of 2022 to 100%
4th quarter of 2022
NEE-FRE
NREERER

3rd quarter of 2023 to 100%
3rd quarter of 2024
NWBEE=FEE
NAEE=FR

BiEbER
(¥5%)
R f
Residential 95,405
=2
Residential 40773
fiz
Residential 12,185
iz
Residential 43728
=2
Commercial 10,701
[
Residential & 45,591
commercial
fiz H%
Residential & 86,623
commercial
REH
Residential 93497
iz

siraEs
(£5%)
f

127,110

73,090

21983

69,065

40313

169,569

280490

BRITE/
fERgER
(5%)

f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable Estimated
GFAunder ~ GFAunder
development planning
(sqm) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately
$ERIE/ EHE
HEREER (HEZER
(F5K) (FAK
f f
127,110 -
73,090 -
21,933 -
- 69,965
40313 -
159,569 -
310,119 -
183,759 96,731



Project

Number Property Project

LR

VELL]

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (H)

10

Zhengzhou Zensun Lehuo City
S

Xuchang Zensun
Orchids Mansion
FELENERR

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya
Court (Phase | & )

N EEREER
(-85

Zhengzhou Zensun
Zhenruishangjing
INEBRR LS

Wuhan Zensun
Scholar Mansion

RELHEALR

Zhengzhou Zensun
Yating Mansion

DNTARESR

Zhengzhou Zensun
Fenghuashangjing
YNERLE R

Zheoling Village and Caodian Village,
Mine Town, Gongyi City
EETATERENRERR

South of Guihua Zhuyuan Street and east
of Guihua Yongxian Road, Jianan District,
Xuchang City

HETREERANAGNIE  RYAERNR

Northwest corer of Intersection of Tashan Road
and National Highway 310, southwest of the
intersection of Luyin West Road and
Tashan Road Xingyang City

KETALRESEET N NEL AR
BERREARRNORERE

East of Longteng 2nd Street, south of

Ruyi River West 2nd Stregt, Zhengdong

New District, Zhengzhou City
DNMEIRMERR_ENR  MEAELINE

West of the intersection of Chenggong
Avenue and Maoxing Road, Caidian Street,
Caidian District, Wuhan City
BETEBRLGERYABAR AR RERNE

South of Qiaohang Road (Xiangrui Road),
east of Linghan Street (Zhenggang 7th Strest),
Airport Harbour Zone, Znengzhou City
SHTREARRA R NS  RRE
(FEHNR

South of Longhu Neihuan East Road,

east of Chunlei Stregt,

Znengdong New District, Znengzhou City
NTERHREARERRNG  FEENR

Interest

attributable

Actual/Estimated to the
Completion Time Group

558
RERRH
KR/ RiMIRE Bt

Tst quarter of 2023 to 100%
Ath quarter of 2024
NBFE-ERE
NUEEMER

2nd quarter of 2023 100%
NBEEER

2nd quarter of 2022 to 100%
4th quarter of 2023
N2EE-FRE
NBFENEFE

2nd quarter of 2022 100%
N2EE-FR

2nd quarter of 2022 100%
NNFEZER

4th quarter of 2022 100%
NFENEE

4th quarter of 2022 100%
NFENEE

Total site
area (sq.m)
Type Approximately

BiEbER
(¥5%)
R f
Residential, 987,701
commercial,
catering &
public utiity
fit @%-
400t
Rt
Residential 62,832
iz
Residential 76,304
iz
Residential 68819
iz
Residential 46,388
fiz
Residential 54298
=2
Residential 45,505
=2

Annual Report 2021

Completed

saleable/

Aggregated leasable

GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,)

Approximately  Approximately
BRITE/

ZiRENE HEREER
(T5R) (¥AR)

# f

1,142,364 -

173,708 -

201,641 -

106,882 -

164,108 -

146,603 -

18 -

TR -FFR

Estimated

saleable/
leasable Estimated
GFAunder ~ GFAunder
development planning
(sqm) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately
$ERIE/ EHE
HEREER (HEZER
(F5K) (¥5%)
f f
147,413 994,951
173,708 -
221,641 -
106,882 -
164,108 -
146,603 -
7,18 -

19



20 Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY-IN THE

EFENEER 2EERE

Project
Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

35/ U 2R (H)

17 Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
FHEERERN

18 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline
Lake Court (Phase | & 1)
INEBER LR
(~8R=%)

19 Zhengzhou Zensun West
Lakeside Scholar Mansion

INEBABER

20 Zhengzhou Zensun
Zhengshang
Commercial Centre

MBS LERTL

2 Zhengzhou Zensun Ecological
City (No.1 to 7 Garden)
SN EBEEA(-FRE
k)

2 Zhengzhou Zensun Xin Harbour

Home
INEERER

2 Bejing Zensun Xinghai Court
IREERER

Actual/Estimated
Location Completion Time
AR Bl /BiAIRE
South of Health Avenue and west of Central Ath quarter of 2023 to
Avenue, and intersection of Central Avenue Ath quarter of 2024
and Financial Road, Qlliing Town, NNVFEMEFEE
Central District, Xinxiang County NUEERER
TRELEERMAARNE  REAENER
RRREEERARNN
South of Baiyun Road, and east of Runan Road,  4th quarter of 2022 to
and west of Dengfeng Road, Shangjie District, ~ 4th quarter of 2024
Zhengzhou Oty NNFEMEEE
SHmHERAZHNE  RERIR NAEETER
REHBNE
South of Hongmei Street and west of Chuanyang  3rd quarter of 2022

Road, Gaoxin District, Znengzhou Cty NNFE=FE

DNDRARISENE  JIBRAE

East of Tonghang Fifth Road and north of Anyang ~ 1st quarter of 2023 to

Road Shangjie District, Zhengzhou City 4th quarter of 2024
SHNTLEERRRRNE - ZBEML NBFE-EEZ
NUEFTER

South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road, east  4th quarter of 2022 to

of Jingzhuang Road and west of Weihe 2ndl quarter of 2024
Eest Road, and north of Yullu Road, westof 2025 5REEZ

Xangjang Road, and south of Yunyang Road 2044 5-%F
and west of Pangzhuang Road, Guancheng
District, Zhengzhou City
INTERERRRIE  WRENE
HHBNR  RARBRERRARME
EIMNERZERE  EHRE

South of Yinghua Road and east of Century 4th quarter of 2022 to
Avenue, north of Lianhua Road and west of 4th quarter of 2024
Shenzhou Road, Xuedian Town, Xinzheng Clty 202255 EZ

FOTEREtEAERY B BEH NUFENER
RERRLH - BHBEE

East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Street, ~ 4th quarter of 2023
south of Yinghong Road and north of Yingzhi 2023 £

Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Bejing
IFARBREEREREY BERAY
BERTH AERER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH

Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fiig

Residential &
commercial

[ A%

Residential &
commercial

&%

Residential
=2

Commercial

[

Residential
iz

Residential

i

Residential
iz

"
PRC
Estimated
saleable/

Completed leasable Estimated
saleable/ ~ GFAunder  GFAunder
Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development planning
area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m,) (sqm)
Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
BAITE/ BRWTE/ £l
BEwER RREZER HERYEM  HEREER  AHESER
(¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (TFR) (¥AR)
4 f L] 8 H]
202,905 367,193 - 8,741 358,412
97,99 195,872 - 139,240 56,632
51,39 132,121 - 132,121 -
93,643 234,108 - 53,881 180,227
228239 580,984 - 423330 166,654
84,186 212,466 - 212,465 -
47892 103,979 - 103,979 -



Project

Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (H)

24

2%

2%

2

28

29

30

Xinmi Zensun
City » Xiang Garden
HALEN ER

Wehui Zensun Golden
Mie Court
ERIASHER

Xinxiang Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Phase | & )

HATEREER
(~ER8)

Hualbin Zensun Scholar
Mansion (Phase | & )

EETEERER
(-85

Dengfeng Zensun
Yinghe Mansion
BHEEETER

Dengfeng Zensun
Yingbin House
Phase | » Qiyue House
EHIELZER
~HBHER

Dengfeng Zensun
Yingbin House
Phase Il Yingoin House
EHIELZER
“B0ER

South of Qingping Street, west of Fuxi Road,
north of West Strest and east of
Chengyun Road, Xinmi City

HETERAGEE  SRREY
ERGY)  AERR

Northeast comer of the intersection of Bigan
Avenue and Zhenxing Road, Weihui City
g TREERARRNOFIA

North of Fuyu Road, west of Zhengtong Street
and south of Xinyan Road, Gudingzhai Town,
Xinxiang County

TAGLEEEIERIE  HBLE
RERBIL

West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of
Chaoyang Street, and south of
Qingnian Stregt, Hualbin Count, Xinyang Cty
[ERTEERREREEN  GRELH
FEEEEN

South of Yinghe Road, north of
South 2nd Ring Road, Dengfeng City
BUTETRNE  BRCBN

Northeast comer of the intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City
B AERERRRN ORI A

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yudai Road, and southeast comer at
the intersection of Taihe Road and Yudai Road,
Dengfeng City

BHTAMBERRRANNREA
IERETRROERA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEE_ER

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEE_ER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
2nd quarter of 2024

NNEZ-ZEE
NUFEZER

3rd quarter of 2023

NBFEZER

4th quarter of 2023

NVEEMER

1st quarter of 2024

NUEE-ZR

1st quarter of 2024
NAEE-EFE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

90%

90%

90%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fiig

Residential
=2

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential &
commercial

ERNS

Residential &
commercial

ERY S

Residential &
commercial

ERY S

Residential &
commercial

kz &%

Residential
iz

Total site
area (sq.m)
Approximately

BERER
(¥5%)
f

79,029

43,964

85,063

96,044

30,721

41,543

98972
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Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
m

132,601

109,911

170,106

213276

76819

78932

188,047

BRITE/
fERgER
(F5%)

#

Estimated
saleable/
leasable
GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
YRaTE/
HEREER
(F5K)

f

132,661

109,911

119379

116280

76819

78982

— R

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately
£l
HREER
(¥AR)

f

50,727

94,99

188,047
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY-IN-THE PRC
EFENEER 2EERE

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable Estimated
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder  GFAunder
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m,) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
BAITE/ BRWTE/ £l
A58 BEwER RREZER HERYEM  HEREER  AHESER
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (TFR) (¥AR)
AR WRER BRI BB/ BHRIRE B B2 4 f L] 8 f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR /BHR22ER(R)
31 Dengfeng Zensun Songyue Southwest area at the intersection of Znongyi 4t quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 146,813 220220 - 52,422 167,798
Horizons (No. 110 3 Garden] ~ Road and Yingia Road, Yudai Road and NBFENEE =2
BHIARRER Yingxia Road, and northeast area at the
(-5hz=%k) intersection of Taishi Road and Cuixiu Road,
Dengfeng City
BimREREIERRNNAERY
IRRAYBRINNAREY  ATHE
BARINORHES
2 Xinyang Zensun Golden East of Yangshan Sports Park, 2nd quarter of 2023to - 99.99%470%  Residential & 46,43 102,167 - 67,47 34910
Mie House Huaibin County, Xinyang City 2nd quarter of 2024 commercial
(Yangshan New District) ERTEEEFIEEARRE NFE-FFE iz A%
ERTESELR(FIHE) NUEF-ER
3 Luoyang Zensun City North Southwest and southeast comer of 2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential & 122,321 406,418 - 406,418 -
Garden (Phase Il & Il intersection of Kewen Road and Qunan Road,  4th quarter of 2023 commercial
RELES(ZER=E) Jianxi District, Luoyang City NBEF-FEE fiz B2
AETERRMUARRRH NVEEMER
RXAERARRAA
4 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Huarui Road, west of Princess Lake 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residential 164,901 308,773 - 308,773 -
Princess Lake Phase | and south of Binhe South Road, and NNFEZEE fiz
(Yuehu Horizons) west of Zhengxin Highway, Xincun Town,
SNEBRTH=S Zhengzhou Oty
(=) liEEEs A IR il
e ]
3% Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan West of Wenming Road, north of Planning Third -~ 4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 57,015 91,311 - 66,482 289
ItErE Road and south of the land in Xizhangzhel 3rd quarter of 2024 fiz
Vilage, Longhu Town, Xinzheng Gty NRFENERE
GENER LS N HE S NUFEZER
EGEN 1
36 Gongyi Zensun East of Qinglongshan Road, south of 2nd quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residential 99,101 178,382 - 141812 36,570
Scholar Mangion Sugin Road City Greenland, and east of 4ih quarter of 2024 fiz
EETEERER Jiniushan Road, Gongyi Cty NWBEE-FEE
BEMETURR BELER NUFEMER
BEmEE
37 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinrui West of Honghu Road, south of Government 4ih quarter of 2024 100%  Residential 13,734 68,672 - 43810 24,862
Scholar Mansion Land of Longhu, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City ~ 20245 £RER fiz

BATEIRER

HATEREERRAEN  EHEnR 1 eEl
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable Estimated
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder  GFAunder
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m,) (sq.m,)
Number Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
BAITE/ BRWTE/ £l
A58 BEwER ZREYER HEREEN  HERYER  MHEYER
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (TFR) (¥AR)
AR WRER AR Bl /BiAIRE BE R f # f f f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR /BHR22ER(R)
3 Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court ~ South of Yonghui Road, north of Weishier Road,  2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentiel & 84,043 176,419 - 89,411 87,008
RBIRERER south of Weishier Road east of Liing South 202355 =3 commercial
Road, west of Malan West Road, County South iz #%
New District, Ruyang County, Luayang City
AETABEERTEASRE TR
YemuR  BHERE  BEvRE
TR HRRER  BRERE
3 Nanyang Zensun Scholar Court ~ North of Dushi Road and west of 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 26,293 88,460 - 88,460 -
ERIEEEER Xindong Road, Nanyang Ciy NNFE-FE commercial
BEDIHERML - FRENE ENH
40 Shanggiu Zensun East of Zijing Road and south of Yuhang Road,  3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 67,802 196,625 - 196,625 -
Scholar Mansion Sulyang District, Shangaju Cy NBEERER =2
BREHEEER BETESRZAREN  FHEEH
4 Dengzhou Zensun West of Bejing Avenue and north of 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 64,028 160,069 - 79,591 80478
Kaiyue Mansion Lingshan Road, Dengzhou City NRFEZER fiz
YNEEGER PN RRERE BUELE
2 Lushan Zensun Golden Southeast of the Intersection of 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 32,602 48903 - 48903 -
Wie House Fanrong Road and Wenxing Road, NBFE=ZE commercial
BLEELEER Lushan County, Pingingshan City fiz B2
TRUmELEERREN BN ARA
43 Huaxian Zensun West of Jiefang Road and north of Xinda Road,  4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential 5,720 111,441 - 111,441 -
Orchids Mansion Hua County, Anyang Clty NBEERER fiz
REIAWEER ZETRRRIRE  HERL
4 Guangshan Zensun East of Zishui Street, north of Paifong Road, 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 51,847 129,616 - 58,269 nar
Scholar Mansion Guangshan Gounty, Xinyang City NBFE-FE commercial
RUEBEEER EETRLERAAGRE - AR E
4 Huixian Zensun Southwest corner of Yinbin Avenue and 4ih quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 37,065 81,542 - 81,542 -
Scholar Mansion Xueyuan Road, Huixian City, Xinxiang City NREENER commercial
BELEER ARmEETOENEEERARRA ENH
46 Fengan Garden East of Lingshan Road and west of 4th quarter of 2022 51%  Residential & 16,809 33516 - 33516 -
L3¢ Yesheng Street, Dengzhou Clty NRFENEE commercial

HNmRIELE - 2BERAN [z %2
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREERRAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUMMARY-IN THE

EFENEER 2EERE

Project

Number Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

RRM

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (H)

&

48

4

50

51

92

5

54

%

%

Dengzhou Zensun Kintiandi

PHERHR

Dengzhou Zensun Pear! Lake
YNEBERA

Dengzhou Zensun Xinyu City
INEERTA

Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons
FIEBFTER

Zhoukuo Zensun
Golden Mile House
BREAEEER

Gongyi Zensun Heluo Horizon
ZRTHTRER

Yuanyang Zensun Golden
Mile House
REEAELR

Hualyang Zensun
Longhu Horizons

EBLERHER

Shangcheng Zensun
Scholar Mansion

e

Hualbin Zensun Golden
Mie House
EETERELR

East of Sanxian Road and south of
Tuenjie Road, Dengzhou Cty
PHT=ERRE  BEREA

North of Yingbin Avenue and east of
Dongfu Road, Dengzhou City
HimEERELE  FRARH

South of Renmin Road and east of
Sanxian Road, Dengzhou City
INTARBEE - ZERRE

North of Yilong Avenue and east of
Binhe Avenue, Yichuan County, Luoyang City
AETRIEFEAENL  BTRENR

South of Jiaotong Avenue and east of
Tongda Road, Zhoukou City
BRmRERERE  BEARY

West of Balyunshan Road and south of
Renhe Road, Gongyi City
2ETAZLEE AR

West of Jinhua North Street and north of
Huanghe Avenue, Yuanyang County
RRESELLRE EVAELA

South of Huaining Avenue and north of Chunrong
Road, Hualyang District, Zhoukou City
BATERREEAER  BRAL

East of Zhenxing Road and north of Lishu Street,
Shangcheng County, Xinyang City
EETEMARRRER MEG)

East of Honghe Road and south of Qingnian
Street, , Huaibin County, Xinyang City
EETEREATRRE  EFEEH

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2022
N0FE-FE

4ih quarter of 2023
NREFENER

4th quarter of 2023
NRBEEMER

3rdl quarter of 2022 to
2nd quarter of 2024

NREEMERE
NAEE-FR

Ath quarter of 2023 to
Ath quarter of 2024

NRFEMERE
NUFEMER

4ih quarter of 2023
NREENER

4th quarter of 2023 to
1st quarter of 2024

AREELFRE
NUEE-ZR

Ath quarter of 2023 to
4th quarter of 2024

NRBEEMERE
NUEERER

2nd quarter of 2024
NUFEZEE

4ih quarter of 2024
NUEFENEE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
s

100%

56%

100%

100%

100%

100%

90%

Total site
area (sq.m,
Type Approximately
BiEbER
(¥5%)
B# f
Commercial 42,393
[
Residential 53,734
fiz
Residential a7
iz
Residential & 202,883
commercial
iz 5%
Residential 52941
fiz
Residential 20,004
fiz
Residential & 51293
commercial
iz 2%
Residential & 284
commercial
REH
Residential & 45,756
commercial
iz 5%
Residential & 12,122
commercial
iz #%

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
f

42,393

122,362

10273

239,460

168,824

40,008

92,326

85,682

100,662

26,669

BRITE/
fERgER
(5%)

f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable
GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
YRaTE/
HEREER
(F5K)

8

42,39

122,362

10273

123451

49,363

40,008

19,269

85,062

64,999

26,669

Estimated
GFA under
planning
(sqm)
Approximately
£l
HHREER
(¥AR)

H]

116,009

109,461

73,067

35,663
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable Estimated
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder  GFAunder
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development planning
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m,) (sq.m,)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BAITE/ BRWTE/ £l
A58 BEwER ZREYER HEREEN  HERYER  MHEYER
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (TFR) (¥AR)
BRS  MEER Rt Bl /BiAIRE BE R f # f f f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR /BHR22ER(R)
57 Luoyang Zensun Northeast comer of Sk Road Avenue and Qubei  2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential & 70,09 224302 - - 24302
Scholar Mansion Road, Jiani District, Luoyang Cy NFEZEE commercial
ABIAEEER AETERBAR CERE AL A fiz &%
58 Luohe Zensun West of Mangshan Road and north of Mudanjiang - 2nd quarter of 2023 to 90%  Residential & 47,604 119,011 - 33,645 85,366
Chenyue Horizons Road, Demonstration Zong, Luohe City Ath quarter of 2024 commercial
ETTERIRS FATTERDUAER - HATRILE NVBFENFEE fiz 2%
NUFEMER
59 Shangaiu Zensun East of Suiyang Road and south of Wenhua 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 45,564 132,13 - 59,933 72202
Kaiyue Mansion Road, Demonsration Zone of Urban-Tural N5EEZZR iz
EETEANER Integration, Shangqlu City
BETAA- BT8R  BRRRE -
{83
60 Luoshan Zensun East of Chungiu Road and north of Longshan ~ 4th quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 33819 74,403 - 26,510 47893
Scholar Mansion Avenue, Luoshan County, Xinyang City NREENER commercial
BITHEEER EETRLEENERE BN EN
61 Yucheng Zensun Scholar North of Songshan Road, Yucheng County, 3rd quarter of 2024 100%  Residential & 51410 128,52 - 56,228 .97
Mansion Shangqiu City NUFE=ZFR commercial
BHIEERER BETEAGELELE fiz %
62 Znengzhou Zensun Smart City - West of Zhengxin Express Road and north of 2nd quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 51985 129,962 - - 129,962
B-08 Land Parcel auliry road of Ring Expressway, NBFEZEE iz
S EAEEHB-0814 Longhu Town, Xinzheng Cty
HOTRAEDTREREY  BAsREELH
63 Xinmi Zensun Zhenshui House -~ West of Huifeng Street, South of Pingyang Road  4th quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 43862 78,951 - - 78,951
FALHEKER and east of Xinhui Street, Xinmi Clty N05EERER =z

HETHEER  FEARRESER

Grand total &3t 6,078,364 14,371,141 3,646,239 6,764,024 3,060,878
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EREXERAF

Zensun Enterprises Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEERN W R

FINAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB13,421.5 million and gross profit of approximately
RMB1,262.7 million, with an increase of approximately 66.3% as compared
to revenue of approximately RMB8,069.1 million for the corresponding period
of 2020. Revenue and gross profit of both years were primarily derived from
the property development business in the PRC, and the substantial growth in
revenue was arising from the delivery of the Group’s newly completed property
development projects during the Year. During the Year, the Group completed 11
property development projects (or in sub-phases) and delivered approximately 1.1
million square metres (“sq.m.”) booked saleable/leasable gross floor area (“GFA”) as
compared to that of approximately 0.7 million sg.m. for the corresponding period
of 2020. Gross profit recorded for the Year of approximately RMB1,262.7 million
was decreased by approximately 27.7% as compared to that of approximately
RMB1,746.3 million for the corresponding period of 2020. The decrease in gross
profit was resulted from the recognition of certain lower profit margin property
projects during the Year, which included (i) property projects which are designated
as policy-related housing of which the selling prices are strictly controlled by the
government; (i) property projects which had a higher unexpected construction
cost due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic which prolonged development
progress and resulted in a lower profit margin at the time of recognition upon
delivery during the Year; and (jii) property projects with suppressed selling prices
under the impact of the general downturn in the property market as affected
by national regulatory control measures and policies restricting the purchase of
properties and the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group had other income of approximately RMB44.0 million during the Year,
with increase of approximately 60.0% as compared to approximately RMB27.5
million in the corresponding period of 2020. It was primarily attributable to the
increase in interest income of approximately RMB10.4 million during the Year.

The Group had net other loss of approximately RMB71.2 million during the
Year, as compared to net other losses for the corresponding period of 2020
of approximately RMB86.0 million. The Group’s net other loss during the Year
comprised a combined effect of (i) fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB112.6 million (2020: fair value loss
of approximately RMB6.7 million); offset with (ii) fair value loss on investment
properties of approximately RMBO0.1 million (2020: RMB33.5 million); (iii) write-
down of properties under development and completed properties held for sale of
approximately RMB166.8 million (2020: approximately RMB150.0 million) to net
realisable value; and (iv) net exchange losses of approximately RMB16.9 million
(2020: net exchange gains of approximately RMB4.6 million) during the Year.

The Group’s sales and marketing expenses increased by approximately 37.9%
from approximately RMB181.0 million for the corresponding period of 2020
to approximately RMB249.6 million for the Year. The Group’s administrative
expenditure increased by approximately 15.7% from approximately RMB205.2
million for the corresponding period of 2020 to approximately RMB237.4 million for
the Year. Such increases were in line with the business expansion in the Group’s
property development business in the PRC during the Year with an increase in the
Group’s property development projects.

KRERRE

REE2021F12A3BIEFE(AFE]) » A&
BB RFIOARBIBAISAEELIRENOAR
12627 E BT » W2020F A2 WHEH AR
8,069.1 B B L IN466.3% - MEFE 2 W ME
FEZRAPEMEBREER MRS KBERTYA
AEERAFEIMNTEXNYEERIER - RAFE
A AEESERI1EYEEREEBEE (REESH)UE
RNEHEEATHE AEEEmE((ZEmE DO
BEFFKFEHK]) » M2020FRHABIL AB0.7EH
BEFTK RAFERNZSEFNHARKE1,262.78
BT B2020F RN ARKE1,746.3E ELR I K
27.7% » EFR AL T AREAFENBERE THHEE
BIEZMEEE - BREETCABRREBEEAEER
BRI ZEIEE ¢ (i) FHBEZECOVID-19%& 15 -
ZEMEBERBEELR  BEINEEBSEREK
Ao WERANEELEESANBFERREFBER &
(il) 3 B R e N7 B8 58 B W 2 M #81% Bsk A R COVID-19
BIBZHET  BEMWERVEMSER  EHWEE
BEEEXE -

AEBRAFEREEMBANARBLI4.08E T -
B2020F R HIM ) AR 27 55 8t hn#160.0% °
EXZREHERAAFEMNFBEWRAGMHARK1048
EILFTE

REBRAFEZHMEBEBFHENBARETICASE
JC ¢ 2020 E B S E b B 18/ A RE86.0
BEL - AEERAFEZHMEEBFE T HRAF
ETHNESBHEATENN  (EAFEFABREZS
BEEZ AFEKEHARKE112.6 8 ET(20204F -
NFEBEBEHOARB7TEE L) WHWEMER
TFEEEHAREOABEL(2020F « AR®I35H
B0 (iMBBREPDERBELEZEZIMESR
AR ENARE166.8F BT (20204 : HARE
150.0887T) : M(ivELEEBFEOARK16.98E
JL(2020%F « EH K FEHARELI6EETT) AR
3 o

REBEZHEERMIGHEREERABH2020FBAHHARE
181.08 &L MAI7T I%ERFEEHARE2406H
BT - AEB 2T E A HR2020F FHEHARE205.2
BELENNI TR EAFENARB237TA4EETT -
R MEAEENTE WEEREBANFEINAR
¥BHERER  AREZYERRIEBEBFELN -



The Group’s finance costs increased by approximately 12.8% from approximately
RMB79.7 million for the corresponding period of 2020 to approximately RMB89.9
million for the Year. The increase was attributable to interest arising from the
increasing revenue contracts which are not eligible for capitalisation to properties
under development.

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB443.5
million for the corresponding period of 2020 to approximately RMB273.6 million
for the Year. The decrease was consistent with the decrease in PRC Corporate
Income Tax and PRC Land Appreciation Tax due to the decrease in operating
profits in the PRC during the Year.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately RMB399.5 million (2020:
approximately RMB783.0 million).

The basic earnings per share for the Year was RMB20.9 cents (2020: RMB70.4
cents (restated)) which was resulted from the decrease in profit attributable to
owners of the Company during the Year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the Year.
BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Development in the PRC

During the Year, the property development business in the PRC contributed
revenue of approximately RMB13,321.0 million (2020: approximately RMB7,877.2
million) and segment profit of approximately RMB492.3 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,033.3 million) to the Group. The increase in segment revenue
was attributable to the increase of booked GFA delivered to the property owners
during the Year, which was contributed from the Group’s 11 newly completed
property development projects in phases/sub-phases, namely, Beijing Zensun
Grand Garden* (b 5L IE98B%%), Beijing Zensun Yazhu Garden* (b5t iF 79 HEs81E
3t), Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage International Plaza (Phase I)* (854 1F 7% B B B =
#—Hi), Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids Mansion (Valley-view Garden)* (Z5 ' 1F 75 B iz
ZERF (M2 1E%0) ), Zhengzhou Zensun River Home Phase |l (Courtyard No.2)* (Z5 /1
FREsOIER ) (FEE_55F) ), Xinxiang Zensun Smart City (Xiang Garden)* (&
B IE 7 2 H L E), Dengfeng Zensun City (Tai Garden, Xi Garden)* (& £} 1F B3
Z=E - i2&), Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House* (FF & IE & 13 K), Xinxiang
Zensun Golden Mile House Phase II* (3745 1F 75 & 19t R — i) and Zhengzhou
Zensun International Building* (&5/1 IF & BIFR K E). Together with our existing
completed property projects, there were approximately 1.1 million sgq.m. booked
GFA delivered and recognised into the revenue during the Year as compared to
approximately 0.7 million sq.m. booked GFA delivered and recognised during
2020.

Though there was an overall increase in the booked GFA, decrease in gross profit
resulted from the recognition of certain lower profit margin property projects during
the Year, which included (i) property projects which are designated as policy-
related housing of which the selling prices are strictly controlled by the government;
(i) property projects which had a higher unexpected construction cost due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic which prolonged development progress and
resulted in a lower profit margin at the time of recognition upon delivery during the
Year; and (iii) property projects with suppressed selling prices under the impact
of the general downturn in the property market as affected by national regulatory
control measures and policies restricting the purchase of properties and the
COVID-19 pandemic.
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AEE 7 BEKAH2020F R EHARE79.7TEE T
EINKI12.8% ERFENARKESIOBFE T © 2B M
THR IR EBREAMERREPMEZ RFZA WL
IEAEZFBFTE -

RNEBZ FrigHi X H2020F A AR E443.58 8
TTRDERFEEHARE273.6F BT ° iz EHAE
ERFEEEEFRSBEENPRCEMSHERTE
TS AR — -

EREMER  REERNEAAGES AEGEAERR
M AANRE399.58 &7 (20205 : HARMET83.0
BEJTD) °

RAEAFERN » FRERAFAAREE20.9% (2020%F :
ARB70.45 (F&EF])) - THRAFEARHESE A
FEAE & FR A BT S

EEETERRNAFEZRE
E3 0]

FEI YR

RAFERN  PEVEERREGALEEERMKEN
ARM13,321.0A BT (20204F : YARK78772H
BL) M EEMHARIE492.3F & 7T (20204 : 4
ARH1,033.3EETL) o D IPUESIEMNTI AR AEE
RNFEF7EAEEERBEN  MOAEBEER
TR IR B AL B @D, XD AR 2 ¥R
BIEE - B4t RIERERA4E - b R IERHESE(E58 - B0
TERMERES 8 SN EEEEEF(RSE
55)  BMNEFRAZOIR —#(FEEZ5R) - P IEES
EFHAEERE ZHEEHRER  EE FEEESH
R FPTFHSEER RSN FEEERE -
HERBEMNBEEEEXNMEEE  A5ERAFEDR
R ERR SRR EAERERENA11B8ES
Ko MAR2020F B RBRAZ D AEEAmMBEN S
0.7TEBF X -

WAEAEREMBEREBIEM  EEMRDTIHERE
REENBRETHHEREZYEIER - BEOEE
REFRBER AEEXBUTBRZENMNYEERR (i)
HIGEZECOVID-19& 15 - X EWMFHERBELLR -
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During the Year, with the impact from tightening regulatory control measures and
the COVID-19 pandemic, the overall real estate market in the PRC experienced
economic downturn and a decreasing in public purchasing power. The selling
prices of property projects were inevitably suppressed and slowed down, such
situation was especially worse for non-core city locations. As a result of the
foregoing, a write-down of properties under development and completed properties
held for sale of approximately RMB166.8 million (2020: RMB150.0 million on
properties under development) for certain properties whose selling price were not
recoverable as expected to net realisable value was provided during the Year.
Following the increasing number of ongoing property projects under development
in our expansion and development of land reserves, sales and marketing and
administrative expenses in property development business in the PRC increased
accordingly and resulted in an overall decrease in segment profit.

The Group maintained its concrete expansion strategy and persisted continuing
effort to expand its land reserves through listing for sale processes in public
auctions and merger and acquisitions. During the Year, the Group acquired 15
land parcels at aggregate consideration of approximately RMB3,132.2 million
contributing an aggregate site area of approximately 626,837 sg.m. and aggregate
saleable/leasable GFA of approximately 1.49 million sg.m. (estimated based on
maximum permitted plot ratio) in support of its land reserves in the PRC through
listing for sales processes held by local governmental land bureaus. These
successful land bids and acquisitions further complemented the Group’s strategy in
expanding its business operation with a focus in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province
and other selective first and second tier cities in the PRC.

The Group has accumulated its land reserves in line with the concrete expansion
strategy adopted since 2017. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 30
completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 63 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 123 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
5.21 million sg.m. and aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 10.72 million
sg.m. in the PRC. In return, the land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated
saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.76 million sg.m.
and estimated GFA under planning of approximately 3.96 million sg.m., which
is sufficient for the Group’s development needs for the next three to four years.
The Group will remain proactive in reviewing its pace of business expansion, and
may adjust its project development plans and schedules in response to changing
market conditions, as and when appropriate.

Project Management Services in the PRC

During the Year, the Group recorded segment revenue of approximately
RMB61.8 million (2020: approximately RMB123.5 million) and segment profit of
approximately RMB58.7 million (2020: approximately RMB117.6 million) from the
provision of project management services in the PRC to property project owners
including both independent and related companies. The decrease of segment
revenue from project management fee income was led by the decrease in GFA
remaining available to be sold under the management and sale services framework
agreement entered into with the related companies in prior year.
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With the necessary expertise, know-how and experience established from the
prior services under the framework agreement, the Group enhanced its project
management services during the Year from preliminary project management and
sales services to an integrated project management process including, inter alia,
preliminary project planning, project management, operation and execution, and
branding and marketing management services, etc. in return for management fee
income from property owners over the management period. The Group expanded
its project management services to independent property project owners in
the market in the fourth quarter in 2021 and had entered into 12 management
agreements covering projects under management with aggregated GFA of
approximately 2.06 million sg.m. as at 31 December 2021. The terms of these
management agreements ranged from 3 to 5 years, depending on the size and
type of the projects under management which is in line with the industry norm.

Since the Group centrally manage and organise the development, branding
and marketing of the property development projects of the Group and related
companies as a whole, the Group benefitted from synergy effect with the existing
business of the Group which resulted in a high profit margin for these services.

Property Investment and/or Management Services on AHR and
GMR in the USA

Since July 2020, the Group no longer provided property management services
to GMR in the USA as a result of the sale of its subsidiary, and only maintained
the management of AHR’s property investment in the USA through internal
resources. Accordingly, the Group recorded a decrease in segment revenue
from approximately RMB44.1 million for the corresponding period of 2020 to
approximately RMB14.4 million for the Year and a decrease in segment profit
from approximately RMB111.6 million for the corresponding period of 2020 to
approximately RMB9.9 million for the Year. The decrease in segment profit was
resulted from the one-off net gain on sale of the subsidiary of approximately
RMB99.6 million in 2020. During the Year, the Group no longer generated property
management services fee income and the segment revenue and profit were derived
from property investment on AHR.

Following the termination of the property management services as a result of the
sale of the Group’s subsidiary, the Group continued to operate and manage AHR’s
property investment through internal resources and will integrate AHR division with
other divisions to evaluate and assess the Group’s property investment businesses
located in Hong Kong, the USA and Singapore as a whole and report as one single
operating segment in the future.

Property Investment other than AHR

During the Year, the property investment in other regions other than AHR
division contributed segment revenue of approximately RMB9.5 million (2020:
approximately RMB9.7 million) and recorded segment profit of approximately
RMB2.0 million (2020: segment loss of approximately RMB27.3 million) to the
Group. The turnaround of segment profit was a result of the lesser extent of fair
value loss of investment properties during the Year of approximately RMBO0.2
million as compared to fair value loss of investment properties of approximately
RMB28.9 million for the corresponding period of 2020. The fair value of the
investment properties was highly sensitive to the economic downturn as affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Securities Trading and Investment

During the Year, the Group’s securities business recorded segment revenue
of approximately RMB14.7 million with segment profit of RMB127.4 million as
compared to segment revenue of approximately RMB14.6 million with segment
profit of approximately RMB7.9 million for the corresponding period of 2020.
The increase in segment profit was primarily resulted from the substantial fair
value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during the Year of
approximately RMB112.6 million (2020: fair value loss of approximately RMB6.7
million).

IMPACT OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON OUR BUSINESS

At the initial stage of COVID-19 pandemic, construction works for certain property
projects had been mandatorily suspended pursuant to the local government
prevention and control orders. The delay in development progress and delivery of
certain property projects resulted in a higher unexpected construction cost and
their delivery and revenue and profit recognition was deferred to the Year, which
brought a lower profit margin to the Group. During the Year, there was no further
suspension of construction ordered by the local government.

The Group was exposed to market volatility as a result of the economic downturn
in the overall PRC real estate market with decreasing public purchasing desires and
power from aggregated unfavourable factors including COVID-19 pandemic and
tightening housing control measures. Due to the economic downturn, the selling
prices of certain properties were suppressed and were not able to be recoverable as
expected to net realisable value. A write-down of approximately RMB166.8 million
was provided for properties under development and completed properties held for
sale during the Year.

The Group maintained sustainable liquidity financial position with bank balances
(including pledged deposits, restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents) of approximately RMB3,512.5 million, remained stable current ratio
at approximately 1.2 and decreased our gearing ratio to 27.1% from 34.8% of
last year with net current assets of approximately RMB12,401.9 million as at 31
December 2021. Therefore, it is confident that our Group has sufficient working
capital to satisfy the Group’s operations.

Under the COVID-19 pandemic, epidemic prevention and controls became
regular and normal. Our Group was also required to be prepared and responsive
in confronting these ever-changing challenges so as to mitigate the impact
brought from the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group closely communicates with our
construction contractors in order to monitor the development progress and adjust
the development and delivery schedule pace from time to time where appropriate
and necessary after taking into the consideration of the COVID-19 pandemic
development. Besides adopting government orders in issue, the Group also
developed our internal sales team as well as our online sales platform to maintain
the sales of properties through online application with no limitation on the number
of attendees. During the Year, our Group implemented strategy in expanding our
project management business in order to diversify our income streams. The Group
will continue to closely monitor the development of the COVID-19 pandemic,
evaluate its impact on the operations and financial position of the Group and adopt
necessary measures and adjustments to business plans to manage the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic from time to time.
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In light of the conditions of the property market at present, the PRC local
governments have started to adopt relevant policies to facilitate the stable and
healthy development of the real estate sector in the first quarter of 2022. The
Board considers the overall business operation and financial position of the Group
remain healthy and solid and remains optimistic about the long-term development
of the Group despite the challenges posed by the economic environment under the
COVID-19 pandemic, fierce competition and evolving national regulatory control
measures and policies.

Save for the above, the Group was not aware of other risks or uncertainties which
will have a material effect on the operations, financial performance and the financial
position of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group’s total cash and
bank balances including pledged deposits and restricted bank balances were
approximately RMB3,512.5 million (2020: approximately RMB4,225.5 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 16.9%. The total cash and bank
balances were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD” or “HK$”),
US Dollar (“USD” or “US$”), and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank balances and deposits of the Group
were pledged to certain banks and financial institutions as securities for the bank
and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group and also the mortgage
loan facilities granted to the property buyers of the Group. The total pledged
deposits was approximately RMB215.9 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
approximately RMB358.3 million).

Capital Structure, Borrowings and Charges on the Group’s assets
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances and
pledged deposits; and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. As at 31 December 2021, net debt and equity
attributable to owners of the Company were approximately RMB18,463.9 million
(2020: approximately RMB23,386.3 million) and approximately RMB8,198.5 million
(2020: approximately RMB7,873.9 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s aggregate borrowings including bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company and amounts due to related
companies amounted to approximately RMB21,976.5 million (2020: approximately
RMB27,611.9 million), of which approximately RMB16,075.7 million (2020:
approximately RMB18,827.6 million) were repayable within one year or on demand,
and approximately RMB5,900.8 million (2020: approximately RMB8,784.3 million)
were repayable after one year. The aggregate borrowings were mainly denominated
in RMB, USD and SGD.
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The Group’s bank and other borrowings comprised of listed senior notes and bank
and financial institutions facilities. During the Year, the Company issued two listed
senior notes in the principal amount of (i) US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5%
per annum due on 13 September 2023 (of which US$142,420,000 was issued
in exchange for validly tendered and accepted senior notes originally due on 3
October 2021 pursuant to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer) and (i)
US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on 23 April 2024, both
of which have been listed on the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds of the senior
notes was intended to refinance existing indebtedness. The senior notes were
unsecured but guaranteed by related companies, which are ultimately controlled
by Ms. Huang and certain subsidiaries of the Company. The Group will adjust its
business plans in response to changing market conditions and allocate the use of
the net proceeds efficiently.

In addition to the fixed-rate interest at 12.5% per annum for the US$200 million
and US$160 million senior notes issued during the Year, the Group’s bank and
other borrowings carried fixed interest rates ranging from 4.95% to 11.0% per
annum and also various floating interest rates linked with international lending rates
including Singapore Dollar Swap Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank Offered Rate,
London Interbank Offered Rate, the base lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China and the Loan Prime Rate in the PRC as at 31 December 2021. The Group’s
interest rate risk is mainly driven by the bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, certain bank and financial institutions facilities granted
to the Group together with the mortgage loan facilities granted to the property
buyers of the Group were secured by investment properties, properties under
development, completed properties held for sale and pledged deposits with
total carrying values of approximately RMB15,799.8 million (2020: RMB17,443.9
million).

Shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group are pledged to secure certain bank and
financial institutions facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2021. Aside
from the Group’s senior notes, certain bank and financial institutions facilities to the
Group were also guaranteed by related companies which are ultimately controlled
by Ms. Huang and her daughter, Ms. Zhang as at 31 December 2021. No asset of
the Group was pledged to these related companies in respect of these guarantees.

As at 31 December 2021, loans from a related company and the amounts due to
related companies were unsecured and interest-free.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose during the
Year.

The Company entered into the placing agreement dated 24 November 2020
with the placing agent and agreed to issue by allotment of up to 1,526,090,000
new ordinary shares under the general mandate at the placing price of HK$0.46
per placing share. The net proceeds from placing amounting to approximately
HK$698.9 million were intended to be applied towards (i) 90% on repayment of
bank and other borrowings which were due on or before 31 December 2021; and
(i) 10% on general working capital of the Group. The placing was completed on
18 December 2020 and the Company issued 1,526,090,000 new ordinary shares
under the general mandate pursuant to the terms of the placing agreement. As at
31 December 2021, the remaining unutilised proceeds brought forward from 31
December 2020 of approximately HK$497.1 million have been fully utilised towards
the Group’s intended use of proceeds during the Year.
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During the Year, the Company completed the share consolidation on the basis
that every ten issued ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one ordinary share in the share capital of the Company pursuant
to an ordinary resolution passed by Shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 5 August 2021, which the share consolidation became effective
on 9 August 2021.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to Shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In view of the Group’s
expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding from its related companies and
will continue to look for external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from previous year.

Key Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a current ratio of approximately
1.2 (2020: 1.3) and a gearing ratio of approximately 27.1% (2020: approximately
34.8%). Gearing ratio is defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits to total assets.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the capital commitments of the Group in connection with
the property development expenditures was approximately RMB10,656.8 million
(2020: approximately RMB12,344.5 million) and acquisition of land use rights
was approximately RMB210.5 million (2020: approximately RMB549.5 million),
respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities relating to
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,002.3 million (2020: approximately
RMB13,559.9 million) provided by the Group in respect of mortgage loan facilities
provided by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into
by property buyers of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon
default in mortgage payments by these buyers, the Group would be responsible
for repaying the outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued interest
thereon and any penalties owed by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The
Group would be entitled to take over legal title to and possession of the related
properties. These guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loan by the property buyers; and (i) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of the
deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the
guarantee contracts was recognised in the financial statements for the Year as the
default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the outstanding principal together with the accrued
interest and penalties.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated substantially in
RMB, HKD, USD and SGD. Due to the currency peg of HKD to USD, the exchange
rate between these two currencies has remained stable and thus the Group has
not currently implemented any hedging or other alternatives to minimise foreign
exchange exposure. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency
hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to RMB
and SGD through transactions, assets and liabilities should the need arise.
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing
market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant
factors. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance-related bonuses.
The Company has continued to receive the three awards issued by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Authority, namely, the Good MPF Employer Award in recognition
of the Company’s compliance with employer’s statutory obligations and provision
of better retirement protection for employees, the e-Contribution Award and the
MPF Support Award for the Company’s adoption of electronic means for MPF
administration, and has striven to encourage employees to actively manage their
MPF. Moreover, the Company has also continued to receive an award, namely,
the Certificate of the Good Employer Charter, from the Labour Department in
recognition of the Company’s adoption of an employee-oriented and progressive
human resource management practices. These practices can help boost staff
morale, enhance employees’ sense of belonging and hence lay a solid foundation
for business growth. The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 August
2018 and share options may also be granted to eligible employees of the Group.
Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments during the Year, amounted to
approximately RMB132.9 million (2020: RMB97.1 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 1,144 employees.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals
of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture and Future Plans for
Material Investments or Capital Assets

(a) During the Year, the Group acquired land use rights of land parcels in
Henan Province with expected completion period falling between the fourth
quarter of 2023 to the fourth quarter of 2025 through respective public
auctions held by various PRC governmental land bureau, as set out in the
below summary:

Time of acquisition
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during the Year City/County Designated land usage(s) Site area Consideration
REFEN

W R W EEX#AR IEE S KE

(sg.m.) (RMB’million)

Approximately Approximately

(FFFK) (ARBBET

A B4

February Dengzhou Residential 41,127 97.5
2R BB F=

March Yuanyang Residential, commercial 51,293 100.0
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during the Year City/County Designated land usage(s) Site area Consideration
REFEN
W R W EET#AR G E R RE
(sg.m.) (RMB’million)
Approximately Approximately
(FFFK) (ARBBRET)
A B4
April Huaiyang, Dengfeng, Residential, commercial/ 182,999 1,071.1
Shangcheng, Huaibin, residential and underground
Luoyang transport service station site
usage/residential, commercial,
underground car parking
spaces and civil air defence
facility usage
47 S B m - FE - BEAERMTRE
HEE R RIS SRR 1T - mE -
M BN R RIS AR
May Luohe, Shangqiu, Luoshan, Residential, commercial/ 178,397 704.4
Yucheng residential
5H BN B AL B F=E - mx =E
June Zhengzhou Residential 51,985 389.9
64 EEN F=
November Zhengzhou, Xinmi Residential 77,308 606.6
118 BN~ FE F=
December Dengfeng Residential 43,728 162.7
12 A EE F=
626,837 3,132.2

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold other significant investment,
make any other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or
joint venture or future plan for material investment or capital assets during the Year.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 23 March 2022, the Group acquired land use rights of a land parcel located
in Dengfeng City, Henan Province, the PRC through listing for sale process in a
public auction held by Dengfeng City Natural Resources and Planning Bureau* (&
A RE R ES) for transfer of state-owned land use rights with site area of
approximately 42,081.84 square metres at a consideration of RMB167,899,200.
The land parcel was designated for residential usage with term of use of 70 years
and underground floor for transportation service station usage with term of use of
50 years. The handover of the land parcel is expected to be completed respectively
in the second quarter of 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there was no significant event after the reporting period
and up to the date of this annual report.
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Outlook and Prospects

In order to pursue sustainable development, the Group is principally engaged in the
businesses of property development, property investment, project management
and sale services and seeks investment opportunities which strengthen its
profitability with acceptable risk in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas markets.

The Group will primarily finance the repayments on financial assistance from the
controlling shareholder through proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of Group’s
properties, internally generated cash flows from other operations, and borrowings
from banks and financial institutions. Going forward, the Group believes our future
funding needs in support of project construction and land acquisition activities will
be satisfied by the above-mentioned sources and additional issuance of equity
securities or other capital market instruments. The Group seeks to manage the
level of our liquid assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected cash requirements arising from our business. The Group will also
continue to assess available financial resources in support of our business needs
on an ongoing basis and plan and adjust our development schedule or implement
cost control measures if necessitated by our then-existing financial conditions
and cash requirements. The Group intends to continue to access existing capital
resources, and to seek new sources of funding, to maintain and grow our business
on a cost-effective basis.

The PRC

During the Year, 11 property development projects namely, Beijing Zensun Grand
Garden* (Jt R IE B HA%E), Beijing Zensun Yazhu Garden* (3t 5 IF g HE&i{28),
Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage International Plaza (Phase |)* (&5 TF 79 B i BARS & 5
—Hf), Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids Mansion (Valley-view Garden)* (51 IF 74 58 g2
T (A E1£%5) ), Zhengzhou Zensun River Home Phase Il (Courtyard No.2)* (&5 IE
BEZOUR —H1 (FERE%BT) ), Xinxiang Zensun Smart City (Xiang Garden)* (#7145
EEEEFMFEE), Dengfeng Zensun City (Tai Garden, Xi Garden) * (&3 IE B
ZxE - #2@&), Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile House* (F#F & IF 4 18t %), Xinxiang
Zensun Golden Mile House Phase II* (3745 1F g <13 tt 5 — #i) and Zhengzhou
Zensun International Building* (&5 /1| IF 7 Bl B* X&) were newly completed in
phases/sub-phases and delivered to customers in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the purchase agreements. In accordance with the Group’s latest
development progress and delivery schedule, it is expected that 13 to 16 property
development projects and/or subphases will complete its development and launch
delivery in 2022. The Group’s property development projects remain focused on
providing “High Quality” products with both standard and deluxe design with full
refurbishment so as to meet different customers’ preferences and needs. Revenue
from the sale of properties are expected to be recognised upon completion and
delivery of the property projects and/or sub-phases.

After the ambitious land acquisitions completed during the Year, the Group built up
strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business in the PRC
for the next three to four years with a strong presence in Henan Province, thus the
Group will focus more on developing the existing and new property development
projects on its land reserves in 2022 to 2024.

The Board will maintain open-minded in identifying new property development
projects and bidding for land use rights of other selective land parcels in the PRC
with a focus in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other selective first and
second tier cities in the PRC in the coming few years.
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With the strong land reserves and the ongoing property development projects, the
demand for the respective construction work for the Group’s properties projects
on hand are rapidly and substantially increasing. In this regard, the Group will
proactively seek quotations from quality construction contractors which can offer
the best and most favourable terms to cooperate so as to complement the Group’s
expansion in property development in the PRC. In order to cater for the Group’s
growing needs and requirements, and secure high quality construction services
for the Group’s property projects, the Group renegotiated new terms with Zensun
Development and entered into the 2021 master services agreement during the Year
to engage Zensun Development Group for construction, engineering and related
services for certain selected property development projects. The term of the 2021
master services agreement was for three years, starting from 1 January 2021 and
continue up to and including 31 December 2023. As approved in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 8 December 2020 in regard to the 2021
master services agreement, the approved annual cap for the transactions with
Zensun Development Group during the years ended/ending 31 December 2021,
2022 and 2023 of RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and RMB1,778 million,
respectively.

The Group and Xingye Wulian entered into the master property engineering
framework agreement and master property management framework agreement
in 2020 to appoint Xingye Wulian Group as service providers to provide property
engineering services and property management and value-added services to
the Group with term commencing from 9 March 2020 and up to 31 December
2022. The annual caps for the transactions under the master property engineering
framework agreement with Xingye Waulian for the years ending 31 December 2021
and 2022 are RMB26.5 million and RMB34.0 million, respectively, and the annual
caps for the transactions under the master property management framework
agreement as amended by the supplemental agreement with Xingye Wulian for
the years ended/ending 31 December 2021 and 2022 are RMB66.0 million and
RMB66.0 million, respectively.

The Group possesses the necessary expertise and know-how in property project
management services through managing its existing property development
portfolio. The Group provides Ever Diamond Group with project management
services for certain selected property development projects. Thus, the Group
can centrally manage and organise the development, branding and marketing of
property development projects of the Group and the Ever Diamond Group, which
will result in reduced competition for business opportunities between the Group
and the Ever Diamond Group. As approved in 2019 in regard to the management
and sales services framework agreement, the approved annual cap for the
transactions with Ever Diamond Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB200 million.
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In view of the expiring management and sales services framework agreement
with the related companies, the Group determined to implement the strategy in
diversifying to a light-asset model by investing more internal resources to further
expand the project management business and providing a more integrated project
management services in return for management fee income. The Group has
successfully won confidence and secured 12 management contracts with other
independent property owners in the market in the fourth quarter of 2021 to expand
the project management business. The Board considers project management
business in the PRC shall become popular in the market with prosperous
business potential, and the expansion in project management business served
as a diversification to light-asset model from our traditional heavy-asset model in
the property development business. The diversification allows the Group to gain
competitive advantages from managing property projects on behalf of property
owners without having to bear heavy investment cost in land acquisition and
construction cost, and in turn, leverage the risks from industry concentration and
tightening government regulations on property development business.

The Company takes leverage on the PRC property development and investment
experience of its management team to seek suitable projects for development
or investment with potential to deliver value to its Shareholders. In addition to
existing business partners, the Company will continue to seek potential partners’
cooperation to explore capital resources and reduce the Group’s capital
investment in property projects at an early stage and facilitate project development.
The management remains cautiously optimistic on the long-term prospects of
the real estate industry and will expedite its property development and sales of
its development projects in the PRC through making use of its own advantages
and leveraging on the national network and business resources of Henan Zensun
Real Estate Co., Ltd* (AIFEIER B % AR A F]) (“Zensun Real Estate”), a company
controlled by Ms. Huang. The synergistic effect brought by Zensun Real Estate will
improve the position of the Group in the real estate industry in the PRC.

The U.S.

As at the date of this annual report, the Group has approximately 5.7% equity
interest in a NYSE-listed REIT, GMR in securities trading and investment segment
and 99% equity interest in AHR in property investment and management segment.

1. GMR

During the Year, the Group performed regular review on GMR’s business
performance and its business strategies and prospect. It is considered that
the investment in GMR would achieve long term capital appreciation to the
Group with stable average annual yield.

2. AHR

AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Company. AHR diversified its
previous investment in single family houses to senior housing communities
in order to seize the potential opportunity for higher-than-average
annualised yield.

Other regions
The Group will regularly review the Singapore property market to explore any
business opportunity in the foreseeable future.

Overall

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas markets with business growth opportunities.
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ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 58, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on
6 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the Company on 29
June 2015.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 27 years of experience in the real estate development
industry in China. From July 1983 to April 1995, Mr. Zhang held various positions
at the then Light Industry Bureau of Henan Province, the governmental authority
in charge of the light industry in Henan Province, and its associated collectively-
owned enterprises, including division chief, engineer and vice manager, where he
was responsible for administrative management. From April 1995 to April 2001, he
worked at Xingye Real Estate as general manager, where he was responsible for its
overall operations. Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) cofounded a
real estate company which has become one of the top 100 property development
companies in China. Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman and chief executive
officer of this top 100 real estate company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and general management of our Group and is
instrumental to our growth and business expansion.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 1983, an Executive MBA degree from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in July 2013 and an Executive MBA degree from PBC School
of Finance, Tsinghua University in July 2018. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
senior consultant of Henan Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, vice-president of
Industry & Commerce Association of Henan Province, graduate tutor of Zhengzhou
University. During the years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Zhang was named
“Outstanding Real Estate Developer of Henan Province by Real Estate Association
of Henan Province. Mr. Zhang received his senior engineer qualification from the
People’s Government of Henan Province in May 2012, he received his first class
construction engineer qualification from the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development. Mr. Zhang is also currently a delegate of the 13th Henan Provincial
People’s Congress since January 2018.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd., a listed
company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).

Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang, a Non-Executive Director. As at 31
December 2021, Mr. Zhang is interested in 1,377,520,893 shares of the Company,
which are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets
of a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Mr. Zhang is a director of Zensun
Group Limited, a company which had an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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HUANG YANPING
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Huang, aged 60, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huang
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She was appointed to
the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the
Company on 29 June 2015.

Ms. Huang has over 20 years’ experiences in the property development and
investment industry in the PRC. Ms. Huang has been involved in the development
of not less than 36 property development projects in Henan Province, Shandong
and Hainan Province in the PRC with a total gross floor area of not less than 14
million sg.m.. She is one of the founders of a real estate company which has
become one of the top 100 property development companies in the PRC.

Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an Executive Director. As at 31 December
2021, Ms. Huang is interested in 1,377,520,893 shares of the Company, which
are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward
Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited. The
entire issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited are assets of a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra
Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy
Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited, both of which are companies which an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ZHANG GUOQIANG
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Guogiang, aged 58, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling
shareholder on 29 June 2015.

Between August 1983 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a tutor
at the Communication Command Academy of PLA, now known as the National
Defence Information Academy of PLA. Between October 1997 to March 2003, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang served as the director of the marketing department of Wuhan
Research Institute of Post & Telecommunications, also known as FiberHome
Technologies Group, a product and solution provider in the field of information and
telecommunications, where he was responsible for marketing. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a general manager at Nanjing North Road
Technologies Co., Ltd., a coal analysis equipment manufacturer, from May 2003
to November 2005, where he was responsible for general management. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang joined the real estate company co-founded by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang
in 2006 and in the position of vice president of that company since then. Mr. Zhang
Guogiang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 1983. In 1988, Mr. Zhang Guogiang received his lecturer qualification from
the National Defence Information Academy of PLA and received his engineer
qualification from Wuhan Research Institute of Post of Telecommunications.

Currently, Mr. Zhang Guogiang is a director of Zanyu Technology Group Co., Ltd.,
a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).
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LIU DA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Da (“Mr. Liu”), aged 46, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics
with a major in international business administration and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Liu is also a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in
China. Mr. Liu served as an audit manager and a senior audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) Guangzhou Office from 1998 to 2009 and
Chicago Office from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Liu provided audit and consulting services
to a number of global top 500 enterprises and overseas listed Chinese companies
during his tenure of office in PwC. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from 31 July 2013 to 5 January
2015 and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Long Ji Tai
He Holding Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281)
from 26 February 2015 to 16 October 2015. Currently, Mr. Liu is the managing
partner of Key Wealth Capital Company Limited, providing financing and overseas
mergers and acquisition services to Chinese enterprises.

MA YUNTAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ma Yuntao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 42, was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Ma has been serving at Tian Yuan Law Firm as a registered partner from
December 2021 up to now. He served at Jia Yuan Law Firm from July 2010 to
November 2021 and at Commerce & Finance Law Offices from July 2002 to June
2010, engaging in securities business as to PRC laws. He acquired qualifications as
a practicing solicitor in 2006.
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Mr. Ma ran projects including the secondary listing project of New Oriental
Education & Technology Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9901) which is principally engaged in the private educational services,
the privatisation and delisting project of AVIC International Holdings Limited,
a company formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0161) which
was principally engaged in electronic high-tech, retail and consumer products,
international engineering and trade logistics businesses, the initial public offering
(“IPO”) project of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) which is principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing, distribution and retail of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, privatisation and delisting project
of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2626) which was principally engaged in nonferrous
metallic mineral resources mining business, IPO project of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3636)
which is principally engaged in culture industry involving theatre management,
artwork auction and investment, IPO project of Kerry Logistics Network Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0636) which is principally
engaged in logistics, IPO project of eprint Group Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1884) which is principally engaged in internet
printing, spin-off listing in respect of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1249) which is principally engaged in
production of electronics products of TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070) which is principally
engaged in production of electronics products, very substantial acquisition project
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0966) which is principally engaged in insurance,
and IPO (both A share and H share) project of China Aluminium International
Engineering Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2068) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601068) which is
principally engaged in nonferrous engineering design and construction.

Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000590)
since 21 May 2020.

LI HUIQUN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr Li Huigun (“Dr. Li"), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 18 October 2021.

Dr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics, a master’s degree in economics
and a doctorate degree in economics from the School of Economics of Wuhan
University, Hubei Province, China in 1988, 1991 and 1994, respectively. Dr. Li has
extensive experience in the banking and financial markets sector. From April 1994
to October 2015, she served as head of several divisions and on vice-president
level positions in the Shenzhen Central Branch of the People’s Bank of China, in
charge of the Money and Credit Division, the Financial Research Office, the Bullion
Management Division, labour union work and management of human resources.
From November 2015 to June 2021, she has been the vice president of Shenzhen
Rural Commercial Bank in charge of asset management, financial market and inter-
bank business and management of the Qianhai branch.
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Ms. Xing Zhumei (“Ms. Xing”), aged 51, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in November 2020, responsible for the Group’s financial reporting,
corporate finance activities and investor relations matters.

Ms. Xing has approximately 26 years of experience in accounting and audit. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xing served as an accountant at Zhengzhou Fruit and Food
Corporation* (&5 71 R BB X422 7)) from July 1995 to December 2004. She then
served as the chief accountant in Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (JA/Fg [E
EE AR A F]) from January 2005 to April 2017 and as the chief financial officer in
Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology Co., Ltd.* (/] &3 5 3 ) Bt
MEBERE AR A R]) from May 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, she served
as the chief accountant in Zensun Group Limited (IE & 4% E AR A 7)) from October
2019 to September 2020.

Ms. Xing obtained her bachelor’s degree in auditing from Zhengzhou University in
1995. She received her qualified accounting certificate (medium level) in 2002 from
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (Fh# A R R B Bf B &F) and certified tax agent
certificate in 2003 from Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province* (AIRI& A 1 &R REEEE). Ms. Xing is @ member of Henan
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (] B s it & 5HEM 1 ).

Mr. Yuen Ping Man (Dickman) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 58, is the Company
Secretary and the Chief Operating Officer (Hong Kong) responsible for the Group’s
corporate secretarial functions and business operations.

Mr. Yuen has over 25 years of managerial experience in corporate secretarial,
business development, human resources and general administration. Mr. Yuen
was previously the chief operating officer of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress
Finance”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company responsible for
compliance, human resource, operations, sales and marketing, customer service
and general administration of Xpress Finance. Xpress Finance was a non-bank
MasterCard issuer and a licenced money-lender financial institution. Prior to joining
Xpress Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups and a financial
institution in managerial position.

Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Chartered Governance Institute (U.K.), the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and Society of Registered Financial
Planners, a senior member of The Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a professional
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management, a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (U.K.).

Mr. Yuen holds a master’s degree in business administration and is also a certified
risk planner.

Ms. Leung Ka Ying (Priscilla) (“Ms. Leung”), aged 35, joined the Company in
April 2016 as Financial Controller and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting and financial management functions. Ms. Leung obtained her
bachelor’s degree in business administration in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008. She is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 14 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Leung worked as a manager in PwC and finance manager of a Hong Kong listed
group.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property development, property investment, project
management services and securities trading and investment. The activities and
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for
the Year is set out in the notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 85.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was founded in 1965, and is currently focused on property
development, property investment, project management services and securities
trading and investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas.

A detailed business review for the Year, including further discussions of important
events occurred since the end of the financial year, likely future development of the
Group’s business and financial performance review with financial key performance
indicators, are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 6 to 10, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 26 to 38 and “Financial Summary” on page 191
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

A review in relation to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on our business is set out
under "Management Discussion and Analysis" on page 30.

The Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Under our current risk management and internal control system, regular review of
the principal risks and uncertainties that may affect the Group’s financial condition,
results of operations, business and prospects are maintained. There may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the following key risk areas and uncertainties
currently identified by the Group.

The performance of the Group’s property development business in the PRC is
susceptible to the national regulatory control measures and polices implemented
under the COVID-19 pandemic and also those restricting the purchase of
properties, and the general downturn in macro economic environment in the
PRC. Any changes in the national measures and policies may also penetrate into
the overall national economic conditions, and influence changes in consumer
confidence, consumption spending and preferences in property market in the PRC.
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The Group’s operation is also subject to certain risk factors pertaining to property
development business in the PRC, including lack of availability of potential land
resources in the PRC, escalation of construction cost due to inflation and the
supply shortage, default on the part of our customers, construction contractors,
business partners and tenants, adverse weather conditions, other unexpected
inadequacies or failure of internal process or other external factors may have
various levels of risk on the Group’s operations. Liquidity issues of certain property
developers have further worsened the public confidence in the real estate market.

The Group’s capital risk management and financial risk management are set out in
notes 33 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with
the possible risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies,
policies and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely
and formulate business strategies to respond to risk promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures and adjusts the development pace to
minimise any potential business impact on the Group from these possible risks and
uncertainties.

In 2021, the Group implemented strategy in expanding our project management
business in order to diversify our income streams.

Key stakeholder relationships

To build a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group recognise its employees, customers and business partners being the
key stakeholders and maintain a continuous dialogue with them. The Group is
dedicated to establish a close and supporting relationship with its employees,
provide quality products and services to customers and strengthen all kinds of
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a healthy and safe workplace, career development
opportunities and competitive remuneration and benefits to employees based
on their qualifications in accordance with industry practice in the geographical
locations in which they are located. To treasure its loyal and industrious staff
members and improve their performance at their positions, different forms of
rewards and compensation including salaries, provident fund, performance bonus,
insurance coverage, or share options, etc, will be considered and reviewed on an
annual basis based on performance appraisals for eligible employees.

Maintaining close relationship with its customers as well as tenants are paramount
to the long-term success for the Group. Interacting channels with customers and
tenants are established to identify and respond to the dynamic market needs
proactively, improve the quality of products and services to adhere to customers’
needs and preference timely. In the long run, it fosters customer recognition of the
brand of the Group with a trust-worthy basis.

The Group is also committed to developing fair and co-operating business
partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure stability of the Group’s
operation. Through a series of standardised procurement process including
quotation or tender procedures, cost and quality of the procurement supply of the
Group are able to be monitored, assessed and evaluated reasonably. The Group
continuously upholds an effective communication with suppliers to deliver quality
products and services to customers for long-term sustainability.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant
to the operations of the Group.

Environmental policy

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of businesses and
communities with which it engages. We pursue this business approach by
managing our business prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention to balance the sustainable business growth and environmental
protection.

The Group endeavours to make improvements by promoting environmental friendly
policies in the Group’s operations and increasing the employee’s awareness over
environmental protection. By means of advocating eco-friendly and reusable
materials, paper-recycling and energy saving measures on office equipment and
appliances, it helps enhance efficient use of resources, energy efficiency and
reduction of waste.

The Group is committed to act in an environmentally responsible manner to
review its environmental protection policies and activities from time to time for
implementation of any further measures and practices on environmental protection
in the business operation.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in “Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio” on page 11, “Property
Development Project Summary in the PRC” on pages 14 to 25 and “Particulars of
Major Investment Properties” on page 192.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The
revaluation for the Year resulted a fair value loss approximately RMB104,000 which
has been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 9 August 2021, the proposed consolidation of the Company’s Shares on
the basis of every ten existing Shares consolidated into one consolidated Share
became effective. Further details of the share consolidation can be referred to
the Company’s announcements dated 18 June 2021 and 5 August 2021 and our
circular dated 21 July 2021.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 89.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately RMB607.5 million.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB6.1 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of
the Company ("Articles of Association") or the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata
basis.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their shareholding in the Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 191.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the Year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Year.

CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company entered into the placing agreement dated 24 November 2020
with the placing agent and agreed to issue by allotment of up to 1,526,090,000
new ordinary Shares under the general mandate at the placing price of HK$0.46
per placing Share. The net proceeds from placing amounting to approximately
HK$698.9 million were intended to be applied towards (i) 90% on repayment of
bank and other borrowings which were due on or before 31 December 2021; and
(i) 10% on general working capital of the Group. The placing was completed on
18 December 2020 and the Company issued 1,526,090,000 new ordinary Shares
under the general mandate pursuant to the terms of the placing agreement. During
the Year, the remaining unutilised proceeds brought forward from 31 December
2020 of approximately HK$497.1 million have been fully utilised towards the
Group’s intended use of proceeds.
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DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

On 14 September 2021, the Company completed the issuance of senior notes at
a principal amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on
13 September 2023 which comprises the issuance of US$142.42 million new notes
pursuant to the exchange offer (‘Exchange Offer”) and the issuance of US$57.58
million new notes in the concurrent new money issuance (“Concurrent New Money
Issuance”). The senior notes were unsecured and guaranteed by an intermediate
holding company of the Company (“Parent Guarantor”) and certain subsidiaries of
the Parent Guarantor. The senior notes proceeds is intended to refinance existing
medium to long term offshore indebtedness, which will become due within one
year. Details of the Exchange Offer and Concurrent New Money Issuance are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 31 August 2021, 8 September 2021,
9 September 2021, 13 September 2021 and 14 September 2021.

On 23 September 2021, the Company completed the issuance of senior notes at
a principal amount of US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 28 April 2024 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase
agreement. The senior notes were unsecured and guaranteed by Parent Guarantor
and certain subsidiaries of the Parent Guarantor. The senior notes proceeds is
intended to refinance existing medium to long term offshore indebtedness, which
will become due within one year. Details of the senior notes issuance are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 16 September 2021, 17 September 2021,
23 September 2021 and 24 September 2021.

The two senior notes are listed and traded on the Stock Exchange.
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and present Directors up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Jingguo
Zhang Guogiang

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:
Huang Yanping

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Liu Da

Liu Qiao
Ma Yuntao
Li Huiqun

(resigned on 18 October 2021)

(appointed on 18 October 2021)
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(b)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of Articles of Association and
pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of the 2021 CG Code, Mr. Zhang
Guogiang and Mr. Liu Da will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 7 June 2022 (the
“2022 AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. In
accordance with Article 83 of Articles of Association, Dr. Li Huiqun, who
was appointed by the Board as an independent non-Executive Director
with effect from 18 October 2021 will retire as a Director and, being eligible,
offer herself for re-election at the 2022 AGM. Details of the Directors to be
re-elected at the 2022 AGM are set out in the circular to the Shareholders
which will be sent together with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 39 to 43.

Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Bai Mengjun
Bie Sanjiang
Chen Jiguo
Chen Weibing
Feng Hongfeng
Geng Chong
Guo Wei
Huang Yanping
Jeffrey Busch
Liu Chuanke
Liu Hai

Liu Zhengiang
Lu Hong Yan
Meng Yuming
Tan Shumei
Wang Jinhu
Wang Liang
Wen Sifang
Xing Zhumei
Zhang Huiqi
Zhang Guogiang
Zhang Jianmin
Zhang Jingguo
Zhou Bing

(appointed on 18 October 2021)

(appointed on 3 November 2021)

(resigned on 14 September 2021)

(appointed on 22 March 2021)

(b)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 9, 28 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 28 and 41 to the consolidated financial statements
in relation to the financial assistance provided by the controlling shareholder
of the Company to the Group and the transactions disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements and also detailed under sections headed “Related
Party Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and there was no
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the five highest
paid employees of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or any interests and short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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0] Interest in the Shares of the Company (i) RARERRAD P R
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company (%)
Number of FOR RN
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held Shares held BRITRAE
EEMA EnaEsHh RO E Aokt
Mr. Zhang Spousal interest (Note 1) 1,377,520,893 71.99
RACHE Be i@ (A1)
Ms. Huang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,877,520,893 71.99
Huangzz 4 SR ER (M T2)
Notes: Mt -
(1) Mr. Zhang (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of 1) REE(RRAAER - THERFKWNITE

the Company) is the spouse of Ms. Huang, under SFO, he is deemed to
be interested in 1,377,520,893 Shares in which Ms. Huang is interested.

2) 1,377,520,893 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO.
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Long Positions

(i

L3y}

Interest in ordinary shares of associated corporations of the Company (i)

AR BREEE BB M2

Bk

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Capacity in which the Number of the issued share

Name of Director associated corporation interests are held share held capital (%)

i QEHEBCEEC BT

EEHE HEEE AR ERBEESH KRB E RAEZEDHE

Ms. Huang Superior Glory Interest of controlled 1 100

Enterprises Limited corporation (Note)

HuangZ + T EE S (M)

Ms. Huang Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled 100 100

corporation (Note)

HuangZ 4 RiEEE R (M)

Ms. Huang Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled 1 100

corporation (Note)

HuangZ & FEEEBRAA R EEE S (M)

Ms. Huang Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1 100

HuangZ + BEnEB AHE)

Note: 1,377,520,893 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which are HizE © 1,877,620,893 & B% {0 H Joy Town Inc. B
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as #E  ERLBHaungZ TR EAZ T
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. A MR A K 8 Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group Limited EAZFE AR 2 #EE#ESR - Joy
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in Town Inc. HIEBEEBEERARLEREA ° IE
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire 7% £ [ A R 2 8 ANotable Reward Limited 2
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets 2 & KB 2 7 » M Notable Reward Limited
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited, /1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the £ -+ 1M Superior Glory Enterprises Limited &
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company HE BT A2 EEFERIEE © Superior
under SFO. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is the sole director of Zensun Group Limited + IER & B AR 2 & &Joy Town Inc.
Limited. HRARGBIZERAR BEE£8AEFESF L

EIEPIBTARE 2 HEEEE © HuangZZ 74
Joy Town Inc. &% Notable Reward Limited 2 1
—EF MREEREMEEBRAF ZME—
Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, chief B ESCEEEESN 0 A2021F12A31H © R&E

executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted to approximately 0.5% of the total revenue in the Year and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue in the Year.

During the Year, save for Ms. Huang’s interest in Ever Diamond Global Company
Limited (“Ever Diamond”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Ever Diamond Group”),
being one of the five largest customers of the Group, none of our Directors, or any
of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders (who to the best knowledge
of our Directors own more than 5% of our Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in our Group’s five largest customers. For details of the interest of Ms.
Huang in the transactions with Ever Diamond Group, please refer to the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”.

During the Year, purchases attributable to the largest supplier of the Group
amounted to approximately 27.3% of the total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 36.3% of the Group’s
purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5.0% of our
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by certain Directors
entered into transactions with the Group which are disclosed in notes 27, 28 and
41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Zensun Development
Group

In 2015, a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) has been
entered into between the Company and Henan Zensun Corporate Development
Group Limited* (A EfmtEEEEEERE LA A) (“Zensun Development”),
pursuant to which, Zensun Development has agreed to provide, or procure
members of Zensun Development, its subsidiaries and/or any other company in the
equity capital of which Zensun Development and/or any of its subsidiaries taken
together are directly or interested so as to exercise or control 30% or more voting
power at general meetings, or to control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors, and the subsidiaries of such company (the “Zensun Development
Group”) to provide construction and related ancillary services to the Group
according to the definitive agreement(s) signed between Zensun Development
Group and the Group from time to time. On 21 February 2017, the Company
and Zensun Development entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2017
Supplemental Agreement”) to, among other matters, extend the effective term of
the Master Services Agreement to 31 December 2019. On 11 October 2018, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Zensun Development (2018
Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the effective terms of the Master
Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental Agreement to be
three years from 1 January 2018 and continue up to 31 December 2020.

On 21 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2021 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from
1 January 2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023 and the
annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023 are RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and RMB1,778 million, respectively.
The 2021 Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were
approved by independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 December 2020. For details of the terms of the 2021 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 18 November 2020.

As Zensun Development is owned as to 90%, 9% and 1% by Beijing Xiangcheng
Investment Co., Ltd.* (b ZREEHKIEEABRE A A (“Xiangcheng Investment”), Ms.
Zhang Huiqgi (“Ms. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang, respectively. Xiangcheng Investment
is owned as to 98% by Ms. Zhang and Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Huang, an Executive Director and the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Zensun Development is therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (the
“2021 Annual Cap”) approved for the continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Zensun Development Group under the 2021 Master Services
Agreement was RMB3,212 million and the actual transacted amounts were
approximately RMB2,434.4 million, which did not exceed the 2021 Annual Cap.
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Continuing Connected Transactions with Ever Diamond Group

On 4 November 2019, the management and sales services framework agreement
(“Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Ever Diamond, pursuant to which, the Ever Diamond
Group appointed the Group as its service provider to provide the management
services and the sales services to the Ever Diamond Group during the period from
the effective date of the Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement
up to and including 31 December 2021 and the annual caps for each of the three
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB220
million, RMB310 million and RMB200 million, respectively. Relevant members of
the Ever Diamond Group may from time to time enter into individual agreement(s)
with members of the Group in relation to the provision of the management services
and sales services, subject to the terms and conditions of the Management and
Sales Services Framework Agreement. The Management and Sales Services
Framework Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were approved by
the independent Shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 20 December 2019. For the details of the terms of the Management and
Sales Services Framework Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular
dated 3 December 2019.

The entire issue share capital of Ever Diamond is wholly owned by a discretionary
trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector, the discretionary trust is
interested in approximately 71.99% of the issued share capital of the Company. As
such, Ever Diamond is a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2021
approved for the continuing connected transactions between the Group and the
Ever Diamond Group under the Management and Sales Services Framework
Agreement was RMB200 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB61.6 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Xingye Wulian Group

On 18 February 2020, the master property engineering framework agreement
(“Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (“Xingye Wulian”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Xingye Wulian Group”), pursuant to which,
the Group appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide
property engineering services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement up to and including 31
December 2022 and the annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB18.5 million, RMB26.5 million
and RMB34 million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group
may from time to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the
Group in relation to the provision of property engineering services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020 and 23 April 2020.
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During the Year, the annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement was RMB26.5 million and the actual
transacted amount was approximately RMB16.9 million, which did not exceed the
above mentioned annual cap.

On 18 February 2020, the master property management framework agreement
(“Master Property Management Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian, pursuant to which, the Group appointed
the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide property management
and value-added services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement up to and including
31 December 2022. On 28 August 2020, the Company further entered into a
supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with Xingye Wulian to amend
certain terms of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement to revise
the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending 31 December 2022.
The revised annual cap for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB21 million, RMB66 million and RMB66
million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from time
to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation
to the provision of property management and value-added services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Management Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Management Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28
August 2020.

During the Year, the revised annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Supplemental
Agreement was RMB66 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB29.1 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

The entire issued share capital of Xingye Wulian is indirectly owned as to
approximately 56.59% by the Blossom Trust, which is controlled by Ms. Zhang
as the protector. Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company and Ms. Huang, the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Xingye Wulian is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the Master Property Management
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and
(ii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has also issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the Board that for the
Year, nothing has come to their attention that in respect of: a) the continuing
connected transactions governed by the 2021 Master Services Agreement: (i)
have not received the approval of the Board; (ii) are not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (iii) have not been entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the
year ended 31 December 2021 by the Company in respect of the continuing
connected transactions; b) the continuing connected transactions governed by the
Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement: (i) have not received the
approval of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group; (iii) have been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such transactions, and (iv) have
exceeded the relevant annual cap as set for the year ended 31 December 2021
by the Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions; and c) the
continuing connected transactions governed by the Master Property Engineering
Framework Agreement, Master Property Management Framework Agreement as
amended by the Supplemental Agreement: (i) have not received the approval of the
Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Group; (i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded
the relevant annual cap as set for the year ended 31 December 2021 by the
Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company are as follows:

FERR

R2021F12 8318 ' IRIBEARFERES & EE KD
EXVEPEIBBIETEZ RGO MABBERDESE AR E
ft URBEEEB AT EH A RS % AT
E o BEEKMEREARRQRRD REBRGKD5%3 A £
BREZ AL (BERAAREBITHRAERINAT

Long positions in the Shares of the Company REATRGZHAE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Shares held Company (%)
KRR DT E BT
BREREBE ERME FERBEE RAEABDL
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Trustee (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
Pte Limited EREA(HIEE)
Superior Glory Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
Enterprises Limited Ry E s (M)
Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
AR (M)
Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99
EEEBEERAA Ry E s (M)
Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1,377,520,893 71.99

mamEAANME)

Note:

These Shares are directly owned by Joy Town Inc., which are ultimately owned by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra Trust
(Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire issued
share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets of the trust. Ms.
Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is
the sole director of Zensun Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person other than the
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares that was required to be recorded in
the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors was interested in any business,
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s businesses except that Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang are individually
and collectively deemed interested in Zensun International Holdings Company
Limited and/or its subsidiaries and associated companies which are engaged in
construction, property development and related business in the PRC.

As the Board is independent of the boards of these companies, the Company has
therefore been) capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm’s length from, the above businesses.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Jingguo resigned as a non-executive director of Bank of Zhengzhou
Co. Ltd., whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
002930) and on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 6196) with effect from 17 June 2021.

Mr. Zhang Guogiang appointed as a director of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd.,
a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637) with
effect from 27 August 2021.

It was resolved by the remuneration committee of the Company and the Board
on 18 October 2021, the Company entered into new service agreements with Mr.
Zhang Jingguo, Mr. Zhang Guogiang, Ms. Huang Yanping, Mr. Liu Da and Mr.
Ma Yuntao, directors of the Company on 18 October 2021 with same terms as
the existing service agreements. Save as disclosed, there is no other change of
particulars of the Directors or chief executives of the Company as required under
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The purpose of the 2013 Scheme is to motivate eligible
persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2013
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended. Eligible persons of the 2013 Scheme include (i) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group; (ii) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii)
a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional services to any member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or tenant
(including a sub-tenant) of any member of the Group. Subject to the terms of the
2013 Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time during the life of the 2013
Scheme to offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in
its absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by the
Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the 2013 Scheme, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated with
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general meeting
approving the 2013 Scheme on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options) of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The period
within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2013 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the annual general meeting approving the 2013 Scheme
on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from the Shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any time
not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share options is
accepted.

During the Year, no share options under the 2013 Scheme were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company
has no outstanding share options under the 2013 Scheme.

As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2013 Scheme is 35,006,863
shares, representing 1.8% of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date
of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Retirement benefit
scheme and pension scheme” set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 64 to 76.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders to be its goal.
According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(if) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(iif) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(vi) the Shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;
(wvii) the general market conditions; and
(viii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association and any other applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
throughout the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claims of material importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or
against the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

Details of the important events since the year end are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM will be held on Tuesday, 7 June 2022 and the notice of the 2022
AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM expected to be held on Tuesday, 7 June 2022, the register
of members of the Company expected to be closed on Wednesday, 1 June 2022
to Tuesday, 7 June 2022, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents should be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Friendly Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong expected not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 31 May 2022.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Emst & Young, who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

25 March 2022
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
formulate good corporate governance practice to improve accountability and
transparency in operations, and strengthen the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the expectations
of the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
(“Code Provision(s)”) and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
effective up to 31 December 2021 (“2021 CG Code”) throughout the Year, save for
the deviations which are explained below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered as
C.5.1), Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly internals. Although only two regular Board meetings were held during the
Year, the Board considered that sufficient meetings had been held as business
operations were under the management and the supervision of the executive
Directors. In addition, senior management of the Group has provided to the
Directors the information in respect of the Group’s business development and
activities from time to time and, when required, ad hoc Board meetings were held
to discuss matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered
as C.2.1), the roles of chairman and chief executive of the Company should
be segregated. The Company is of the view that it is in the best interest of the
Company that Mr. Zhang with his profound expertise in the property business, shall
continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the current Board composition and
structure taking into account the background and experience of the Directors.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the model code as set out in Appendix 10 (“Model
Code”) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the relevant employees of the Group who are considered likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company or its securities on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the securities
of the Company pursuant to Code Provision A.6.4 of the 2021 CG Code (currently
numbered as C.1.3). To the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant
employees have complied with the required standard of such code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging its corporate
accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the interests of its
Shareholders and fulfil his fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills,
care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and strategic business
directions, and monitoring business performances through implementation
of adequate risk management and internal control systems. The executive
Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of the Group, operational and business decisions within the control
and delegation framework of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors (including
independent Non-Executive Directors) contribute valuable views, professional
opinions and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the 2021 CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board committees, details of
which are set out below.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial
and operational matters.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It has carried out
review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of financial
and operational compliance of the Group.

The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from voting at such
Board meeting and the independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs
of the Company and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments
on an annual basis.
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During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held two times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management of the Group. At least 14 days’
notice for each regular meeting is given to all Directors. All such minutes are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the regular Board
meetings, the Chairman also met with the independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the Year.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised six Directors including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical details of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 39 to 43.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning of
the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed by the Board, as well as
providing strategic direction of the Group, take primary responsibility for ensuring
good corporate governance practices with necessary procedures established and
also together with other executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s daily
operations and the effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors
As at 31 December 2021, there were two Executive Directors including Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Guogiang. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang.

Non-Executive Director
As at 31 December 2021 there was one NED, Ms. Huang. Ms. Huang is the
spouse of Mr. Zhang.

Independent Non-Executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 December 2021, there were three INEDs including Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma
Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. With Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu
Da’s working experience and their academic background in economics, finance
and accounting, the Company considers that they are qualified persons with
appropriate professional knowledge in accounting and finance as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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The Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the NED and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with the Company for a term of three years and under which all
Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years, and no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of three years, or past the
third annual general meeting, following the Director’s appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision A.3.2 of the 2021 CG Code (currently numbered as
B.1.2), an updated list of the Directors identifying their role and function are available on
the websites of the Company (www.zensunenterprises.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkex.com.hk). The Company will review the composition of the Board from time
to time to ensure that the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise,
skill and experience to meet the needs of the Group’s business and to enhance the
shareholders’ value.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders and have
exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of
the Group. Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of his or her
duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable statutory and regulatory
rules and requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
so as to develop and refresh directors’ knowledge and skills and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors
in respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing Rules, the SFO
or guidelines, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and relevant financial or
accounting standards which may be of the interest to Directors. During the Year,
all Directors have complied with the Code Provisions in relation to continuous
professional development, apart from reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business, director’s duties and responsibilities. Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Mr. Zhang
Guogiang, Ms. Huang Yanping, Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun also
attended and/or gave presentation in seminars/forums. The Company updates
Directors constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group’s business
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have
provided to the Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such
records have been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive
record keeping.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) to
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs with respective terms of reference. Details of the Board committees are
discussed below.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice at the
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances.

Attendance of Directors at various meetings
During the Year, details of the Directors’ attendance in the following meetings are
set out below:
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HESHRE BITERRE

Annual Extraordinary
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
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Executive Directors
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Mr. Zhang Jingguo 2/2 N/A 11 11 11 11
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Mr. Zhang Guogiang 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 11 1/1
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NED

FHTES

Ms. Huang Yanping 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
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INEDs

BYFHITES

Dr. Liu Qiao (Note 1) 2/2 2/2 11 11 11 1/1
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Mr. Liu Da 2/2 2/2 N/A 11 11 1/1
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Mr. Ma Yuntao 2/2 2/2 1/1 N/A 1/1 1/1

BER S E TE A

Dr. Li Huigun (Note 2) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
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and the Remuneration Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination REZEeNEMEECeRANKEREREZEESN:
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2. Dr. Li Huigun was appointed as an INED, a member of each of the Audit 2, ZEBETN2021FE10 818 EEE ABIIEHNITE
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the Chairman of the 5 EREZEeNFMEEeLANKE RNIERES

Nomination Committee on 18 October 2021.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including reassessment of the financial and accounting policies, review of interim
reports, annual reports and financial information, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board, to be put
to its Shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting (*“AGM”), in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review and
supervision of the external auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity,
the effectiveness of the audit procedures; formulation of policies on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor; handling any issues related to the
resignation or the removal of such auditor and the communication with the external
auditor on auditing matters.

As at 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Liu Da, Mr. Ma Yuntao and Dr. Li Huiqun who are all INEDs. Mr. Liu
Da is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The most up-to-date version of the
written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit
Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021;

(if) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems;

(iii) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit
findings;

(iv) reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v) reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors;
and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices.

After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect
of the Group, and concluded at the meeting held on 25 March 2022 that the risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and effective.

On 25 March 2022, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021, including the accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee therefore
resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Emst
& Young as the auditor of the Company and that the relevant resolution shall be
put forth for it Shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2022 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and packages of the
Directors and senior management to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as the prevailing market conditions. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data for the
Remuneration Committee’s consideration.

As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao. Dr. Li
Huigun and Mr. Ma Yuntao are INEDs while Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an Executive
Director. Mr. Ma Yuntao is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
most up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of
Executive Directors, NED and INEDs.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE AND BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board regularly and make any changes
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, including making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board that assist
complementation of the Company’s corporate policy.

As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da. Mr. Zhang Jingguo is
an executive Director while Dr. Li Huiqun and Mr. Liu Da are INEDs. Dr. Li Huiqun
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Board had
reviewed the current structure and composition of the Board and recommended
Mr. Zhang Jingguo and Dr. Liu Qiao to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the AGM held on 8 June 2021 pursuant to Articles 78 and 79 of
the Articles of Association and Code Provision A.4.2 of the 2021 CG Code.

Under Article 78 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-quarter of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of four, the number
nearest to one-fourth) shall retire from office by rotation. According to Article 83
of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall hold office only until the next
following AGM, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years by rotation or offers himself
for re-election.
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The Company notes increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced
development. The Company adopted a diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
Board composition on behalf of the Board and will recommend the appointment of new
Director, when necessary, pursuant to the Diversity Policy.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered based
on the Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors based on
the Company’s business model, specific needs and meritocracy from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

During the Year, the Board comprises six Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
NED and three INEDs, and as at 31 December 2021, out of the six directors, there are
four male directors and two female directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity,
whether considered in terms of professional experience, skill and knowledge. Having
reviewed the Diversity Policy and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is
satisfied that the requirements set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, remuneration paid or payable to
the Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young for the Group’s audit services was
RMB2,380,000 and non-audit services was RMB390,000. Non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group for the Year were in relation to the senior
notes issued by the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual and
interim results of the Group are published in a timely manner, within three months
and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 77 to 84.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including a review on their
effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems, under a defined management
structure with limits of authority, are designed for the Group to identify and
manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and efficiency of
its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for reliable
financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Group’s risk profile within its
acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management process from
risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk responses and
regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems are effectively
established and maintained.

The risk management process is structured from management of the Group from
respective business functions at execution level to the Board, together assisted
by the Audit Committee in decision-making and monitoring level. Management of
the Group identifies, assesses and prioritises the key existing and potential risks
through a detailed assessment process and determines the appropriate mitigation
strategies and control measures in response to the identified risks. Ongoing
evaluation and monitoring of the identified risks, respective measures, and results
are carried out and reported to the Board regularly. The Board at decision-making
level, assisted by the Audit Committee, reviews the risk appetite, risk management
process and strategies and also the internal control systems and provide
recommendations for any improvement on the systems on an ongoing basis to
ensure risk management effectiveness.

The establishment of the internal audit & compliance department promote the
importance and construction of the compliance into the corporate culture, monitor
the effectiveness of the existing internal controls system of the Group, and provide
reasonable assurance to the Board for oversight of the internal control system
operated by the management.
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The internal audit & compliance department conducts regular interal audit review
across principal divisions of the Group, and, on a regular basis reports their finding
results with improvements directly to the Audit Committee to ensure the internal
controls are in place and adopted properly and effectively as intended. The scope
of internal audit review included principal divisions from finance department, risk
management department, treasury department, purchasing department and
sales department, etc. to ensure material controls have been covered during
the internal audit review process. Any matter or areas of improvement shall be
communicated to the divisional management and had them followed up on a timely
basis. Upon review of the Annual Risk Management and Internal Control System
Report conducted by the internal audit & compliance department, the Audit
Committee and the Board reviews and evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control system, on a regular basis.

The Board's annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 has
considered, among other things, (i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (i) the scope and quality of the
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems
(including the work of internal audit function); (iii) the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems (including the extent and frequency of
monitoring results to the Board or the Audit Committee); and (iv) the effectiveness of
the Company's processes for financial reporting and the Listing Rules compliance.
The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view there are no material internal
control defects identified by the internal audit & compliance department during
the course of internal audit review. With the discussion between management, the
internal audit & compliance department and the Audit Committee, the Board (with
the concurrence of the Audit Committee) considered that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The review of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group is an ongoing process
and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthening the Group’s
internal control environment and processes.

The Company formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior
management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements. Procedures for collection, evaluation of
information and the publication manner are in place to ensure timely reporting of
the inside information to the Board and the stakeholders of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. Mr. Yuen Ping Man, the Company
Secretary is a full time employee of the Company. He has confirmed that he has
attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biography is set out on page 43
of this annual report in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with its Shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in
public disclosures by the Company. Any significant events of the Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard its
Shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The Board considers that the
annual general meeting is an important opportunity for direct communication with
its Shareholders. The notice of the annual general meeting together with relevant
documents will be sent out to its Shareholders at least 20 business days prior to
the date on which the annual general meeting will be held. The notice contains
details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as other relevant information
related to the proposed resolutions.

Annual General Meeting

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor will also attend
the annual general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

Shareholders’ Rights

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)
Shareholders may request the Directors to convene an EGM of the
company. The Directors are required to call an EGM if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings. Such request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the EGM and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the EGM. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it.

The Directors are required to call an EGM within 21 days after the date on
which the Directors become subject to the requirement. The EGM called
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not call an EGM, the Shareholders who requested the
meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call the EGM.
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(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
meeting

Eligible Shareholders (as defined below) may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the annual general meeting (the
“Request”). “Eligible Shareholder(s)” means:

(i) Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(ii) at least 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The Request may be sent to the Company (a) in hard copy form or in
electronic form; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company must then send a copy of the resolution at the Company’s
own expense to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
(b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.

An Eligible Shareholder may request the Company to circulate, to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting; or (b) other business
to be dealt with at that meeting (the “Statement”).

The expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement need not be paid
by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of the statement
if (@) the meeting to which the requests relate is an annual general meeting
of the Company; and (b) requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, (a) the expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement
must be paid by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of
the Statement unless the Company resolves otherwise; and (b) unless the
Company has previously so resolved, it is not bound to comply with the
circulation of the Statement unless there is deposited with or tendered to
it, not later than 7 days before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet its expenses in doing so.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

A shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the registered office
of the Company at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 WWyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, Shareholders can contact Tricor Friendly Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

(2)

(3)
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association of the Company during the
Year. A copy of the latest version is available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company’s website.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the Company to
the Shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as Shareholders. The Company disclaims all
liabilities and losses incurred by the Shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A BET R

Ernst & Young ZXKETH ST

27/F, One Taikoo Place BEHRF

979 King’s Road HEEITIR
EYﬁj( Quarry Bay, Hong Kong Ao —RE27i2

To the members of Zensun Enterprises Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zensun Enterprises
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 85
to 190, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

BARERER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFZIL1E

As at 31 December 2021, investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB531,595,000, which was material to the consolidated financial statements.
To support management’s assessment of the fair value of the properties, it is the
Group’s policy that property valuations are performed by external appraisers at the
end of the reporting period.

Significant judgement is required to determine the fair values of the investment
properties, which reflect market conditions as at the end of the year. The use of
different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of fair values.

The accounting policies and disclosures of the valuation of investment properties
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANERNNEEEREREE

We performed the following procedures to address
valuation of investment properties:

- We evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer, and
assessing the valuation approach used by the
external valuer;

= We involved our internal valuation experts to
assess the reasonableness of the assumptions
such as the market rent, term yield and
reversion yield used in the valuations by
comparing them to available industry data,
taking into consideration comparability and
market factors;

- We tested the accuracy of the property related
data used as inputs for the valuations; and

= We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BREZER
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HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWERONEERRERSE

Assessment of net realisable values of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

AR ERP YR RIFEL B2 EX T YR Al 25 % (E

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of properties under development
(“PUD”) and completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) situated in Mainland China
were approximately RMB47,834,930,000 and RMB9,028,002,000, respectively.
The Group carried out assessment on the net realisable values at the end of the
reporting period and compared them to the costs.

This matter was significant to our audit because the determination of net realisable
values of PUD and PHS involved critical accounting estimates on the selling price,
variable selling expenses and estimated costs to completion of PUD.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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We performed the following procedures to address
the assessment of the net realisable values of PUD
and PHS:

= We understood, evaluated and validated the
internal control over the Group’s process
in determining the net realisable values of
PUD and PHS based on prevailing market
conditions;

- We assessed the reasonableness of
management’s key estimates:

(i) We compared the estimated selling
price to the recent market transactions,
such as the Group’s selling price of
the pre-sale units in the same project
or the prevailing market price of the
comparable properties with similar size,
usage and location;

(i) We compared the estimated
percentage with the actual average
selling expenses to revenue ratio of the
Group in the current year; and

(iif) We reconciled the estimated costs to
completion to the budgets approved
by management and examined, on
a sample basis, the construction
contracts or compared them to the
actual costs of similar completed
properties of the Group; and

— We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BREZER

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

T EER ([ LIS E T )R

The subsidiaries of the Company that are engaged in property development in
Mainland China are subject to LAT. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of land
value. At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group estimates
the provision for LAT based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant
tax rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less total
deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use rights, property
development costs, borrowing costs and development expenditure. When the
LAT is subsequently determined, the actual payments may be different from the
estimates. For the year ended 31 December 2021, LAT provision of approximately
RMB126,325,000 was recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the provision for LAT are included in
notes 3 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWERONEERRERSE

We performed the following procedures to address
provision for LAT:

- We involved our internal tax specialists to
perform a review on the LAT provision,
including the review of the estimates and
assumptions used by the Group;

- We tested the underlying data used to evaluate
LAT provision, including estimated total sales,
property development costs, borrowing costs
and tax rates;

= We recalculated the tax computation and
comparing our calculations with the amounts
recorded by the Group; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BREZER

Impairment of goodwill

EERE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB424,722,000. In accordance with HKFRSSs,
the Group is required to perform an impairment test for goodwill at least on an
annual basis. The impairment test of goodwill is based on the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is the value in use using cash flow projections
based on a financial budget. Management, assisted by an external valuer,
evaluated the impairment of goodwill by comparing the recoverable amount and
the carrying value of the cash-generating unit. This matter was significant to our
audit because the impairment test process was complex and involved significant
judgements and estimates.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, and
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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HREELEE(R)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWERONEERRERSE

We performed the following procedures to address
the assessment of impairment of goodwill:

- We obtained an understanding of the process
of estimating the future cash flows;

- We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external appraiser used
by management;

- We evaluated management’s main
assumptions including the discount rate and
estimated construction completion and pre-
sale period;

- We examined the differences between
cash flow projections and actual cash flows
and checked the cash flow projection by
comparing it to the market available data and
industry outlook;

- We involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the discount rate; and

= We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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EBREXEARAA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B A BET R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Zensun Enterprises Limited

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2021  #HZE2021F12 A31H IEF[E

Annual Report 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

TR —FFH 8

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARBT T
REVENUE Uk 25 5 13,421,496 8,069,061
Cost of sales SHE A (12,158,760) (6,322,783)
Gross profit EF 1,262,736 1,746,278
Other income E A 5 44,024 27,520
Other gains and losses, net H bz & E518)F 58 6 (71,192) (86,030)
Administrative expenses THER (237,360) (205,198)
Sales and marketing expenses HERTHEERER (249,643) (181,012)
Finance costs B AN 7 (89,917) (79,686)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A& F 8 658,648 1,221,872
Income tax expense Bl 11 (273,606) (443,499)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEER 385,042 778,373
Attributable to: TFI& T L
Owners of the Company RARER A 399,470 782,988
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M 2 (14,428) (4,615)
385,042 778,373
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO  Z&A R#H& AL
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRER
(Restated)
(&=71)
Basic (RMB cents) HEAR(ARES) 13 20.9 70.4
Diluted E N/A N/A
TEA TEMA
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIV

mEEHWRER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 831 HIEFE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 385,042 778,373
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HEh 2w
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to AlgE R E BRI EN » EEEx=

profit or loss in subsequent periods: 2B
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations HMEEINEEMEL ZE X Z5 3,300 4,692
Reclassification adjustments of exchange reserve for B HEH B QA E X HEE

subsidiary disposed of LB ERRE - 4,634

3,300 9,326
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified REZBRBETEENHBEEER

to profit or loss in subsequent periods: ZEmEmEmias
Exchange difference on translation of non-foreign operations MBI ERMEEZER 58 76,484 220,633
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FREMEEBE (FHE)

THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 79,784 229,959
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FREMWEEZEE 464,826 1,008,332
Attributable to: T 77 A -

Owners of the Company ViN/NCIE Z=IN 479,526 1,012,967

Non-controlling interests FEE IR A (14,700) (4,635)

464,826 1,008,332




Annual Report 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e P EIR R R

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

31 December

B FEFH

31 December

2021 2020
20215 20204
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARETR AR® T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 14 574,628 47,322
Investment properties TEYE 15 531,595 552,154
Goodwill FEES 16 424,722 424,722
Intangible assets BV EE 17 157,105 199,000
Deferred tax assets RIERITE A B 30 443,790 324,652
Pledged deposits BHERES 19 4,587 27,935
Total non-current assets IEMEBEEBTE 2,136,427 1,575,785
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Completed properties held for sale HEHEZE I WE 20 9,028,002 6,791,108
Properties under development R 21 47,834,930 48,446,684
Deposits and prepayments paid for land acquisitions 2+ + i Y B i & & FE A 508 22 1,220,087 2,646,093
Accounts receivable, other receivables and FEUSBR =X ~ Eoth fE UK A K
other assets HEEE 23 2,683,744 2,113,132
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEF AR
profit or loss ZEMEE 24 423,968 321,590
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable TES TSR K AT Uk [ 7 18 1,404,769 1,060,382
Pledged deposits [k e 19 211,289 330,336
Restricted bank balances SRR AIRTTAEBR 19 1,457,690 648,635
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEIEE 19 1,838,967 3,218,611
Total current assets mEBEEETE 66,103,446 65,576,571
CURRENT LIABILITIES B E
Accounts payable, deposits received FENERHR EltEE R
and accruals &R 25 6,350,361 7,299,395
Contract liabilities aHaE 26 30,654,098 23,379,862
Amounts due to related companies FETRRE N 7 IR 27 1,976,226 4,100,961
Loans from a related company RE—FEREARZER 28 8,204,904 8,374,973
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEE 29 5,894,516 6,351,627
Tax liabilities MIEEE 621,477 509,833
Total current liabilities mEB B EEE 53,701,582 50,016,651
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFE 12,401,864 15,559,920
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAEBERABER
LIABILITIES 14,538,291 17,135,705
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Zensun Enterprises Limited EREXERAHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIA

e P EIR R R

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

I
ITION

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20215 20204
12A31H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & ARETR AR® T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Rental deposits received Bl EZS 25 6,492 4,866
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 5,900,814 8,784,298
Deferred tax liabilities EEFITEEE 30 432,328 457,726
Total non-current liabilities IERFaEesE 6,339,634 9,246,890
Net assets BEFE 8,198,657 7,888,815
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARARIER AEIhER
Share capital A% A €l 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves s 32 2,871,549 2,547,007
8,198,472 7,873,930
Non-controlling interests FEIERR i 185 14,885
Total equity k] 8,198,657 7,888,815

Zhang Jingguo
RANE
Director

EE

Zhang Guoqgiang
REIR
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERRREX

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12 831 HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2N 1
Capital PRC*  Property Non-
Share reduction statutory  revaluation Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
HE* MEER

Rx EXHERE  OiERE B NERE  REEW &t FRRER REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEETR ARMTn AR%Tn ARMTn AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETn ARETn ARET:n

(note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)

(3E31) (Ht32) (Hzts2) (Ht32)
At 1 January 2020 202051418 2,014,112 119,330 161,109 13,861 (3.969) 1,436,185 3,740,634 (3,59) 3,737,041
Profit/oss) for the year FRER/(BB) - = = = = 782,988 782,988 (4,615) 118373

Other comprehensive income/{loss) EREMRERE/ (BE) :

for the year:

Exchange differences on tranglation hE RN EE - - - - 225,345 - 225,345 (20) 225,325

Reclassfication adjustments of exchange BHENBAREHR

reserve for subsidiaries disposed of LENN AR = - - - 4,634 - 4,634 - 4,634
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year  £R2ENE /(B )48 - - - - 229,979 782,988 1,012,967 (4,635 1,008,332
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve ERTMEATHE - - 100,322 - - (100,322) - - -
Transfer of property revaluation reserve gRmLaiiiE - - - (13,861) - 13,861 - - -
2019 final dividend paid (note 12) Ef12019F KBRS

(K12) = = = = - R4 (047 - (1941
Dividends paid to non-controling interests EfFEERER RS - - - - - - = (1,044) (1,044)
Issue of new ordinary shares BHLER 3,322,546 - - - - - 332546 - 3322546
Share Issue expenses e 5 (9,735) - - - - - (9,735) - (9,735)
Acquisttion of non-controling interests W ES - - - - - ® ® (6992 (6,000)
Capital contrioution from non-controling REFERRELER

shareholders - - - - - - - 29,900 29,900
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RHBAT - - - - - - - 249 249
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31H 5,326,923 119,330 261,431 - 226,016 1,940,230 7,873,930 14,885 7,888,815
At1 January 2021 2021 F1 318 5,326,923 119,330 261,431 - 226,016 1,940,230 7,873,930 14,885 7,888,815
Profi/oss) for the year ERiEtl/(58) - - - - - 399,470 399,470 (14428) 385,042
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: ERE M2 ENE /(BE) -

Exchange differences on translation hEVERER - - - - 80,056 - 80,056 (@n) 79,784
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year A2 T /(BB )% - - - - 80,056 399,470 479,526 (14,700) 464,826
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve ERTMEA TR - - 42,613 - - (42,613) - - -
2020 final dividend paid (note 12) BF2020F RERE

(Hit12) - - - - - (154984 (154984) - (154984)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H 5,326,923 119,330 304,044 - 306,072 2,142,103 8,198,472 185 8,198,657

Hk

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of *
RMB2,871,549,000 (2020: RMB2,547,007,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of these financial

ok

statements only, except where the context specifies otherwise, references to
Mainland China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

ZERBEREEGEEVBRABRERAZEERBEAR
#2,871,549,0007T (2020F : AR #¥2,547,007,000
TT) e

TEETEARANE - BRZSHBERERME - B
EXEZEREIN  HPEAMBKKRES  RFIRE
BASN R B[R
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Zensun Enterprises Limited EREXERAHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021  #HZE2021F12 A31H IEF[E

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®TR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&EBKFEHERE
Profit before tax FR 258 B g A 658,648 1,221,872
Adjustments for: KRS IRFE
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair BAFEFABRC CREE
value through profit or loss ZRFHEME) B 6 (112,618) 6,669
Fair value loss on investment properties KEMEATFEEIE 6 104 33,511
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHEB ARz K 6 - (99,554)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMELREITE 8 2,158 2,388
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRESENE 8 - 819
Interest income F B YA 5 (30,793) (20,438)
Write-down of properties under development MOR B MERFFIELE
and completed properties held for sale to net ZEEIYEE] IR FE
realisable value 6 166,764 150,000
Finance costs BE A 7 89,917 79,686
774,180 1,374,953
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable, other  FEUSBRER - H b fE k18 K2 H b &
receivables and other assets Egm),/md (574,779) 485,471
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank deposits from E¥)ZEFEE TS RIEELA 2 Rl
pre-sale proceeds of properties RITERCEM) (809,055) 143,339
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development % & ¥ 2 54>~ (3&0) 1,882,907 (4,545,460)
Increase in completed properties held for sale BIERE 2B T EE N (2,265,015) (2,867,364)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments &1 T i Uk fE iR & K 78 1~ 28
paid for land acquisitions B (38 a0) 1,426,006 (1,355,754)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, deposits ~ FEEER ~ B WIZE &
received and accruals FEETBACRA), /8 (959,585) 3,844,903
Increase in contract liabilities S4B EEM 6,656,926 5,658,835
Cash from operating activities IREEIE S & 6,131,585 2,638,923
Tax paid BT (650,845) (795,876)
Net cash flows from operating activities MEEEASESREFE 5,480,740 1,843,047




Annual Report 2021

TR FFR 9

2021 2020
20215 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETHHMERERE
Interest received B UF & 34,960 16,271
Purchases of items of property, plant and BAYIE - BERKHEEE
equipment (2,806) (4,567)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREBYEBHIE - 3,220
Net cash inflows of acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—RHB AR 2 REMAFRE - 534,838
Net cash inflows of disposal of a subsidiary HE—HHNBARZIBERAFE - 99,758
Net cash flows from investing activities TEESMSRE)FEE 32,154 649,520
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ®REZEFESHELSKE
Release of pledged deposits BREERZ S 298,095 768,672
Placement of pledged deposits FHERRZS (155,700) (184,960)
New bank and other borrowings raised HERITREMES 5,240,896 4,839,055
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BRETREMES (8,479,570) (7,490,722)
Principal portion of lease payments HENKEE IS - (729)
Interest paid BEARFLE (1,346,699) (1,530,301)
Repayment to related companies BERBEN ,T)\IE (2,458,150) (1,185,843)
Advance from related companies TEUEER IE— 333,415 3,653,053
Loans repaid to a related company BE—MH ?ﬁL ,Ty\ (1,678,518) (3,846,993)
Loans received from a related company I — &R R E R 1,508,449 1,731,238
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary shares ?"‘ﬁ%ﬁ LHXZ?W%?K - 966,847
Share issue expenses MEITRX - (9,739)
Dividends paid EHH& =l (153,486) (192,474)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B SRR AR AR 3R 2 AR - (1,044)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wi SR iR i 2 - (6,000)
Capital contributions from non-controlling KB FEIEAR IR 2 K
shareholders - 29,900
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEBAREREFE (6,891,268) (2,460,036)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND ﬁﬁ&iﬂ%%{ﬁlﬁ B
CASH EQUIVALENTS W) NS s (1,378,374) 32,531
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year Fﬁ%ﬂzfﬁi&fﬁAM@Iﬁ = 3,218,611 3,200,230
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SNETE R B) L FEE (1,270) (14,150)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZAERRESEMFEER
AT END OF YEAR 19 1,838,967 3,218,611
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBEESEEBEEHRDN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the REMBARRREATIER 2
consolidated statement of financial position BRENRESEEIER 19 1,838,967 3,218,611
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

1.

2.1

202112 A31H
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at 24th
Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Joy Town Inc., a private limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate
holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited,
a private limited liability company incorporated in Singapore, as trustee of
a discretionary trust which is set up by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”),
a non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Huang is the settlor and
protector of the discretionary trust. Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 44. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;
(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control,and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

2.1

2.2

Annual Report 2021 B —FF R
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

2021412 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a
risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply
lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for which any
reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for applying
the practical expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

22 BHHEREEEE (E)

=
o

(@)

RIEFTBEBY B ME LR ZEE R EH RN

BRP RS EAFEN - BB ETER
£39%% BBUBMELMNETR - &
BUBREEAEIERBEV B RS
ERF16RIERT AR IZERETARE
BRIB 2 R - BNE AR M R e A
([ e B 2K |) ERACER 1T ) R B AR -
MHHRESRINTE - EAIARE @
EREEZ AL REESRMEERSA
BEZAaNBRS Rz EEBBARE @ 1
BYRNREERNEZERER  ME
EENASRHMBERNZE LERAE
PR cREE AR ERARES
MEERBBZREEMEFERR
oo YpS - BRI AR FHRFI R ELERE
ZEREEHMIEEIRE REH XM
i R A A B R o FRIE A &
M EMERSEERE BT BN RELE
AIFSRMIER R ERIE - Ut B RHER
Hh 2 BT - BEEERRAE SR
REDEF - EET AR A TR A LA 3
AERz BEREHERERLEE - Z
AR AFEREETELHNE  RRE
MerB#zER  EERFES
T T8 HA 4 o B ) =R [ B P 0 6 S R 2R 24
18 A AR ASRIEIZER] © bLh - BRI A
EXERREHIMGEE - EHBRKRE
FAEREH T BEA| R B S T8 B
BHREAREARERREZZE - HHZ
FEITEHAEB 2 BRRELTE
fﬂ'i /48 5

=

2021 F 4 A B ) & 75 B 75 ) 5
Al 2 ST A AR A RETR]
covid- 19 BEEHZEH v HEeERER
MEEREAZATRE S AZER
HRERI12MEA - Bt ZAJ1THEE
FEREAERZATRE A A2 EAM
BHEZEATERAREERRZHA A
20226 A30RA Kz ATz MERMN KA
SEBE - ZIEFTAE2021F481H5 2
“FEBZ FEHABBBER - VRER
ZEFI MRS ERRBEENS
TEAR B R BB T AR 2 HE - W R
FFIRATER - MRS e HAL
BB ERREETMNERTE -



2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts? ©

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-currentz 4
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 411

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

2021412 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer settlement
of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations
that are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than
leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

2021412 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfiling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

2.3

BFREGHERETRETANRS - sABREEE
SEFHEREITRA AT D BERILEMS
BITAHNZKABEESNEEMER KA -
HANEZRARZKABRBETZANZIESE
RABIINEZ S TR H) RERETANER
Mz kA SR (Flns RETAAMAY
X BERRBEBZFERAIARGHER
BEEBAA) - —MRITHRERES L EME X
R BRIESHNAEREFIRE  BRAKHE
BEBRFESN © ZE BRI B 202241 A1 Ak 2 &5
Mz EEHRER  TEANEBERERSA
MET 2 FEREHRRAEREREARETHE
E2HEEZAH - AFFIRTRMA - ITEBE
R EMREFERNIIGER B SRERSH
s B ABEAZIILRER - BHZ
FEFTGHAEE LM B RRELEMER

By 480
& o

BB TS IR & YERI20184F 2 2020F 2 F [Z 24
BB BMERELERNFE 15 BEPEREE
BIZEOSK - BBI KRS ERIF 165 kM 2 58
MRFI R BB ERNFEAIRIETA - BatE
ARAEEZZESTFB0T ¢

. BEAPIEHRELEBNERLHTA &
BRERIGEENH RS ERERmE
BZRRARSRABEZKRTEEE
EERMPECZER ZSEAERRE
ERARERXAZBE X UERz &
A BEEFIASZERARKREME X
Nz B8 - BREE B ER
REBBXEREBETZFERES
AR BERBIRBZEMBE - Z
FEFTH2022F1 A1HS 2 BB 2 F
EHRER - AFFIRERM - MHZE
BRI T HAER 2 BB HREREETM
BAFE -

U BEMBRELENE16RHEE - MRS
78 B 75 i 5 48 R 5516 5% BE BT 2 3¢ BRI R
P13 B B E MR RS 2 B AR
FH o WEHRR AT BRI REE
AIF165% A A E B S EEIE T 2
BER -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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2021412 H31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
pest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Dbased on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTTHEME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties BEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ERATMEEU TN ERNERABAEER 2
BEAL :
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and (a) ZHhR—BAATHZBAT 2R
that person: FBAT
0] has control or joint control over the Group; () AN 5 (B 5 20 I sl R4
#E
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (ii) HASBBEAFES + 3K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group (il AErAEESIAEETRRZEHK
or of a parent of the Group; BEBABZ—
or %
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (b) ZhE—EAERITFE A TEM—EIK
G
0] the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ZEBRAEERRA KB X
EUNCIE
(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or (ii) —AERAS BB (XZE B
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); B2E8AT - MBARKFRK
BAR) ZEERRREERE
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (i) ZEBRAEERA—ZFL=A2
party; AP
(V)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —EEBA—RFE=FEBZE
entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—BBAZE=A
B HENT
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit (v) ZERDDAAEENGEANERS
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the E B2 EBBANMmEZ B
Group; s EAIEE
(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) ZEBR@MAEZATES
identified in (a); RS
(vi)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (i) REOFIREZATHZERE
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of Ej{ BN BZER (R ERS
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and ZERE)ZEBREBAEZ—
)4
(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) ZE® - KHABEEZEAK
provides key management personnel services to the Group BRRE MASENAEEZ &
or to the parent of the Group. NERHEZEE ABRY -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
2%

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
6.67% to 20%

20% to 25%

Land and buildings and a hotel
Leasehold improvement

Furniture, office equipment and
motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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104 Zensun Enterprises Limited

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTTHEME(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investment properties REYE

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Contract benefit is recognised as intangible assets and amortised on the
straight-line basis over the following estimated useful economic lives:
Contracts benefit 38 months

The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the remaining period
of the property development.

Contract benefit

Contract benefit acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date, which is related to the future acquisition of
the land use right. Before completing the acquisition of the land use right,
contract benefit is tested for impairment annually and is not amortised. And
after completing the acquisition of the land use right, contract benefit is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. The useful life of contract benefit is assessed based on the
remaining period of the property development. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the period of the property development.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets except
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total costs
of land and buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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24 FESTBERMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-
term leases of offices and motor vehicles (that is those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHEMEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Derecognition of financial assets RIEEREHMEE
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of CREEN(NER) —HESREEN —IBH K
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed —HRECREEN — D EEETIBERLE
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when: RIEFER (BB ANEB LS R R RERBER) ¢

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTTHEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables, amounts due
to related companies, loans from a related company, bank and other
borrowings, and financial liabilities in other payables, deposits and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, banks and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

2.4

Annual Report 2021 B/ —FFR

TEETHRAE ()

cHeE(E)

&AET B (E)

HBERER

RE BB H M BEERE N BB FTARE
EREEARBEEBSARERRESTAK
FRE RN R BRIBRNEL - FBE
RENNRZATFERBREE  UREERS
BREHZEROZZKUAEHAE - 91nHE
RiE - ARBERUATMERNRSEAENE
EREQ  (VRE SREERE I HRREE
ZHEBEEBERER  R)NRERHNSER
(FEM) R EERBALHE -

RIEBITHAE
B BE THRB B - BUEREH - Al
REBBKILEREE -

EREERARERER -REANS B
FEENESBAERRL - HREBEERKR
B BUERTHS - ZIARMBKAER] B RAVER L
RREAELERFAR  SENRESEE
BN BEEMRER o

HEEMITA

3RS fF £ — R A AR LR BIBITR R -
AEHERRA TR  BABAFRAE A AR
BREAERENER  ReREERSRAE
A TR - WHEFE R ALZA T BIRRIREK -

ReRhReEEY
HERRLRERNE R LREFENE
EFBERS LERFR - ARAIER LB AE
HEgERD  EEEPEARTK  —ROKE
B={8 A AP E RS ERBRE (FRER
BEIBRASERSETEERED)

MR MBERABEME RERFRASRA
B EeERETXRHNFERE RRTER(E
BERFFRARRSBLUEEEE) -

111



EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

112 Zensun Enterprises Limited

24 FESTBERMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

= when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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24 FESTBERMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.

(a) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains
the physical possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has the present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b) Project management services
Revenue from the provision of project management services
is recognised over time based on the scheduled period of the
contracts.

(c) Property management services
Revenue from the provision of property management services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Wy 25 7 52

EFEA Wi

KA TP A KR s T 7 an 2k AR 75 rO 2 1l 42
EBETEFPRER  ZoBRRAEEES
MRMZER MR B EESHRE -

ERATHREEENESREK  KESER
KElﬁ%ﬁL%ﬁmi%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁg*%
BARBER AL X 24

% Eigﬁi—f"é" JcFWHF@EI’JTﬁEmI%ﬁ{% B
AR HRANBRERESEEE TS
BB AWEEE -

EANTEEREND ZBEKRD /EPR
HHEE—FORmREEERENE RN &=
B W ERERR R ERE - EAMRE
TR ZBREERREAEEETSESR
RERNEBREX ST - ERNTEERE
By ZBMERBDAANEERERT —FALH
BERMBNmE - AR TRV RS ER/R

BERNBEEANABLERFTNNE - HEP
3 REEE AR A ERBOBARA —FH

%ELE’] /jﬁlﬁcl ! X% tx}ﬁﬁﬁé/ﬁﬁﬁt&i
ﬁm FIGPERBEE A TEHEARE

DR AR -

MRAEE A FEBBRED HEYERIRMR
B KERERHERAEZ X FEE
B o WERIRRIRR IR -

@  OFEHE
HRNEFEEBBREPHENERS @ K
BREDESRTMENERMEER
AEFEE - ARBEBRES 2R RIE
N ARABE A RJ BE Y @ B ERR,

(b)  EEHEERE
FIRMIAE BRRBSM S -
#IH)ET B B BE RS PR -

W iRiE &

)  VREFERE

HRIEHEMEXEBRBM S - WRRER
EERNFTEBERER  RAREFRE

fIUER K2 ) B AR B R e A 25



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with
a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement
of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTTHEME(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme and pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the Pension Scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
All contributions to the Pension Scheme vest immediately and there are
no forfeited contributions under the Pension Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions or contributions
payable in future years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. These financial
statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB, including the Hong Kong dollar (HK$),
United States dollar (‘USD”) and Singapore dollar (“SGD”). As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

2.4
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

3.

2021412 H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from investment
properties that are using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties — senior housing communities
located in the United States of America (the “USA”) — are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time rather
than through sale whereas those situated in Hong Kong and Singapore are
not held under such a business model. Therefore, the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted for properties of senior housing communities but is not
rebutted for properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore. The Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of these
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment properties.

Deferred tax on withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate income
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities, based upon the likely distribution level of such
earnings from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount
of deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated
with the investments in subsidiaries established in the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB60,247,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB75,745,000). Further details are contained in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was RMB424,722,000 (2020:
RMB424,722,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts receivable
and other receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s accounts receivable and other receivables is disclosed in note
23 to the financial statements.

3.
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31 December 2021

3.

2021412 H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
dates of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such
as current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2021 was
RMB531,595,000 (2020: RMB552,154,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis,
are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for
all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. An intangible
asset not yet available for use is tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was RMB159,300,000 (2020:
RMB125,658,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2021 was RMB554,526,000 (2020: RMB532,018,000). Further details are
contained in note 30 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon the completion of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all
its property development projects. The final outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which the
differences realise.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale at the end
of each reporting period and compared the costs and its net realisable
value. The net realisable value is the estimated future selling price less
estimated cost of completion or the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale (if any). The estimated future selling prices are estimated by
management with reference to the Group’s pre-sale selling prices and
the recent selling prices of similar properties in the nearby or relevant
locations. The management also estimated the future selling expenses
and the expected costs to completion by reference to the actual selling
expenses of the Groups’ completed projects, adjusted by certain current
market data, the legal and regulating framework and general market
conditions. The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC, details of which are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and notes 20 and 21
to the financial statements. At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of properties under development and completed properties held for sale
were approximately RMB47,834,930,000 (2020: RMB48,446,684,000)
and RMB9,028,002,000 (2020: RMB6,791,108,000), respectively, which
are expected to be recovered through future sales and stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The Group carried out assessment on
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and recognised
RMB75,073,000 (2020: RMB150,000,000) and RMB91,691,000 (2020:
nil) of the write-down for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, respectively, for the year end 31 December 2021.
When there is any decrease in the net realisable value of the properties and
it is lower than the cost of the properties, loss will be recognised on the
properties under development and completed properties held for sale in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.
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3.

2021412 H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,002,298,000 (2020:
RMB13,559,922,000) in respect of mortgage facilities provided by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by property
buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers, the Group
would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interests thereon and any penalties owed by the
defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take over
legal title to and possession of the related properties. These guarantees
will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage
loan by the buyers of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of
the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 as
the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the outstanding principal together
with the accrued interests and penalties. Should the actual outcome be
different from expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has five reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) Property development in the PRC
(b) Project management services in the PRC

(c) Property investment and management in the United States of
America (“USA” or “US”) in American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”) and
property management in the USA provided to Global Medical REIT,
Inc. (“GMR”)

(d) Property investment other than AHR
(e) Securities trading and investment

Following the disposal of a subsidiary engaging in the property management
business in the USA in July 2020, the Group no longer provided property
management services to and received management fee income from GMR.

The Group has property investment and/or management businesses in
Hong Kong, the USA and Singapore. Other than AHR which is operated in
the USA, the property investment businesses in other regions are evaluated
together and assessed as one operating segment by the management
previously and up to 31 December 2021. Following to the termination of
the property management services as a result of the sale of the Group’s
subsidiary, the Group continued to operate and manage AHR’s property
investment through internal resources and will evaluate and assess the
Group’s property investment businesses in Hong Kong, the USA and
Singapore as a whole to integrate as one single operating segment in the
future.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain other gains
and losses, corporate and unallocated income and expenses (including
unallocated finance costs) are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax liabilities and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Annual Report 2021 B —FF R

ﬁ(«.&éﬁf\ﬁﬁﬁﬂ

RETER  AEBEREBEHERRRBKILE
Boal - ERERSHRELLSMMT :

@ RPEZMERER
() REEZIEEEERS

© REBRHEMNEMERESTE(TAHR]D)
T2 M FEIRE R E TR A K [ B R B8 R
FEHEREEFE(IGMRDIREZMEE
i

(d)  AHRLASNZ ¥IZEIRE
() BHEEBRIEE

R2020F 7 AL ERERNWEMEETIREL
WMEBARE  AEBEEZTHERGMRIZHYE
BB ARSI E R B U A o

AEBREE  XBRINKEEVERE
R/ REBER - RRERLEMAHRIN - 2
Al R ZE 202112 A31 B E MR Y R &
EBTABEEE —fHHE  AER—BEED
TP LARE - ERHEASBENE AR MmA L
MEBERBRER  AEEREZBNHERE
EREBEAHRNYRERE - I “”T$EI1‘IJ5<\
B RERIMINEHMEREEFETER
A AR ARG EES A —EE KL D E

°kn

EREEMNEEAREZQED A 2 FE - A
BIEHARBERD B RRBEFEZRE - FFh
DERBTBEARE 2 DI,/ (BE) (B
BATE RS, (BE) ZF8) - TS
BaA, (BE) DERAEE 2 BREEFR,
(BE)E - HEETHMRREREBE 28Rk
RO BA RS H (BIERDECRVE KA ) BRI

DHEBETBEEEFIAEE - BH K%
DEREE IE%?ﬁEEM‘ﬁlg—%a@°

RER

DEEEAN aﬁiﬁk%ﬁilﬁﬁﬁ‘ BMIREEAR
BELARADERE  AZFREENEE
EEEH o

123



124 Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

4,

2021412 H31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

4. RKEIWERRE)

Segment revenue and segment results DEN S ] DI EE
Segment revenue Segment results
2 ez DEBELE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR®TT ARBTT
Property development in the PRC ~ AF B~ M2 2R 13,321,003 7,877,160 492,287 1,033,298
Project management services R E 218 B EE RS
in the PRC 61,825 123,516 58,734 117,614
Property investment and REBREAHRETZ
management on AHR and MEREREBIAR
property management RGMRIEf#EZ
provided to GMR in the USA MEESE 14,441 44,070 9,912 111,556
Property investment other AHRBASNZ #2318 &
than AHR 9,493 9,711 2,038 (27,291)
Securities trading and investment  EA5 B & RKIRE 14,734 14,604 127,351 7,934
13,421,496 8,069,061 690,322 1,243,111
Unallocated corporate income KA AFUA 326 738
Other gains and losses Hibles R E518 (16,942) 1,047
Unallocated corporate expenses AOB AR (15,058) (23,024)
Profit before tax B 258 AT A 658,648 1,221,872
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHFER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results (continued) DEBNE R D ERELE ()
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Segment assets DENEEE
Property development in the PRC R Y2 R 66,687,630 65,699,030
Project management services in the PRC R E 218 B BB IR 62,444 125,026
Property investment and management on AHR and NERBAHRET Z MERE R
property management provided to GMR in the USA BB K MGMRIZH 2 M EE 202,296 210,755
Property investment other than AHR AHRASNZ ¥R E 357,273 375,026
Securities trading and investment BHBEEREE 427,489 325,098
Segment assets DEPEE 67,737,132 66,734,935
Unallocated assets ROMEE 502,741 417,421
Total assets BEE 68,239,873 67,152,356
Segment liabilities SEFEE
Property development in the PRC R MEERE 58,804,650 58,081,282
Project management services in the PRC R 2 8B B2 RS 1,676 2,395
Property investment and management on AHR and REBBAHREIT Z MR E &
property management provided to GMR in the USA BIEARMGMRIZH Z MEEE 63,024 82,614
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ MERE 115,475 126,071
Segment liabilities HEEE 58,984,825 58,292,262
Unallocated liabilities A EE 1,056,391 971,279
Total liabilities HmaEE 60,041,216 59,263,541
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4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFHFER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information HibpHER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HILFEE
Property
investment
and
management
on AHR
and property
Project management Property Securities
Property management provided  investment trading
development services toGMR  other than and Segment
inthePRC  inthe PRC  inthe USA AHR  investment total  Unallocated Total
REEHAHR
ET2N%
REREE
ReEz  HREGMR
RpEZ BREE Rt AHRELS EHEE
NERR R NEEE  2UERE k& pagr ke B @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR¥TR ARMTR ARt AR%Tn  AR¥TR  AR¥TR  ARETR
Additions to investment properties  REWERTE * BER
and property, plant and H#ERE
equipment 532,305 - - - - 532,305 12 532,317
Depreciation of property, plantand 412 « BE RS GHTE
equipment 2,551 58 6 - - 2,615 1,133 3,748
Amortisation of intangible assets i AEH 41,895 - - - - 41,895 - 41,895
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment % &#% 2 AT {Elkz /
properties (BR) - - 129 (233) - (104) - (104)
Fair value gain on financial assets at SRATE AB#HZER
fair value through profit or loss 4 2 ATEME - - - - 112,618 112,618 - 112,618
Write-down of properties on RERTNEEMERS
properties under development  {EREZE R IHE
and completed properties held ~~ HRZ TSR % E
for sale to net realisable value 166,764 - - - - 166,764 - 166,764
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFTER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information (continued) Hib o IHER (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020512A31BLLEE
Property
investment
and
management
on AHR
Project and property
management management Property Securities
Property and sales provided investment trading
development services toGMR  other than and Segment
inthePRC  inthePRC  inthe USA AHR investment total  Unallocated Total
REEIHAHR
ET2NE
REREE
ReEz  HREGMR
WhEz  BAEER Rtz AHRELS #EEE
NERRE HERY NEEE  2UERE k&& AHER RAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR AR%Tn  AR®TR  AR¥TR  ARETR
Additions to investment properties  REWERTE * BER
and property, plant and REZRE
equipment 3,527 - 434 - - 3,961 606 4,567
Depreciation of property, plantand 412 « BE RS G HTE
equipment 2,042 128 258 10 - 2,438 1,240 3,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREAENE = - 819 - - 819 - 819
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  [HE—FMB AR 2 Mg - = 99,654 = = 99,654 - 99,554
Fair value loss on investment RENEZATESE
properties - - 4578 28,933 - 33,511 - 33,511
Fair value loss on financial assets at $2A T ABZ
fair value through profitor loss £ REEZATFEER - - - - 6,669 6,669 - 6,669
Write-clown of properties on RERTNEBMENR,
properties under developmentto ~ ZAI £ 5 % (8
net realisable value 150,000 - = = = 150,000 = 150,000
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B B R AR B

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

4. RKEIWERRE)

HEER

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEF W zE FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARMT T AR¥MTT ARBTT

The PRC o B 13,383,569 8,001,725 1,118,698 630,897
The USA £ 29,633 52,053 200,562 207,856
Singapore ESIIE 6,740 13,633 267,549 281,537
Hong Kong B 1,554 1,650 101,241 102,908

13,421,496 8,069,061 1,688,050 1,223,198

The geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the geographical markets of the customers, and the locations
of properties and investments. The geographical information of the non-
current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, is
based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no single customer
has contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

REBEFP KRGS 2 EEHNERT PR
Mm% MERREZMEMMETE - ERDHE
ECETHAEER SR TAERIN) 2R E R
DERNEREECBEMETE °

BEREXEEFZER
HE2021F K2020F12 A31 B LEE @ &
B-RPEBAEERWEE10%A L ©



REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
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5. WEREMUWA

TET—FFR 129

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T -
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR® T
Revenue from contracts with customers EFE &K
Sales of properties in the PRC B E Y E 13,321,003 7,877,160
Project management services in the PRC R E 218 B EERTS 61,825 123,516
Property management services L/ EREN T - 27,742
13,382,828 8,028,418
Revenue from other sources E iz KR
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMFEAS WA B 23,934 26,039
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZEREELZ
through profit or loss & B WA 14,734 14,604
13,421,496 8,069,061
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEH W
Disaggregated revenue information (i) Wiz H &R
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE2021F12A31ALFE
Project
Sales of management
properties in services
Segments 2 &8 the PRC in the PRC Total
R ReBEZ
HEME BHE EER%E wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥TR AR®TT
Types of goods or servicesand BERIBHEZERIR
geographical markets B 5
Sale of properties in the PRC R E L EYE 13,321,003 - 13,321,003
Project management services R B2 18 B & 18 R
in the PRC - 61,285 61,285
Total revenue from contracts with INERRE A 4 sk 4B FE
external customers 13,321,003 61,285 13,382,828
Timing of revenue recognition W i R B
Goods transferred at a point in time ~ REX— K HZhEEE 13,321,003 - 13,321,003
Services transferred over time T PRy ] 8 o AR TS - 61,285 61,285
Total revenue from contracts with INERRE A 4 U sR 4 FE
external customers 13,321,003 61,285 13,382,828
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31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WakHEAMUWA(E)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 2RSS (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) Wis 7t E# ()
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31A L EE
Project
Sales of management Property
properties services management
Segments PR in the PRC in the PRC services Total
RPEZ
A BEEEER L/ES
HEWE SHERK B PR wat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®TR

Types of goods or services and & &= RIS = 3 &

geographical markets BEiEmiE
Sale of properties in the PRC R B E Y5 7,877,160 - - 7,877,160
Project management services AR B2 18 B B AR TS

in the PRC - 123,516 - 123,516
Property management services RERZ MEEIE RS

in the USA - - 27,742 27,742
Total revenue from contracts BEAHWEER

with customers 7,877,160 128,516 27,742 8,028,418

Timing of revenue recognition Wz EREE
Goods transferred at a point in time R 3 —FFEZHEEEY) 7,877,160 - - 7,877,160
Services transferred over time g B i 8 o AR TS — 123,516 27,742 151,258

Total revenue from contracts with & F & AW xS 4258

customers 7,877,160 123,516 27,742 8,028,418
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was RARE ARG AREBIN 26
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting HBRBEZWZOT -
period:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T

Sale of properties in the PRC AR B S 10,125,280 6,575,432




5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and advance payments are required pursuant to the

terms of sale and purchase agreements.

Rendering of services (project management services and property

management services)

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are

rendered and bills are issued when services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

5.

Annual Report 2021 B/ —FFR

Wz R H AR (4])
BF &1 ()

(i)

B EE
ERASBERENEE2ERBMRMT

YR E
BHEEDIRINDERERT  BA
RIBEE B W R IR FROR -

FERIRE (H B B RIEAR Y ZE EFEIR
%)

FE#)E A T5 10 B AR A AR5 2 A 4R (AR 7
RIEH A RREE RS BERS R BT ©

R 20214 K 20204128318 * DB E
BTBAET(RBITRID KEIT)Z
RGBT ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®T
Within one year —ER 12,103,855 14,871,578
After one year —F1% 21,878,848 11,937,280
33,982,703 26,808,858

An analysis of other income is as follows: HEMAZAITIAT
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR® T
Interest income F B A 30,793 20,438
Government grants BT & B 2,914 820
Others Hih 10,317 6,262

44,024 27,520
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31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. HK=EREIEFHE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARET T
Fair value loss on investment properties (note 15) ‘AWM 2 AT EEE M 715) (104) (33,511)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value BATEFABR EREEL
through profit or loss AFEWE(BE) 112,618 (6,669)
Exchange (loss)/gain, net &5 (B518) W F 5 (16,942) 4,696
Write-down of properties under development OB EE R AR ) 2 RS ER & 2
and completed properties held for sale to B IYEEr & FE
net realisable value (166,764) (150,000)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MWNB ARz ks - 99,554
(71,192) (86,030)
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERX
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
Interests on: AREIEZFE -
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMER 1,323,241 1,563,416
Interest arising from revenue contracts BRI EE 2 FIE 1,525,514 944,468
Interest arising from lease liabilities HEBEZNE - 190
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RERBWEEARE (2,758,838) (2,428,388)
89,917 79,686
Borrowing costs from bank and other borrowings have been capitalised at KEARTREMEE ZEEKAD ZNF4.95
rates ranging from 4.95% to 12.80% (2020: 4.568% to 12.80%) per annum. JE22£12.802 (20204 : 4.568[E =12.80/F ) 2

FREFLAERE »



PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:
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8. FRBIATEF

AEE 2 B AT A EH0ER T AR

TR FFER

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
Cost of properties sold B EMEKA 12,152,459 6,313,705
Cost of services BRAE AKX AN 3,091 5,902
Total employee benefit expenses: B EBFIFRA A%
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EEFM(A9) 1,023 1,052
Other staff: HEMET :
Salaries and other benefits e R EMET 122,661 86,410
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRE R B 9,168 9,610
132,852 97,072
Less: Capitalised in properties under development W REBEERYEE AN (27,144) (19,592)
105,708 77,480
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 5B 2 M 2,380 1,700
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMELEEITE 2,158 2,388
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETNE - 819
Lease payments not included in the measurement of WAk AT E & B EMHEEHE
lease liabilities 1,483 5,866
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived RNEEZBRBATSEFEFTA
at after crediting: I IE=SEE
Interest income FE U A 30,793 20,438
Gross rental income from investment properties REMERS WA BT 23,934 26,039
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for: W TEAZBEEEERYT
— investment properties generating rental income —EEHESRAZIREYE (3,068) (2,890)
— investment properties not generating rental income ~ — W& E AT S WA 2 1A W (142) (286)
(3,210) (8,176)
20,724 22,863
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31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEREFETHRASEHMN

BiE EmAR Rl - HE R E &6 383(1)@)
(0) - OV RMEARARI(KEEEMEER)
BIE2EIRTE 2 FAEE R FEETHA B HFH A
T

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BT T ARETT

Fees W 597 639
Other emoluments: E b -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e SRR EMER 381 368

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFHEIE 5K 45 45

1,023 1,052

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE2021F12H31HLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e ER EIREF
e REYEF sHEIfER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥TR AR®TT AR® T
Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* aR ST - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok BY SR SE A - 381 45 426
Non-executive director: FEHTTEE -
Ms. Huang Huang#Z = - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: — JHFEHTTEE -
Mr. Liu Da BERE 199 - - 199
Dr. Liu Qiao** Z(EiE L 159 - - 159
Mr. Ma Yuntao BEREE 199 - - 199
Dr. Li Huiqun*** ZHEEHE L 40 - - 40
597 381 45 1,023
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFIETHBAEHM(E)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12831HLLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
2 A= 431 BIKEF

Hwe REYUEA &I st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®BTR AR®BTRT AR®BTET

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhang* SR A - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang o B 58 S A - 368 45 413
Non-executive director: FHITEE -
Ms. Huang Huang# & = = = -

Independent non-executive directors: B HHTEE -

Mr. Liu Da ZESRE 213 - - 213
Dr. Liu Qiao** 2EE L 213 - - 213
Mr. Ma Yuntao*** HBER A 213 - - 213
639 368 45 1,052
* Mr. Zhang is also the chief executive of the Company. * RFETMAARRAITHARE
> Dr. Liu Qiao was resigned as an independent non-executive director of the * 2|4 1EER2021F10 A 18 A BHEA R BB
Company on 18 October 2021. EHITES
o Dr. Li Huiqun was appointed as an independent non-executive director of o TEBEELN2021F10 A 18EEZ T AERA
the Company on 18 October 2021. A IEITES ©
There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or agreed to REMEABEE SRR R KRR R EM

waive any remuneration during the reporting period (2020: Nil). N ZHE (20205 « £8) o
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31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEREH AL
The five highest paid employees during the year were neither a director nor FARAERETATHFARNARANEENFEE
chief executive of the Company (2020: Nil), details of whose remuneration FEAB (20204 : &)  HEKREEI > 2t
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the HRN EXHIzF9 - BEERNTR(2020F : A)E
five (2020: five) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief R AT (WHFEARREZEEMIEEZTETHA
executive of the Company are as follows: B)FHM 2 FBWT :
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYEF 4,377 8,854
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid e T BRI ZREHALTGEES
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: RIEEZETHAB) Z ABWT :
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,00178 7L E1,000,000/8 7T 3 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 £2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7522,500,000/%8 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 75 23,000,000/%8 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 75 23,500,000/ 75 - 1




11.
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TR FFHR ¥

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. Fr8®iRExX
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R AR¥TR

Current tax — charge for the year REAFIE — F AR

- Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBFIEH - -
- PRC CIT — BB EMET 291,669 425,139
- PRC LAT — B T 3E(E R 126,325 185,488
— Overseas Corporate Income Tax —BIMEERTISR 118 273
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFEGBERE) BETRE (10) 2,607
418,102 613,507
Deferred tax (note 30) IRIERL (HTa£30) (144,496) (170,008)
Total tax charge for the year FAMRIBFAZ BT 273,606 443,499

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC CIT is calculated at the applicable income tax rate of 25% on the
assessable profits for both years. In accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding income tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the enterprises with foreign investments
established in the PRC. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries in the USA are generally subject to Federal Income Tax at a
rate of 21% (2020: 21%) on the taxable income and the statutory regulation
of State Income Tax in different jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2021. Certain of these subsidiaries retained with undistributed income are
also subjected to an additional personal holding company tax at 20% on
the taxable income. Certain subsidiaries are limited liability companies which
are by default disregarded entities (i.e. viewed as divisions of the holding
company) and would be taxed as part of their holding company for federal
tax purposes.

HRAKER M EFERNDERESELRER
B Al - FH I BN S M BRI EENE
W B

BEREHETE - BEPRCEMEHE -
FERBIRKZRINE S ERINERE E SRR
BBWEBR10%BINAER - Bt - AEBEA
LA R BIRK 37 A BT A B B 20084F 1 A1 H BAZR
BREL A B A TR S A IR B8 ST B o

FE - IRE R D iR L B AR IR(E R 30% 2
60% 2 RER R - MEBRHENERS
FIRR LI EREE B RMAENEERAX
FEFNIR B ST HOBRER o

B E2021F12A31HIEFE » RER KB
RNA— MR T RIERBULAIL21% (20204 :
21%) ZE BAAEHHE RN RBELFETT
B eEEERMAEHE ZEEHRG - BBERDIR
WAZETZERBRANEMRERTBA Z
20% 2 B AR R R ANER - B T H B AR
BERRAR @ RETHEEAERE(AEAERA
AlZHE) - iSREEHE M S EEERA R —3
DETEE -
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31 December 2021

11.

12.

2021412 H31H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax per the

Fris i (&)
RS HALRRA ARER

AR FT 7 B Bt B8 7

consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: HERIAT ¢
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TT
Profit before tax B A% A g A 658,648 1,221,872
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) 1A TE B K 25% (20204 : 25%)
STEZHIE 164,662 305,468
Effect of different tax rates on operations in HEEMREERE L EHRERE
other jurisdictions -7 (168) (187)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose N A] FFH 3 i 2 B 7 ?75 12,857 14,060
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BEFHRBAZHBEE (31,838) (30,636)
PRC LAT A+ 3 (E R 126,325 185,488
Tax effect of PRC LAT B 4 IR E R 2 RIS R 2 (31,581) (46,372)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AERERF =BG E 18,306 77
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIBBBE B E 16,027 13,614
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised FABEARERHIBESE (974) (620)
(Oven)/under provision in prior years BAFE(GBERE) BETE (10) 2,607
Income tax expenses for the year FRAERFALZ 273,606 443,499
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Proposed final — RMBO0.81 cents per ordinary share R AR E TR
AR#0.815 - 154,984

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB154,984,000).

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of
RMBO0.81 cents per ordinary share was declared and approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 8 June 2021. The 2020
final dividend amounting to approximately RMB154,984,000 has been
distributed out of the Company’s retained earnings and paid in July 2021.

ARAREFIWFAEZRIRAT B E2021F12 A 31
BIEFE 2B (20204 : AR# 154,984,000
JL) °

HZE2020F12A31B L FEZ KPR EFHRE
BRHD ARSI DER2021F6 A8HRETZ
AABIRERAFARD FESIK&KIE - 2020F
REARY B 49 A R #154,084,0007T B A20214E7
AR RMRE B DR M AT -



13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13.
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on:

Annual Report 2021 —F T —FFR

RRAERAREZREF

SRERBFTRATEREE -

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Earnings b=
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used RAEEE ABIERF -
in the basic earnings per share calculation AR ESREARZF 399,470 782,988
2021 2020
20215 20204
’000 ’000
F A T
(Restated)
(Z35)
Shares & 12
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FANB BT EBRINETHE
issue during the year used in the basic earnings AR EGRERERN (AF)
per share calculation (note) 1,913,387 1,112,548

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for both current
and prior years used in the basic earnings per share calculation has been
adjusted for the share consolidation of every ten ordinary shares into
one consolidated ordinary share (as detailed in note 31) which became
effective on 9 August 2021.

No diluted earnings per share amounts were presented for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during these years.

Hiat . BARFTESREABANANFTERBEFTED
BT EBARA N T EE 202168 A9H
ERHRDE FETTRE  EEASTRYEA
&6 0F B —RE ST B (1B R MFES1) -

AN &£ B R E E 20214 %2020 12 A31 H
IHFETEEEBEDRTEBR MW E
FEMESYSRESRAF -
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Br 75 3 2R B

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. V¥ - - BERRXRE

Furniture,
office
Land equipment
and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
&R BOZE
TREF EIE HEWEHEE RERARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥FR AR%T AR¥TF R AR¥TR
31 December 2021 2021F12A31H
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2021 20211 81H 44,554 - 2,382 20,664 67,600
Additions NE 391,030 138,481 - 2,806 532,317
Disposals HE - - - (1,183) (1,183)
Exchange realignment fE 5 A (1,407) - (101) (64) (1,572)
At 31 December 2021 2021F12H831H 434,177 138,481 2,281 22,223 597,162
Accumulated depreciation: ZHFE
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 5,129 - 1,732 13,417 20,278
Depreciation provided WERE 1,030 - 89 2,629 3,748
Disposals HE - - - (1,183) (1,183)
Exchange realignment b 5 EE (177) - (70) (62) (309)
At 31 December 2021 72021F12H31H 5,982 - 1,751 14,801 22,534
Net carrying amount: BRI EHE :
At 1 January 2021 M2021F1 /818 39,425 - 650 7,247 47,322
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A318 428,195 138,481 530 7,422 574,628
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ - - BERRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture, office
equipment
Land and Leasehold and motor
buildings improvement vehicles Total
Bt PAE
T REF HEMRES RERAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBTR ARBTR ARBT T

31 December 2020 202012H31H

Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 K20205F1 A1H 13,938 1,916 18,540 34,394
Additions NE = 596 3,971 4,567
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—rEHE AR - - 1,831 1,831
Transfer from investment property BREORENE 33,376 - - 33,376
Disposals HE - - (386) (386)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—FEHBAR = = (2,985) (2,985)
Exchange realignment [ 5 2 (2,760) (130) (307) (3,197)
At 31 December 2020 M2020%12831H 44,554 2,382 20,664 67,600

Accumulated depreciation: 25HiE -
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 4,334 1,706 10,643 16,683
Depreciation provided TERE 1,105 119 2,454 3,678
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—EHB AR - - 1,662 1,662
Disposals HE - - (386) (386)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—HRBE AR = = (704) (704)
Exchange realignment 0 5 AR (310 (93) (152) (555)
At 31 December 2020 R20206F12H31H 5,129 1,732 13,417 20,278

Net carrying amount: BREFE
At 1 January 2020 R2020%F1A1H 9,604 210 7,897 17,711

At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 39,425 650 7,247 47,322
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15.

202112 A31H
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. BREYE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BT T ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January M AR Z EREE 552,154 654,244
Disposals & - (3,220)
Transfer to owner-occupied property EREHAEARME - (33,376)
Net loss from a fair value adjustment FAEANTEZEEFE (104) (33,511)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A (20,455) (31,983)
Carrying amount at 31 December MR12A31H ZREE 531,595 552,154

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
The investment properties with an aggregate fair value of RMB444,765,000
(2020: RMB463,392,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings (note 29).

The fair values of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the USA as at 31 December 2021 are based on the
valuations carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited
(“APAC”). APAC is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Valuers and an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is the current use. The fair values of
the investment properties are derived from the capitalisation of net income
method with due allowance for the reversionary income.

At the end of the reporting period, management of the Group works with
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

REFFANEEHEREABRNESSNE
EAABZHERZERAFERAGE -
YAEEREDEAR - AFEAEARK
444,765,0007C (20204 : A R #463,392,000
T 2 WEMECEMURE R EB 2 £ & (M
££29) °

IR ER - TN R ER 2R E Y ER2021F
12A31 B Z R FEHENTREETHRE
MARAR([BARDFTETHEETE - BAA
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and Valuers
SEHEASEVEBEZBIAEREEM
ERD -

B REMERTES  REVESTARR
ERRRRFMAE - REVMERAFEARAF
BENMUERE - UAERKRAELBEERME -

NBEMHEER AREEEERGEMNA
1B ME=MAVEFERLNRTEE 2
BEXMEEARE - WEEZAFEBEAK
8 ERBHREASRARRAESRSE -

REMERBEEHERATE=0  HE—
FHBHEBHRR I B RKM S -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REVE(E)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TR RAEFBEEY R AN EAEELR ¢

Group’s investment properties:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARBTR
Fair value measurement using significant RAEAXT AJ BRI A 215
unobservable inputs (Level 3) Z R FEE(E=R)
Recurring fair value measurement for investment BALR TR 2 I E Y%
properties located in ZREENTESE
— Hong Kong —&8 63,485 65,049
- Singapore — s 267,548 281,530
- USA —%H 200,562 205,575
531,595 552,154
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements EXR B RES - F RN ERE (T A AT
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: B EmEErIEn AW EsLssE AREEE

Nil). =/ 2 BER(2020%F « ) o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWE(E)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key TYHIAEELBAF =Rz EBREME
inputs to the valuation of the Group’s significant investment properties HEMERZGERME TEH AT 2 HE

categorised into Level 3:

Range or weighted average

S E = A
Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2021 2020
L/ES fRER M EpENEIE RPN 6 20214 20204
Offices located in Hong Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq.ft.) 48.6 46
Kong with a carrying value approach FAmSAE(BFFRET)
of RMB63,485,000 NN (97 Term yield (per annum) 2.0% 1.9%
(2020: RMB65,049,000) EEAY R (G 4E)
NREBRABARE Reversion yield (per annum) 2.2% 2.1%
63,485,0007T (20204 : BHRWEE(EBF)
AR #65,049,0007T )
ZHRE
Commercial and residential Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (SGD per sq.ft.) 3.7-7.5 3.6-7.6
units located in Singapore approach FAMBHAS(BFHRFAMET)
with a carrying value of WA B AL Term yield (per annum) 2.6%-2.8% 2.5%-2.8%
RMB267,548,000 EH SR ()
(2020: RMB281,530,000) Reversion yield (per annum) 2.8%-3.0% 2.7%-3.0%
LRI AR EE A R EEkEE(EF)
267,548,0007T (20204 :
AR #281,530,0007T)
ZERAREEESN
Senior housing communities Income capitalisation Annual market rent (USD per sq.ft.) 22.0-24.4 21.7-23.5
located in the USA with a approach FEmEAS(BFAFRET)
carrying value of WA EBEAR{E Term yield (per annum) 7.5%-8.5% 7.3%-8.5%
RMB177,217,000 FHWEHE(FF)
(2020: RMB181,862,000) Reversion yield (per annum) 8.0%-9.0% 7.8%-9.0%
=B AREE A R Rl aE(EE)
177,217,007C (20204 :
AR #181,862,0007T )
2 REFERE
A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent in isolation would M EBAREMORD) EEBIRE Y
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment NEEKNEZMOCRD) - FEWZE R REFEI
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and reversion mEEBANELZINORD) EBBIRENERTF
yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair BRI GEMN) -
value of the investment properties.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior Fr R ESIMTE BT FE MR -

years.
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16. GOODWILL 16. B8
RMB’000
AR¥FTR
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2020 120201 A1 8 Z KA M EREFE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W hE — R B A A 424,722
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and 7202012 A31H &2021412H31H
31 December 2021 Z A KRR E 424,722

At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021:
Cost [B%N

Accumulated impairment
Net carrying amount

Impairment testing of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
29.68% (2020: 29.74%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2021. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwiill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumptions is consistent with external
information sources.

The following table illustrates the breakeven point of the key variable, with
all other variables held constant, where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit would have been approximately equal to the carrying
amount.

R2EtRE

FREHE

MR2020F 12 B31H &2021412 A31H :

424,722

424,722

EERE R

R EEEN 2] Bl €58 iR IEE A EE
HET Z:TECANESREBAIERSR
BBt EZ RERFHE 2 HEEE - 1]
EnETRRER 2 8h3R X 529.68% (20204 :
29.74%) °

FTE2021F12A31AZ RS EABNFRER
BEFEARE EREBEERERSTEEIERE
BHITRER R 2 BREREEAOT

BRI KR PRI MR R BB TAT IR X - Rk
SIRRE M B R 2 FERR °

EE-EEEREA-—HEREEU I EER
BRERE BERUBZAILLBRYEZRT

mEETEE -

TIXA-EEEREEEEHAECHEEE
SEIRA - BEDREBEBERAERERLE
A SRR ATRETE 2 T B fhEE o

BT RR R S ABE RN E R AR — B -

TEMATERE Y FE  HERA RS
BURTRZERT  ReELBHZ THE
SHEEFEEABRS -

2021 2020
20215 20204
Discount rate BEIE &R 30.75% 30.14%
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17.

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Contract
benefit
BRI M
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2020 RK2020F1 A1 8 24 &R FE =
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — B B A A 199,000
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and 2020912 4318 &2021F1 A1H
1 January 2021 Z AR R EREEE 199,000
Accumulated amortisation RET#EE (41,895)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 20216128318 2 A MEREFE 157,105
The amortisation is recorded into the property under development and BEE AR R YT R U S R — R A
transferred to the profit or loss together with the revenue is recognised. Bz o
LEASES 18. #HE
The Group as a lessee REBEEREBA
The Group had lease contracts of offices used in its operations. Leases of REBERANRAEENHAEHESH - PR
offices were generally with lease terms from 2 to 5 years. Generally, the EHENHBBER_ZERAF - — M5 * &
Group was restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets SENEHEEEEEERERL RSB
outside the Group. There was no lease contracts that include extension and AR o BHEEIEE M R IFRIERE L K n] &
termination options and variable lease payments. Both right-of-use assets HERMZNEAEEY - FHEEEREEAR
and lease liabilities were terminated upon the disposal of a subsidiary in BB 20204 & — M B R AR E ©
2020.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) FHARSE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the FRNALEFAEEENRAERE
movements during the year are as follows: U
Offices
WAE
RMB’000
ARET T
As at 1 January 2020 1K2020%F1A1H 5,246
Depreciation charge (note 8) WERZ (fZ8) (819)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—EHER A (4,142)
Exchange realignment b 5, A (285)
As at 31 December 2020,1 January 2021 and R2020F12A31H « 2021F1 18 &

31 December 2021 202112 A31H -



18. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
the year are as follows:

Annual Report 2021 —F T —FFR

18. HE(&)

REBEAABA (E)
(b) HEEE

FRESAENREERESNT

RMB’000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 7®20201H1H 5,566

Accretion of interest recognised during the year (note 7) FHRAERERNFE (H27) 190

Payments E (919

Disposal of a subsidiary & —RHHE R (4,526)

Exchange realignment ME 5, R B (311)
As at 31 December 2020,1 January 2021 and R2020F12 A31H « 2021F1 18 &

31 December 2021 2021912 A31H =

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of offices,
commercial and residential units, senior housing communities located in
Hong Kong, Singapore and the USA under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay the security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was RMB23,934,000 (2020: RMB26,039,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

AEBERAEBEA
AEBBECLHELHEAEGRES -
i REBRNKEDME(KE15) @ 215
AN HEAREEEBEALA REEERS - HE(K
FEEERAFP I MIERIZS  UREERR
AN TEHAERS - AEBFEANERNES
WA A AR #23,934,0007C (20204 : AR
26,039,0007T) © HFFEH R BHRKMES o

2021128310 » BEERERRFEAER
Z NEIRH A TH B R R R R IR TH & A N
T

2021 2020

20215 20205

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Within one year —FER 22,810 22,703
After one year but within two years —F A FERFLAR 17,764 18,470
After two years but within three years MFEA EB=FLAR 16,191 16,200
After three years but within four years ZF A HBEFEUA 16,440 16,512
After four years but within five years PO LA EBREUARA 16,810 16,883
After five years BiBERF 40,667 59,026

130,682 149,794
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19. PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK

2021412 H31H

19. BEARS - SRHEBITEBRUR

BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEeNEBESZEHIEH
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®T

Pledged deposits BEfEe

— Current —BNER 211,289 330,336
— Non-current — JERN A 4,587 27,935
215,876 358,271
Restricted bank balances PR HIRITAERR 1,457,690 648,635
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReEFEIEB 1,838,967 3,218,611

Pledged deposits represent bank deposits of RMB 198,421,000 (2020:
RMB 301,844,000) and deposits held with financial institutions of
RMB17,455,000 (2020: RMB56,427,000) pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure the facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loan facilities granted by certain banks to certain property buyers of the
Group’s properties. The pledged deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant borrowings and the expiry of the mortgage
guarantees provided to the property buyers. Bank deposits and deposits
held with financial institutions amounting to RMB4,587,000 (2020:
RMB27,935,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s non-current
borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

Restricted bank balances are required, pursuant to the relevant regulations
in the PRC, that certain amount of presale proceeds of properties be placed
as guarantee deposits in designated bank accounts for the construction
of the relevant properties. The deposits can only be used for payments for
construction costs of the relevant properties with approval.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB3,488,635,000 (2020:
RMB4,157,035,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

BEBESEEEBTRITIRSHEE ZRT
TFRARE 198,421,000 7T (20204 : AR
¥ 301,844,00070) R B HETRAR
#17,455,000 7T (20204 : A R #56,427,000
TL) c MEBBEFAEEZ@MERE THRITRT
AEENECETUEERZIEIBERBME °
ERFZSEREBEEEEERIERTYE
BRZIZBEREBERR - BRITTFALS#
HeHE PTiE 17 A R 4,587,0007T (20204F = A
R#27,935,0007T) B - LAESAKEIER]
HER  AUSEAERBEE -

R BIRITAESRIBIRBET RAERN - ElY
XEEMBHBAZETEEFABERITAA
EREEYMEEZERTREZRES ZFIA o &t
R BERBEHATRARINEBYEZZ
SEPRA o

RITRERE A FRTERNEZFZHHEE
R EREUR B, SRITAEERE 17 AT B R 3K
R AEAREZRT - BERREFEEAR
ZAREEEEAFEREE

RBREHREEER  AEBAARBFEZR
& NMIRTT S8 A AR 53,488,635,0007T (2020
£ AR¥4,157,035,0007T ) ° AR ¥ T 88
BB AREMEE - Af - BREFEALZ
CONEZIRIEFDDR(LEE - EEURNESER
B ARBEREBARREEITINEZIEHIR
TEARE SIBEE M EE o



20.

21,

22.

23.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Completed properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC. The Group
carried out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the
reporting period and recognised RMB91,691,000 (2020: Nil) of write-down
for completed properties held for sale as at 31 December 2021.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are all situated in the PRC. The Group carried
out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the reporting period
and recognised RMB225,073,000 (2020: RMB150,000,000) of write-down
for properties under development as at 31 December 2021.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS PAID FOR LAND
ACQUISITIONS

The amount represented deposits and prepayments paid for land
acquisitions arising from the acquisition of land use rights in the PRC.
These deposits will be converted into properties under development upon
completion of the land acquisition process and fully refundable if the
acquisition is not successful.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS

20.

21.

22.

23.
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FEHEZER I

BIEHEZE T IMERIMATE - NEE
REREHREEE A e SRR E#THE - R
2021F 12 A31 HERMBRIFELHEZEZIY
# AR%91,691,0007C (20204 : &) »

BERPUWE

BERAPYEDIBLALNRE o ALK BERREHHRK
48 A YA IR R E TR 0 R 2021F12 A
31 B FERMUR R R ¥ 3 A R 225,073,000
JC(2020%F : A R¥150,000,0007T) °

ENTiERERANK

FHeBEERTEEB I MEREMEEZE
NIl ERe RBNRE SRSV L
WUWEERF e R BB RRTYE - WIS
WARMKY - BIFEEURE -

g%%%‘EMEWﬂE&EME

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR® T

Accounts receivable JiE Uk BR R 12,210 14,204
Less: Impairment o ORE - -
12,210 14,204

Prepaid value-added taxes and other taxes TERHEE R R M F T 1,993,816 1,566,028
Deposits and prepayments & R FIE 243,054 220,941
Costs of obtaining contracts BB EHZ KA 286,408 203,346
Other receivables H bk 148,906 109,263
2,672,184 2,099,578

Less: Impairment B RE (650) (650)
2,671,534 2,098,928

2,683,744 2,113,132

Accounts receivable represent receivables from sales of properties, dividend
receivables and rental receivables.

Receivables arising from sales of properties are due for settlement in
accordance with the terms of the related sale and purchase agreements.
The settlement terms of rental receivables and property management fee
receivables are upon presentation of demand notes. All accounts receivable
were aged less than 3 months as at the end of the reporting period (2020:
less than 3 months), based on the revenue recognition date or invoice date.

FEYERFIEYRIHE - IE REERUFR

KEMEHE ZRERFADRIES BEEIHH
GREMEE - BAES RERNEERE 2
BEGRRETBFBNEREE - NRSH
K- FIAEWRFIR K S TER A Bk 3 R H
FT 2 BRERIERBME A (20205 : ERR3MEA) -
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23.

2021412 H31H

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

No provision for impairment of accounts receivable was provided for as at
31 December 2021 and 2020 as the directors of the Company consider the
expected credit loss is insignificant. Set out below is the information about
the credit risk exposure on the Group’s financial assets included in other
receivables and other assets using a provision matrix:

23. BUYWIRR - HttBEWREREME

BEDITTIRN SRS B HAE BB EERET
NAERMEREER - BEXDLDERZEA
BRUEBERA TP 2 848 Bl #0788 K B
E o At BERBMEAEINEER - GREEE
BEARREE AR SEBBESMF - /00N
AEARREERR TN SRR A EEHR -

HRARREEZRABEHEESFEBRERERX
A 2021 % 20204 12 A 31 B I £ 5t & UK Bk
KEH R ERE - TXEFIERBEEES T
AEBFAHEMEKFREREMEEZSRE
ERRNEERRHER :

Past due
Current within 1 year Total
BN HA BEH—-FUR st
As at 31 December 2021 A2021%F12831H
Expected credit loss rate TEREEEIEX 0% 0.5% - 5% 0.43%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REAE(ARETT) 134,506 14,400 148,906
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEBR(ARETT) - 650 650
Past due
Current within 1 year Total
BN &R BH—F0A At
As at 31 December 2020 72020612831 H
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBEX 0% 0.5% - 5% 0.60%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) RHEBR(ARETT) 36,451 72,812 109,263
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEER(ARETT) - 650 650

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

24. BRAVEFABREZSHEE

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong NEB LT ZRARE S - 28
Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong REBEIN T Z AR E S 4,444 4,570
4,444 4,598

REIT securities listed in the USA RER ETh 2z B EREEEE S 419,524 316,992
423,968 321,590




25.

26.

27.

28.
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. ERRF - CEWREREFEHR
AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR
Accounts and bills payable EREBERREE 221,514 494,346
Accrued construction costs (Note) JERH RS A(HE) 5,428,927 6,221,656
Rental deposits received BEWAEZS 8,330 5,749
Retention deposits and payable RB & REMNFIA 262,011 109,498
Real estate and other taxes payable R EERREAMFIIE 82,324 47,428
Other payables and accruals HEtENRERETER 353,747 425,584
6,356,853 7,304,261
Less: Rental deposits received — non-current B BEREERE —IERE (6,492) (4,866)
6,350,361 7,299,395

The average credit period of accounts payable ranges from 30 to 90 days
(2020: 30 to 90 days). All accounts payable were aged within one year,
based on invoice dates.

Note: Included in accrued construction costs are amounts due to a related
company controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms.
Zhang”), of approximately RMB523,479,000 (2020: RMB1,227,889,000)
for its construction work.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represented advance payments from customers based on
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. The increase in
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021 was due to more property
projects having started pre-sale during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Ms. Huang and together with her spouse, Mr.
Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang, have the controlling interests over
these related companies.

LOANS FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The Group has entered into loan agreements with a related company,
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Zensun Real Estate”), which is
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang, pursuant to which Zensun Real Estate
will provide unsecured loans to the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Those
amounts were shown under the current liabilities as Zensun Real Estate had
the discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
loans approximated their fair values at initial recognition.

26.

27.

28.

JERMERRZ FHEERNF30HZE90H (2020
F : 30HZE90R) - BREEFEHH - 2 EER
IR B—FA °

Biat - REEH RS AR AI K A R ¥#523,479,000 7T
(20204 : AR#1,227,889,0007T) At H 2
S T2 RS — IR 2 B (B HuangZ + 2
ZRRBHE L ([RLL )is]) 2 308

BHEaE

ZECBRERBYEHEANFENRHERA
FEPWERA AR FIE o 702021612 A31BE K
BEEMIBRESYERRRAFERRE
B

FEAS BB 1 RIFRIH

FENRE QB FASEEN - R EWIREKE
& ° Huang R TER A RBRAEERE LR R
ZTHZEEE R R AR -

RE—EEEQXRZEN

AEEEEERRTEEREXARAA(NE
BB % | - AHuang X T &AIEHI 2 A R]) EERT
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

29. RITRHEMEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
ER BR
FRE(%) Epc)=! ARETR FH=E(%) Z8A ARETR
Current BN &R
Bank loans - secured RITER—FRAE 2.20-8.30 2022 2,908,958 2.16-9.98 2021 2,505,742
2022F 20214
Other loans - secured Hin &% —BHER 5.21-11.00 2022 1,720,530  5.64-11.00 2021 1,650,953
2022 20216
Senior notes - unsecured (a)(b) BAZE-RERG)b) 12.50 2022 1,265,028 12.80 2021 2,194,932
2022F 20214
5,894,516 6,351,627
Non-current FEENHA
Bank loans - secured BIER-FHEA 1.61-9.98 2023-2030 3,015,551 2.25-9.98 2022-2030 5,223,614
20235 % 2022F %
2030F 2030%F
Senior notes - unsecured (b)(c)d)  BEEE—EEE b)) 12.50 2023-2024 2,274,113 12.50 2022 1,291,284
2023F 2 20224F
20244
Other loans - secured HipEH—FEH 10.10-10.50 2023 611,150 8.50-11.00 2022 2,269,400
2023F 20224
5,900,814 8,784,298
11,795,330 15,135,925
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR® T
Analysed into: DA -
Bank and other borrowings repayable: RTHBEEEZFRITR
HiEE :
Within one year —FA 5,894,516 6,351,627
In the second year E_F 3,529,949 7,117,249
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFLF(BIEEREME) 2,364,150 1,658,083
Beyond five years BARF 6,715 8,966
11,795,330 15,135,925




29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period were denominated in the following currencies.
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29. RITRHEHMEE(E)

TIA T E#FIE -

B FEFH

RNBERMEER - RITREMEEZREE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
SGD Nk T 62,646 70,363
usDh = 3,646,840 3,616,228
RvMB AR 8,085,844 11,449,334
11,795,330 15,135,925
Notes: Hiat -
(a) On 3 October 2019, the Company issued senior notes at a principal (a) R2019F10A3H + AR RIRIBERBE R 21K
amount of US$220 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due BT 2021 E10 A3 R BB 2 A58
on 3 October 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 220,000,000 L4 E12.8EE % Z# (2019
subscription agreement (the “2019 Original Notes”). Subsequently on FRIGZE |) - E%ER2019F12H208 » &
20 December 2019, the Company issued additional senior notes at a A AR IR 20194 [R 18 25 R 19 7% 2 B 15
principal amount of US$120 million under the same terms and conditions XEL A SR INEE 1T AR € 57 120,000,000 % T 1B
of the subscription agreement of the 2019 Original Notes. The additional KN - BIMBAZEE2010FRIAEIRA
senior notes are consolidated with the 2019 Original Notes and form a HtE—EZE%] - BIR2021E10 38 RIH 2 4
single series at an aggregate principal amount of US$340 million carrying £ #8%8340,000,000E& L F E12.8EEELEEE
interest of 12.8% per annum due on 3 October 2021 (“2019 Notes”). The (T2019F Z4& |) - 2019F ZHE R B BB R FT
2019 Notes was listed and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. FtHRES -
In September 2021, US$142,420,000 of the 2019 Notes, representing R202149 8 - 2019F 45 142,420,0003 7
approximately 42.01% of the total aggregate principal amount of the (EREE019FEZE AL EFAI42.01%) 5
outstanding 2019 Notes, have been validly tendered for exchange and BIEXHBEANIERRIEEARIBIERR
accepted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the exchange offer in WEEER U FEITOINEE - Mk
exchange for the new notes to be issued, and the remaining outstanding TAREE 4 5196,580,000% 7T 2 A B HARS (8
amount of US$196,580,000 were repaid upon maturity. Such amount 3& ° 5%142,420,000E 7T 0 X #R2021F9 A
of US$142,420,000 were in exchanged for the new notes issued on 13 13 A BTN 4R (A0 T XM sEcFraFit) » &
September 2021 (as detailed in note ¢ below). Details of the exchange MEANFFEHRAAT HE A2021E988
offer are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 8 September B o
2021.
(b) On 13 March 2020, the Company issued senior notes at a principal (b) M20206F3 A 138 © AR A EITHR202269 A

amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on 13
September 2022. The US$200 million senior notes are listed and traded
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds of the senior
notes were intended to refinance existing indebtedness and for project
developments and general corporate purposes. Details of the assurance
of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
13 March 2020.

13 B B3 2 x4 %8200,000,0003% TTE 2. 12.5
[EE5%Z# - $%200,000,000% TTE EZHERN
BEAMREMREE - BAREMERIET
HRAFRAESERE BHEZREAR—RK
TERS - FRBEEAZEREITHNFBEINAR
A HH 520203 A13A AL ©
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(©

On 13 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2023. The US$200 million senior notes are listed
and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. An amount of
US$142,420,000 were issued in exchange for the 2019 Notes due on 3
October 2021(as detailed in note a above), and the remaining amount of
US$57,580,000 were issued in new money, where the proceeds were
intended to refinance existing indebtedness. Details of the issuance of
the senior notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 14
September 2021.

On 24 September 2021, the Company issued senior notes at a principal
amount of US$160 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due on
23 April 2024. The US$160 million senior notes are listed and traded on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds of the senior notes
were intended to refinance existing indebtedness. Details of the issuance
of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
24 September 2021.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s pledged deposits, investment properties, completed properties
held for sale and properties under development with the total carrying
amount of RMB15,799,849,000 (2020: RMB17,443,890,000). In addition,
shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to obtain certain
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2021
and 2020. Details of pledged assets are disclosed in note 38 to the financial
statements.

In additions, as at 31 December 2021, the Group’s senior notes and bank
and other borrowings were guaranteed by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements

29. RITRHEHMEE(E)

Hiet - (&)

(© 12021498138 » ANARIZE1TR202349 A
13 B 258~ /<4 %8200,000,000 T £ B 12.5
[EELEEH - %200,000,000% T ELEZHER
BRI ETRESE  142,420,000% T
BITAR #2021 410 A3 B 2| 8 2 20194F
F& (A EXMFFafTEF ) - #4T57,580,000
ETAFEBRIT - IS RBERAERGER
BRE - BRELZERZBTHFHBENEARF]
BHEIA2021 9 A14BMARE »

(d) M2021F9H248 KRR EITHR202454A
23 A B8 2 N4 % 160,000,000 T E B 12.5
[EE%EZERE - :%160,000,000% T8 5 ZHERN
BB ETMREE - BAERERMERIEF
BERAERABHBERE - ARELRERET
HFBHRAAR BHA2021F9A24BHA

& o

AEERETRITREMEBRTEAEEREER
B AR #15,799,849,0007T (20204 : AR
17,443,890,0007T) 2 E K IfizE « HEWE -
BEREZETIYERERPYEELRR -
AN - 7220214 2020512 A31H » & THt
B AR BN EAIEEE - ABUE AL E T ER
ZETROREMEE  EHECEBEEZ
BB 75 2R R M FE38 K 55 -

Uksh - 20216128315 - AEE 2 BARIE
ARRITREMEERBAERRER - BREE
R FH BRI TSR 41 -
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EEFRIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary TREEESVREHRBEAENBEZESH T
differences are as follows: s 8
Deferred tax assets EEMREEE
Write-down
Accrued of properties
Provision expenses for under
Tax loss for LAT tax purpose development Total
+ B ER WA
HIEEE BE REHEAX BEPYE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR TR AR¥ETR AR¥ET AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2020 202091 B1H 63,198 38,347 92,609 - 194,154
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —MM B AR 25,246 - 9,577 - 34,823
Credited to profit or loss during the SRR BT A
year (note 11) (H1aE11) 37,214 3,734 17,227 37,500 95,675
Deferred tax assets at R2020%F12A31H &
31 December 2020 and 20211 A1BZ
1 January 2021 RIERIBEE 125,658 42,081 119,413 37,500 324,652
Credited to profit or loss during FARB&RERA
the year (note 11) (HisE11) 33,642 9,744 52,367 23,385 119,138
Deferred tax assets at 20215128318 2
31 December 2021 RIEFRIBEE 159,300 51,825 171,780 60,885 443,790

During the year ended 31 December 2021, deferred tax assets were
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
relevant future taxable profits will be available against for utilisation. These
unused tax losses were in respect of certain PRC subsidiaries carried
forward at the end of 2021 and the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these certain PRC subsidiaries will generate sufficient future
taxable profits.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had total unrecognised unused tax losses
of RMB554,526,000 (2020: RMB532,018,000) and unrecognised temporary
differences of RMB73,224,000 (2020: Nil) which were subject to agreement
with the respective tax authorities, available to offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these unused
tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries and the Company that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Except for tax losses incurred in the PRC amounting to RMB147,584,000
(2020: RMB107,356,000) will expire within five years since the date of
carryforward, these unrecognised unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely, subject to fulfilment of certain conditions or rules.

HZE2021F 12831 ALLFE - HAlsEEEEH
RERFERFL A I8 - RIS AB AR IE
EIEEREEREEE - RSABDAREESE
ThAE TR BB AR A R2021 FK A KIE
RANREEZRE  ZSETHEMNBAR G
EE RN RRERTEF

R2021%F12 83818 - ASBEABRADAH
TEE 1B 47 A AR E554,526,0007T (20204 :
AR®532,018,00070) K R FERER ZEAR
#73,224,0007C (20204F : 4&) - EG BFS#
BRI 2 e o RAERIDRERFE - ARF
BEEITHEERE - BREBZHBATIRAR
AIEE KK ] B A JE R At b Al AT FA DA 3K 85 81
HEE MU ERZERSATHEEBRERE
EHBEE  -BRPBEELEZHBEEBARE
147,584,0007T (20204 : A R#107,356,000
T EEERRRAFAERIN  ZERER
REARBEEN ERBLE  HEAFAET
&R A -
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)
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30. EZERIE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities ELEHRESE
Revaluation  Withholding
of properties tax on
acquired distributable
Accelerated  Revaluation under profits of the
tax of investment business Group’s PRC
depreciation properties combination subsidiaries Total
AEEHE
EBEH MR
DB IE REWHE ETKEZ ] 2k
e Bt MEER ZHEHH met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT R ARBT R ARBT T ARBT R
At 1 January 2020 7202051 A1H (59) (2,001) (2,090) (95,000) (99,150)
Acquisition of a subsidiary o B — Tt /8 A ) - - (433,037) = (433,037)
Credited to profit or loss during FARB=RETA
the year (note 11) (KfzE11) - 55,078 19,255 74,333
Exchange realignment RIS 124 - - 128
Deferred tax liabilities at 202012 A318 &
31 December 2020 and 20211 A1BZ
1 January 2021 RIERTEBE (55) (1,877) (380,049) (75,745) (457,726)
Credited to profit or loss during FARBZRERETA
the year (note 1) (BizF11) - - 9,860 15,498 25,358
Exchange realignment b 5 R ©) 49 - - 40
Deferred tax liabilities at R2021F12A318 2
31 December 2021 EREHEEE (64) (1,828) (370,189) (60,247) (432,328)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes at applicable rate of 10% on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB902,453,000 (31 December 2020: RMB538,949,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable to distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future.

RIEF EMEAERE - R E AR 2 E
IMEE D ED IR E TEINEEER - Ak
A& B10% .2 TEHEL © %28 200841 A1 HE
A N AR 2007912 H31 B 2B &R 40
AR B b B AN B $% S A FTAE R A RE R R] A B AR
e - BEARBEENRE - At » NEME
AT B R AL 2 BB A R s 20084 1 A1
AZREANBIRNOBREZBERATE10%
BmIBIR -

2021612 A31H » ER W EERELHIBEE
EORERNMMEARNEERBERER
#5841 A R#902,453,000 7T (20204 12 A 31
H : AR%538,949,0007T) - EERA & 1Al
AARKRAETREDIRZERF
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TR FFER

SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR® T

Issued and fully paid: BETRERE :
1,918,386,669 (2020: 19,133,866,698) 1,913,386,669% (20204 :

ordinary shares 19,133,866,698% ) & A% 5,326,923 5,326,923

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

ARABIRALS B EERTIAT

Number of

ordinary
shares in issue Share capital

21T
ZEREE [N
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 10,294,699,948 2,014,112
Issue of new ordinary shares BITEE B 8,839,166,750 3,322,546
Share issue expenses B EITHA = (9,7835)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 H2020%F12 A31H K2021F1 18  19,133,866,698 5,326,923
Share Consolidation (Note) B&An& OF (A7) (17,220,480,029) =
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H 1,913,386,669 5,326,923

Note:

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 5 August 2021, the share consolidation
on the basis that every ten issued ordinary shares in the share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one ordinary share in the share capital of the
Company became effective on 9 August 2021 (the “Share Consolidation”).

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with other shares in issue in

all respects.

W

RIBIRRN2021F8 A5 B BTN AR RS HIREAS
EBBHEBAER  BREARRARAFFHREE
TEBREFARARRAR —REBIETHRD
AHER2021F8 A9REB([BMDEHE]) ©

AR BT AR E R A R B BTG
EERSM -

157



158  Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

32.

33.

202112 A31H
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(@) PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
entities are required to appropriate 10% of their net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

(b) Property revaluation reserve
Property revaluation reserve represents the gain on revaluation
of the property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment
properties.

(c) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of group
entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In
view of the Group’s expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding
from banks, financial institutions, bonds, senior notes and its related
companies in which Ms. Huang has beneficial interests and continued
to look for other external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, raising of new borrowings or redemption of debts.

32.

33.

iR

AEBEZRESBERLREREZE2021F12A31H
IEEEZEH 2 RGRAESEHERN -

(@) HBEIEERE
REBEFBERBERNHBERZONE R
AIMARERMAA  ZSERARNR
aAFERR Z10%RBUEE BRI - Ut
TREPREAEREE  EERER
BED HEMBEAR0%BLE - ZHEMEF
BUESA R ERAMERARMEE TR
B Z MR - R TE 2 i P A SH e
BRI INRA - BEREFEER
BIAELINAEEEMERZ225% °
EE TS AERR B AN E
& PARERREMEDIK °

(b) MEEMMHE
MEEHREREYE  BEEREEH
E=REMEZEA W -

(c) HERE
INEFERIERESE TR BRI
ELXNFTAINEESE - BRERBEREN
2 AR S RTBURRE ©

BEAXRREREE

AEBERBEART BERAEEERBENTE
e RFEBEtEREER TERRRS
R AEER - ERAEE 2 EERE - AKE
BIRTT - EEE - E5 - #ERE kHuang
LIHEEEa R MEAREEESRRK
BESREMIIPRERE - AEBEBEBRE
SUBEFERFETE

ARBDEZBFHLEHNEARE - BREAZ
HEHN  ARREZERREANRA R b 82K
AIERE - REARBEZEE  AEEKER
ZASBRE - BITHRD EEMEEXBELE
1% FPEEEREARRE -
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 33. EXEREE(E)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies and loans
from a related company, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the

reporting period was as follows:

TR FFER

FEBEARBRIBAETE  NEERTE
HMEE  EBNEEARFENRKE —HEE
REER

BRSRESFEEAE  XRHIR

TRHBREERES - RESHR 2 EAEAE
T

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥TR

Amounts due to related companies FETREE A T ZIE 1,976,226 4,100,961
Loans from a related company KE—MEEQRZER 8,204,904 8,374,973
Bank and other borrowings (current and non-current) 817 R EMEE GRBI RIERE)) 11,795,330 15,135,925
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o R RIRSFEIEE (1,838,967) (3,218,611)
Restricted bank balances IR ISR TS #A (1,457,690) (648,635)
Pledged deposits (current and non-current) EEMIRS (R RIERS) (215,876) (358,271)

Net debt aEFHE 18,463,927 23,386,342
Total assets BB E 68,223,815 67,152,356
Gearing ratio BEBELE 27% 35%
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34, REMNEszeMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as REPR - FELMIAZREAEBENT

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 20214
Financial assets THEE
2021 2020
20214 20205
Financial assets Financial assets

at fair value Financial at fair value Financial

through profit assetsat  through profit assets at

orloss amortised cost orloss amortised cost

BATEA BEEEE  ROFERA RBERA
BEVEMAE HHZOREE RECEREE HEZLREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value through RATFEFABRL
profit or loss SREE 423,968 - 321,590 -
Accounts receivable FEUER X - 12,210 - 14,204
Financial assets included in other receivables 5t A E i EUEIE B H i BE 2
and other assets SHEE - 148,256 - 108,613
Pledged deposits BEMZE - 215,876 = 358,271
Restricted bank balances XBHRITEH - 1,457,690 - 648,635
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEER - 1,838,967 - 3,218,611
423,968 3,672,999 321,590 4,348,334
Financial liabilities THEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
R A RE SRR A
TEzeRAE HEZEEAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Accounts and bills payables ERERERREMNEE 221,514 494,346
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FTAHAMERNRIE  He &k
deposits and accruals EtBRE s 2RmAaRE 6,036,957 6,762,487
Amounts due to related companies FERAE A I FRIE 1,976,226 4,100,961
Loans from a related company RE—HEEARIZER 8,204,904 8,374,973
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 11,795,330 15,135,925

28,234,931 34,868,692




35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Annual Report 2021

TR FFER

35. SR TAZAFERLAFEER

RIERR  SREWMTAZRERENT

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20205 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARBTT AR%T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZE
through profit or loss & E 423,968 321,590 423,968 321,590
Financial liabilities SREE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 11,795,330 15,135,925 11,591,687 14,888,014

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in other receivables and other assets,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and loans from a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were assessed to
be insignificant.

ERECOHERSIESEERE  XRHIR
TR - BEEMRE - BRERN  FTAEME
WHENREMEE SBMEE - BHKK - &
AEMENRBEREAERAZEHAE BN
BEARFRIBERKE —RBEEARZERQTF

BT

AEERUBEREIENT B BEEES
MTARNFEAEZBERERF - ¥BEEE
ERARUBERS - NERSBAH - M
DR T AN EER B REE GHETER
ZEBGAE - HEHEFNBEEHRIE -

EREENRABENQAFEDEERA B EERY
HEBEXZHBTAZEHE  RANBRHE
ZEREERBERI -

B EMBRARE 2 A FHERTISREE -

RITREMEEZ ATFETRBGERANRR
SHREBRARTARABLUER  EERR K
BRTEHRBEZ TEZFERETIRAE - B
2021F12A31H » A&EEEBERITREMES
WTBEYRBRERNAFELEHBHUTLE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. TRMIAZAFERAFERER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%)
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DN EER
TRITAEECRIAZ A FEANEER

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAFHETEZEE -
As at 31 December 2021 Ro021F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERUTHEHEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERTIE BEAUTERE BEAFAHE
ZH{E BWAHE WABE
(B—-#) (=8 (=8 met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT ARBTR ARBTR
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFABRZ
through profit or loss SMEE 423,968 - - 423,968
As at 31 December 2020 o020 12 H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERAUNTHEGEZATE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERT 5 EXUBR BEATABER
ZHE WABE BWAHE
(%) (=) (B=#) @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T AR®T R AR®BT R
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBRZ
through profit or loss CTREE 321,590 - - 321,590

The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

MR2021F12 318 » AEBWET[IZAFE
FrEZ & mMA[E(20204F « &) °

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

FR - eMEENSREES —FHEE L2
R & AT ERT 2 2 SR - JN S o
BE = (20204 : £) o
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. TMIAZAFERAFERER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (48

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEHR(E)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: HEAFEZEE
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERUATBEHEZ A VE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERTS ERAEE ERRAEE
ZHE BWARE WARE
(B-%) (B=#) (B=8) ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%BTR AR%TR AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMER - 11,591,687 - 11,591,687

As at 31 December 2020 Ro020F 12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTHEGEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SERTIE EXTHR EXTABR

ZHME WABE PN ¢:
(5—#%) (=) (F=8) mst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR AR®TR

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE = 14,888,014 = 14,888,014




164 Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021

36.

2021412 H31H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to related companies, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities and loans from a related company. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rate set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax.

36.

MEERERERFRRBEEK

AEENIZERTATZRAERSRASSE
BB - ZEBRHIRITERS - BRIRR - EME
WHIR -« EAERR - HfitENFAERESER
NMENBEARNE REeMITARERS
MEEEL AKEEFHEMCEREERA
- MEERRE  RATEAABRRZESR
BE  ROKEMGEER HERERKE—MH
MEARZER ZEeMITANTERMNE
NEREEZEERE -

AEETMTREENTZRAR AN EER
BRABREAR  SMNERR - FERBRRETEE
EEE - —KRMEF - ARELEEREERR
ReT RS - AEBAFALBETARIZH0T
EeMTA BEEgRJYREZSTRARER
KSR - Eaan T e

F=Ek

7 5% (58 T il 9 T 355 1) 3% 28 3 o = 2 B Y 29
PEAEEFSRTRAMEERR - AEE
WEERATESR T A DR XRER - KEEH
ERAESREEEEEREFSKA

TRINEMREEMAZRERRFTENER
T MENSEARESGFREDTHAEE
BRI 2 & -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
2021 in basis points before tax
HEY R FRBE A %
20214 (FF&) #m, GRd)
RMB’000
AR®TR

Loans and borrowings denominated in LRIEEFEZERREE
usb X 100 (1,077)
UsD =TT (100) 1,077
SGD AN 7T 100 (626)
SGD EDIlIE o (100) 626



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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M¥RREEEERBE(A)

Interest rate risk (continued) FZ=EE(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in basis points before tax
BB tH R A& F
(Fp&) i, GRs)
2020 RMB’000
20204 ARET T

Loans and borrowings denominated in ITIEEFE 2B REE

UsD =T 100 (1,300)
UsD £ (100) 1,300
SGD N T 100 (704)
SGD AN 7T (100) 704

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management manages this exposure by regular review of price
fluctuation.

Price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at the end of the reporting period.

LS

R A B AR B 75 B AR 15 UK R (B B 3 B B
HHEYUBRAZHFRATFETER AR - AEE
AZEIBRBRAFEFABGEZEMEEZ
ERERAERRERE o B EEEEREH
ERRIEE IR LR o

ERBRE
A TBURE DT AR E MR R A FEGF AEE
ZeRMEEBRAEAIARERE

Increase/

Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit

in market price before tax

mELHR RRBH A E F

(Fp&) #hn, CED)

% RMB’000

AR® T

31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 10 42,397
(10) (42,397)

31 December 2020 202012 A31H 10 32,159
(10) (82,159)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BREREEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from transactions by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

S R B
AEEEEHRZEERR - ZFRBRVAR
REBRIABMMIGEEH AN EEETR
ZMEL o

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, USD and SGD
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and

TRINTERAEM A EAZRIFIENIBER
T BB - RTINS TE RS IR
BER B U AR B S HIRAOBR T AT R R 2 81
BRESM(BREREERREZ A FEZEHI

liabilities). B) o
Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in exchange (decrease)
rate of foreign in profit
currency before tax
SNEE R BRBE A5
LA (THE) #m, Cl)
% RMB’000
AR¥TT
2021 20214
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD fini 7 70 H R T HHE 1 (31,335)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT A ETEE (1) 31,335
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi 3 D3 T 3 S T HHE 1 (508)
If the SGD weakens against the USD fis 37 I3 T K R B (1) 508
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD i 78 70 A5 # i T AHE 1 39
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD sl 785 70 5 #T AN T B2 (B (1) (39)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT A REHE 1 1
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB i mH AREERE (1) (1)
2020 20204
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD 1878 7T 5 = T HHE 1 (31,697)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD BT AT E 1) 31,697
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi %7 D03 T K 2T HHE 1 (622)
If the SGD weakens against the USD {8 ¥ N3 T R T B (1) 522
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD i 785 70 53 AN T HHE 1 43
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD s P85 70 5 ET IS T B2 B (1) (43)
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT ARBFHE 1 4
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT i AR KR E (1) (4)



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without undue
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

36.
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MERERERRRBEEKR)

FERR
AEBEEEERUREBRIZE=ZTETR
Z o WBAKRENEEK - A BRIREEHRIE
TRGNEPHERIEERERFF ° UL
AEESHEEEREFTIRAERBR - MA%E
B2 ERRERILNEX

REBMBERFEER
TRINTERAEEEERRNEEEARRR

AEERRBA - TEERNBEBHERN(ER
MEMBRBZERAXBZHAAE) RA12A
BTHZFRIERDH -

25 eRATREEMAREE

As at 31 December 2021 Ro0214F12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A
BEHEERSE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE E2RER EIRER KPS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Accounts receivable* Wi B 3R - - - 2,127 2,127
Accounts receivable JRE Wi BR 3R
- Normal** — g 10,083 - - - 10,083
Financial assets included in other 5t A E 4l fE UL ZRIE K2
receivables and other assets HitWBEZSREE
- Normal* — [E 148,256 - - - 148,256
- Doubtful™* — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits [REfiwiE s
— Not yet past due — R 215,876 - - - 215,876
Restricted bank balances R FISRI TR
— Not yet past due — R H 1,457,690 - - - 1,457,690
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEER
— Not yet past due — K78 1,838,967 - - - 1,838,967
3,670,872 - 650 2,127 3,673,649
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

36. MXEMREEEERBEK(E)

Credit risk (continued) EERE(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RERRER FAER(E)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12831 H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A
BHEEESE 2HEHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
SE1PEER SE2REER EIRER KPS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥T AR¥ T AR% TR AR¥T
Accounts receivable* JFEE L B 0 - - - 6,335 6,335
Accounts receivable e BR K
- Normal* — g 7,869 - - - 7,869
Financial assets included in other &+ A E At & U 2B K2
receivables and other assets HtWBEZSREE
— Normal** —Eg~ 108,613 - - - 108,613
— Doubtful** — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BERRe
— Not yet past due — K@ H 358,271 - - - 358,271
Restricted bank balances R HIRITAE
— Not yet past due — RiH 648,635 = = = 648,635
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFMEEL
— Not yet past due — R 3,218,611 - - = 3,218,611
4,341,999 - 650 6,335 4,348,984

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment as detailed in note 23 to the financial

statements, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

ke

recognition.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in accounts receivable,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

* T AN 5= B R R B TS SRk MY S 28 P R R E RS A
TERENERAM E - ARETEERERE
RIEERER °

- Bt NEHRERR - Bt EKGRR R At EEZ
SEMAERDY  AVEENBETSREEN
EERER B MIa R ARBERMNE - SRE
ENEEEEBERAIER] -




36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities and loans from a related company. Cash flows are being closely
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

Annual Report 2021 —F T —FFR

36. FKEREEEREREEKE)

RBEEERE

AEBZBBEREBMNARTREMES  H
EEENALRE —HBERRZER  #1FE
SREHRELRERLEZFE - AEERERY

Jricg B
ERBERE °

RBEMR ARESBEBEREBESORUE
MFRIEL BT

follows:
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12H31H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
H—FR —ZEWF =EEE BBRE met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥TR
Accounts and bills payable ENBRRRENER 221,514 - - - 221,514
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A E 42 Wiz 4 K&
deposits received and accruals EiERZERBE 6,036,957 - - - 6,036,957
Amounts due to related companies &1 [EE A &) ZE 1,976,226 - - - 1,976,226
Loans from a related company RKE—HEEARIZER
— Non-interest-bearing —B 8 8,204,904 - - - 8,204,904
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 6,767,672 3,938,893 2,457,713 6,998 13,171,276
23,207,273 3,938,893 2,457,713 6,998 29,610,877
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B ISHE (R & 41 (f152) 18,002,298 - - - 18,002,298
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. HEEREE R ERBER(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(E)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F 12531 H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
F—FR —EWF =Z2hHE BBREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥ TR AR¥TR
Accounts payable TR IR 494,346 - - - 494,346
Financial liabilities included in other =t A E fth 2 Uik K& fE =t
deposits received and accruals ERzemaE 6,762,487 - - - 6,762,487
Amounts due to related companies J& 1< &8 A &) F0E 4,100,961 - - = 4,100,961
Loans from a related company RE—EREEARZER
— Non-interest-bearing — %8 8,374,973 - - - 8,374,973
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 7,646,155 7,667,366 1,800,461 9,452 17,123,434
27,378,922 7,667,366 1,800,461 9,452 36,856,201
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) B IS &R & 49 (#52) 13,559,922 - - - 13,559,922

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the guaranteed financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.

Hat -

RS BRERREOFIARERY F 77 REVAR IR
B AEBREBEZFAIRESNE2BERKEZER
S - ANBEPHAERZRY  ARERRAR
EARE RS NIRRT K » Wi - &Ml
ARFHFARBERREZTREMAE - LA
BMARTEFIMFERIBERKKASEREE
EEBBME °



37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37.

CASH FLOWS

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Annual Report 2021 —F T —FFR

mERE

MEBRMEE

() BMEEIBHAEET

Amounts
due to Loans from Bank and
related a related Accrued other
companies company interest*  borrowings Total
ENBE RE—HBRE RITR
DNERIE NEERK ey Hiufg & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR%®TR

AR®TR AR¥TR AR¥TR

At 1 January 2021 7202141 81H 4,100,961 8,374,973 140,321 15,135,925 27,752,180
Changes from financing BERS
cash flows (note) HEBE (M) (2,124,735) (170,069)  (1,346,699)  (3,238,674) (6,911,417
Interest expenses FEFHX - - 1,323,241 - 1,354,481
Foreign exchange translation HNEHRE - - - (101,921) (101,921)
At 31 December 2021 M20215F12H318 1,976,226 8,204,904 116,863 11,795,330 22,093,323
Amounts Loans from Bank and
due to related arelated Accrued Lease other
companies company interest* liabilities borrowings Total
EffBE Re-HEE IR
PG AIEH ZRE* HESE EftfEg by
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 R2020%1 A1A 956,458 7,490,728 107,016 5,566 20,235,845 28,795,613
Changes from financing BERS
cash flows (note) LB () 2467210 RT3 (15%0.111) 019 (2651667  (3831,242)
Interest expenses ilk\b - - 1,563,416 190 - 1,563,606
Foreign exchange translation SNERE - - - (311) (248,259) (248,564)
Increase arising from acquisition of a subsidiary KE—EIHBAR 23EM 677,203 - - - 800,000 1,477,293
Decrease arising from disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—HBA R 24 - - - (4,526) - (4526)
Non-cash transitions FHeR 5 - 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31A 4,100,961 8,374,973 140,321 - 15,135,925 27,752,180
Note: The financing cash flows are made up of the net amounts of new Mt - BERSRERGEHERERAZ

bank and other borrowings raised, repayment of bank and other
borrowings, interest paid, advance from/repayment to related
companies, loans received from/repaid to a related company and
lease payments (including principal and interest portions) in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Included in accounts payable, deposits received and accruals.

MERTREMEER  ERRTRE
fEE  ENFE  BMEARRKS
BN B/ EE-—HBEARNER
MEENF(BREAERMNERD) 2
R

STABNER - ERRE REAER -
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. S4B & RBRKL(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERSHRHAZE

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
flows is as follows:

RenERMBEERSIMEARMT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR
Within operating activities EEEB) A 1,483 5,866
Within financing activities BEEBA - 919
1,483 6,785
38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38. EEER

R|BERAR - UTEESERTETRITRS
BEBESAEEERRITRERAEE YR
ZETOXRBERERRIBRHE 2EH

The following assets are pledged to certain banks and financial institutions
for banking facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loan facilities
granted to certain property buyers of the Group’s properties at the end of
the reporting period:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR%TR

Property under development BREPYE 14,325,413 16,622,227
Completed properties held for sale BELEZEZIME 813,795 -
Investment properties TEYE 444,765 463,392
Pledged deposits BERBIES 215,876 358,271
15,799,849 17,443,890

In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to
obtain certain banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December

2021 and 2020.

BEAN - 20214 20205612 A31 8 » 2K
ETHBRARZKG  MEALEBERET

RITREE 2B -



39.

40.

Annual Report 2021 B —FF R

COMMITMENTS 39. &g
(@  The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the (@) RBEHEAEER - RNERZ EARNFIE
reporting period: T
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Contracted for, but not provided, in respect of 5t RN 7| & AT 5] £01E R B
Acquisitions of land use rights W B b {55 FA 210,540 549,497
Property development expenditures MEERALX 10,656,821 12,344,501
10,867,361 12,893,998
(0)  The Group has no lease contracts that have not yet commenced as (b)  MR2021F12A318 » AEEWETA K

at 31 December 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB18,002,298,000 (2020:
RMB13,559,922,000) in respect of mortgage loan facilities provided by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers,
the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest thereon and any penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to
take over the legal title to and possession of the related properties. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loan by the buyer of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil) as the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding
principal together with the accrued interest and penalties.

40.

PAMEEAK -
HREE

R2021F12 8318  AEEREBEAEEY
EZMEBRIUZEBERMBSE TR
REZEBERBEZEREAXRABELY
A R #18,002,298,000 7t ( 2020 4F : A R ¥
13,559,922,0007T) ° RIBFERIEE - HZED
¥ERBRIZBHIE  AEEEAEEELRE
BRRMIBITHREBERIBASERRFE
RAEMER - AREBHEEEHEBYENE
EERNERE ZSERBRUTREER
ERRER  (VWEEREERIBER &)
RIS EBR LY EMBEE L TRIZIBHEUS
B ARBIEERE  BRENRBRTAK
B3 £ RELN - BRAYMEREIRFE R B
HAREETNSURBRFAERE S + BIALETE
EREHNEE2021F12 A31 B IEFE (2020
F )R E SRR R -
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41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

BEALRS

@ KBREVBRREMBIFLZRS
Sh - REBERIRE AN EFEATET

41.

parties during the reporting period: TS :
Related companies Transactions
(Note (i) (Note (i) 2021 2020
BEQR(HZ() R 5 (Miat(i) 20214 2020F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®T
Relevant members of KEBIRIRAR AR Project management HEER
Ever Diamond Global ([ )2 EM  services fee income REBWA
Company Limited KEARERE
(“Ever Diamond”) together  KiB 2 7 (5:78
with its subsidiaries [kiEEE])
(collectively, the “Ever
Diamond Group”) 61,571 123,516
Relevant members of AEEREMRSE  Construction costs BERA(RERED
Henan Zensun Corporate BAREML AR (capitalised in properties MEERL)
Development Company ([E®%RE])z  under development)
Limited (“Zensun BB D RE
Development”) together EEKB AR
with its subsidiaries (Gl EEEE
(collectively, the “Zensun £81)
Development Group”) 2,434,403 1,532,739
Relevant members of MY AR5 5B Property engineering costs B H TERA
Xingye Wulian Service BRAFI([EZE  (capitalised in properties (RERERYE
Company Limited Wt 1) 2 BBEC  under development) BRME) AR
("Xingye Wulian”) BAFAERAE  and property EEREE
together with its subsidiaries  F{E A B (4%  management and REE
(collectively, the “Xingye [EYEEEE|) value-added
Wulian Group”) services fee 45,982 27,035
Notes: HiaE -
(i) Ever Diamond Group are entities controlled by the Ms. Huang. (i) KiEEE AHHuangZ TiEH 2 B8 - [FiE3

Zensun Development Group and Xingye Wulian Group are entities
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang.

(i) These transactions were based on terms mutually agreed by
both parties. These transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s senior notes and bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB6,922,774,000
(81 December 2020: approximately RMB10,146,306,000) were
guaranteed by related companies which are controlled by Ms.
Huang and her daughter, Ms. Zhang. No asset of the Group was
pledged to these related companies in respect of these guarantees.

The Group is licenced by Zensun Real Estate to use the trademark
of “Zensun” and“1E & "on a royalty-free basis until July 2025.

REERFEEYBEE BBEHuangX T2 Z 57
KL TR 2 &8 -

(ii) FER G TIENE T KR E 2 RHREE - I
BRETRAFIAATIA T ER 2 IHFBEBER
2 o

R2021F 128318 » XEBZEBEZEUARL
ANR#6,922,774,00070(2020F12 8318 : 4J
AR#10,146,306,0007T) Z BT REMEEER
MHuangZ + M EZ FRZ 14| 2 RIE A &
BR - BERZSERAZSHEEAREELR

AREBEFREXTTREAENEEELEFSH
[Zensun ] X[ IEFE |FIEE20254F7 R °
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42.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 41. B@EA XX 5 (&)
(o) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) ERA B AT 2 REELH
Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as at the end RBERR  AEBHEHBBALZEH
of the reporting period are included in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the BN B R M aE25 ~ 27 )28 -
financial statements.
(©) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: () AEBEFZEEABSFHH
2021 2020
20215 20205
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TT
Short term employee benefits EHESEN 1,946 1,007
Post-employment benefits B2 1A 85 45
Total compensation paid to MEEEBABZMNH
key management personnel FrNsezs 2,031 1,052
Further details of directors” and the chief executive’s emoluments BENTEARAEMNES 2 — S5
are included in note 9 to the financial statements. HNRE B RFKMIzEQ ©
Save as disclosed above, no transaction has been entered into with % E PRI ESN - AE R EEAN
the directors of the Company (being the key management personnel) FEE(NFXrESBAE ) ETEAMR
during the year other than the emoluments paid to them (being key 5 MRRESINIEATEETIEAER
management personnel compensation) (2020: Nil). B 2 B < BRIN(20204F : ) ©
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 42, BERRREETE

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme” was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons
of the Share Option Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (i) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group;
and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time during the life of the Share Option Scheme to
offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by
the Board from time to time.

R20134F8 A28H © AA R RANFT B ELT 2
(TEEpsist 2l )) - BT E s ERBE Y AL
EEBKREMBEBZABHBAL - BIERK
FESHSIER] - RAIBREESRZERE—ER
B+F - BREFEZAERATBRE(NSE
EERKERARZESRETES(BEBIE
HITEE)  ()\AEBEAKE AT 2 EEHE
BERE : (i) ANKBEEMKE QR ZERmKRS
HEE  (WAEBTAKERRZEFE « %l
Bl ¥R EBN  BHREEA &
B8 REHIRRX : vVAREEER[KE AR
IR AR B S E A Al S S SRR - R
M FERBZALTRER  RVi)AEEER
KERARIZEETHME(BELMAF) - BRIEE
ARHERT 8] 2 663k - REBRIRHEST 8178 SRR
B EEeAMRAEEERNBREZAMNE
BERALIREELERE  MEBERELERE
HEZSET -
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31 December 2021

42.

202112 A31H
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is such number of shares which,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the annual general meeting approving the Share Option Scheme
on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The
period within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date
of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but
may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date the annual meeting approving
the Share Option Scheme on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options are accepted.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no options have
been granted under the above-mentioned scheme.

42, BERESTEI(E)

BIREARERT 8 - ATReiR i 2 B RRE S R 2 IR
MEE LR - BEREMEREAES R 2
BN ZRZTEBBARRQRKR201348 728
B EBRETZNRRATFKE BB R
TR Z10% o REMR+ = {8 A HAR R E BB AR
R EREFESAEBALETZRNE
BER  UAARBIEREBERETIRD1%E
R o (Eflif — D% LB @R R 2 BREAR
AR ASHER - HRI BT -

MARBESE  TBTRABREBRRENXE
EREZEMBEA LR HBRE  HAERS
BUERITEE(RERERRA ZERIEIE
MITEERIN 2 BRHUE o 1A EERT+=
& B B - AR £ B R IB L IENITE
EYRETEZERBEA TR B ERBRAAE
RE PRI EREE ZETRMD0.1% R EEBA
5,000,000 7T (IRIBEA A BIRHAK L BEZ
EBRETE) 2 BIRE - BIZERFRENIRE RS #
R HEET o

BRREZARSENSEI.008T - BRiEZ
VARTERRAZBRG AR N BERERS2ER
TBEEE - A RHIR BB AR L B HER T
BB TF -

BREZTEERESTSET - ETEERNK
TEEZES4S | (AR ARORIE2FEH A H
(KWEARSAH)RBRAEARERMHRET
B () ANRARMREERZR D B HRRE
RS ARBRAEARERABEHKTE
R (iii) A2 BB EIME

BIRIE R B AT AR T 2 BRER B
DHABIE RS AR B R B AR © TR
TBBANA A R20134F8 A28 H (L BT E
MRRAFAE A H)EBTRH10% o EHRE
M—FRNRTRAERTFEMALZEBRES
BAZEBETRETETROEE ERLEARQF
AR F LR ERT - DAt FTHEB A A R AR 1] B
BB EITIN1% - BRI S ERREEER
B #R 7B 18 T 4F HA P PO ] B 5 BB 57 B 3 AT
RERATHE -

RELE2021F K2020F12 831 B ILFE » #
EREIRERIR st B R -



43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Annual Report 2021

ENNSIEUE O T

TR FFER

ARABRIME PR BN BEZ BT -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E S 60 65
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RARZEZE 324,181 324,181
Total non-current assets IERBEERTE 324,241 324,246
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets FEULEE =k - E fth FE YR IE R B &= 4,697 4,358
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZ SREE 423,889 321,505
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EPNGIE S 8,426,995 8,923,211
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEMEIER 14,555 47,245
Total current assets MENEERTE 8,870,136 9,296,319
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EtERERETER 119,205 122,421
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBEE 1,265,028 2,194,932
Amounts due to subsidiaries R MIB A RIFRIE 197,169 203,970
Total current liabilities mENE BB 1,581,402 2,621,323
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZRE 7,288,734 6,774,996
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERABERE 7,612,975 7,099,242
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 2,274,113 1,291,285
Total non-current liabilities SEmB B BB 2,274,113 1,291,285
Net assets BEFE 5,338,862 5,807,957
EQUITY ER
Share capital A% 7R 5,326,923 5,326,923
Reserves (Note) () 11,939 481,034
Total equity T 4ATE 5,338,862 5,807,957
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31 December 2021 202112 831H
43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. AR BB THRT (F)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZ EE BT -
Capital
reduction Exchange Other Retained
reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
BEAHIRE
RAERR INEEE Hibf#E RE R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T AR®T T AR¥T T AR®T T
At 1 January 2020 202041 A1H 119,330 2,981 82,674 7,088 212,073
Total comprehensive FRN2AE(ER),/
(loss)/income for the year Uzs44%8 - (149,770) - 611,205 461,435
2019 final dividend paid B {42019 KR EA I 5 - - - (192,474) (192,474)

At 31 December 2020 M2020F12A31H &

and 1 January 2021 202141818 119,330 (146,789) 82,674 425,819 481,034
Total comprehensive loss £ A2 E5 18 4258

for the year - (170,437) - (143,674) (814,111)
2020 final dividend paid 2120204 K IR & = = = (154,984) (154,984)

At 31 December 2021 M2021612H31H 119,330 (317,226) 82,674 127,161 11,939




44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

44. HERARBE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2021

TR FFER

R2021F12A318  ARAAEEHBRARIZE

BT

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BERTERE/ AATREGRERZ
=1 SE it B K% 3 b BE EMRAEE B FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE i
75 Wall Street, LLC USA Note (i) = 100  Property investment
XEH Htat() Y&
American Housing REIT, Inc. USA Common stock - 99.8 Property investment
%H USD6,256 YERE
E A
6,256 7T
AHR First Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8 Loan financing and
EJE1 Hizt() property investment
BEREE RERE
AHR Second Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.8 Loan financing
=S5 Htat() B E
American Senior Housing REIT, USA Note (i) - 99.8  Property investment and
LLC xH Hta() investment holding
MEARE IR E X
ASHR McKinney, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8 Property investment
FEE FtaE() MERE
ASHR First, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8  Property investment
EH M) MERE
China Credit Singapore Pte. Ltd.  Singapore Ordinary shares 100 — Investment holding
EDIlIE S SGD13,417,282 B
LmA%13,417,282
IR IT
Expats Residences Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
EAIIIES SGD25,002 MERE
T i@A%25,002
IR TT
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 —  Property investment and
Limited a5 HK$2 securities trading
EERMERRAR TmAR2E T MEREREHEE
Keng Fong Foreign Investment USA Common stock - 100  Property investment
Co., Ltd. E3E USD250,000 YERE
E AR

250,000% 7T
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44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44.
(CONTINUED)

180  Zensun Enterprises Limited

B A R (4]

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2021 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTER/ AATREGERZ
=1 FEf I B K% & 3 b Bh AR A EE B FEEH
Direct Indirect
HiZ i3
Singapore Service Residence Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
Pte. Ltd. ETiMIIE SGD1,250,000 MERE
AL
1,250,000 13 T
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100  Securities trading
FREEFRAR BB HK$1,260,000 BHEE
AR
1,260,000/ 7T
ZH USA, LLC USA Note (i) 100 — Investment holding
=S liogzal) REZR
Xingcheng Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100  Investment holding
BB R A A B HK$1 "EERK
LRI
AEEBCEREREREGIRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Investment holding
Note (i) i RMB1,000,000 REER
B2 (i) EERIIIE= N
AR #1,000,0007T
HTERIE p EIR B AR A A PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB400,000,000 YIEER
Bt &t (i) FEE AR
AR #400,000,0007T
RIGEREXER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) Fh RMB50,000,000 MEER
B i) ERIIE=ZN
AR #50,000,0007T
AEIERREEEARAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB50,000,000 MEER
B a3Hi) EERIIE- PN
AR #50,000,0007T
A EEEHEXEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB300,000,000 MEER
HiaE (i) EERIIE= N

AR #300,000,0007T



44.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2021

TR FFER

4. MBLRAHME(E)

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Aotk FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
AEEEFREXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) L2 RMB50,000,000 WERR
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #50,000,0007T
TAERHEEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB50,000,000 YEIRE
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #50,000,0007T
B X BR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (ii) 2l RMB50,000,000 project management
Bz (i) EMEAR services
AR #50,000,0007T VIR - BB EERG
AR ERENEFXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) wh RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AR EEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EEAR
AR#100,000,0007T
AEEEFmEXRER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) T &R
AR #50,000,0007T
T EEE R EXGR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR#100,000,0007T
IR EEEXFRAR PRC Registered capital — 100  Property development,
Note (ii) = RMB300,000,000 project management
Bt a2 (i) EfER services
A R #300,000,0007C VIR - BB BERG
IR EGEEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (i) 2l RMB200,000,000 project management
Bt &t (i) EERHIE= N services

A #200,000,0007T

MEER - HEEERE
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44,

(CONTINUED)

2021412 H31H
PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

44.

B A R (4]

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Aotk FEEWR
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
T EESEBEXE AR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i G2 RMB100,000,000 e
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR#100,000,0007T
I PRt E A R AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 YEIR
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #100,000,0007C
TR EXBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB50,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
AR EEREEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 WEHR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AREIERD R EXEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100 Property development,
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 project management
&) A A services
AR #100,000,0007C YIEERE - THE EERY
FEIERHEBEERR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) &R
AR #100,000,0007T
AEEESEEXER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR#100,000,0007T
TR EERKEEGR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 YEIR
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #100,000,0007C
AEEETHEEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N

A #100,000,0007T



44.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/
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B FEFH

4. MBLRAHME(E)

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
A ERTIEEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR#100,000,0007T
TAEEEFINEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #100,000,0007C
TARAREEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) o RMB20,000,000 E 33
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
R IERET A E X ER AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
AR EEBREEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EEAR
AR#100,000,0007T
FATMEE FRBEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (ii) o RMB100,000,000 project management
a2 i) EEAR services
AR#100,000,0007C YFERE - THEEERE
HHEEEEREEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (i) = RMB100,000,000 project management
BTt (i) A services
AR#100,000,0007T YR - BB BERS
TREEEBEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 60  Property development
Note (i) il RMB200,000,000 YR
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR#200,000,0007T
T EIEEENEEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N

A #100,000,0007T
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44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

2021412 H31H

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

44.

B A R (4]

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE B FEEWR
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
SRR TIEAR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #100,000,0007C
T EE R REEEBR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #100,000,0007T
MR EEEEGRAR PRC Registered capital - 60  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB300,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EER RN
AR 300,000,000
M Rine B XD ERA A PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) S RMB100,000,000 YRR
B i) ERIIE=ZN
AR #100,000,0007T
TFEMNBEEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 MR
B a3Hi) EERIIE- PN
AR #20,000,0007T
REREBEZFERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) &R
AR #100,000,0007C
KIGEEBEXEGRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EfER
AR #50,000,0007T
HEEEeHEEXEAR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 YRR
B a2 (i) EfER
AR #100,000,0007T
AEEEFTHEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N

A #100,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2021

R2021F 128318 » ZRAREEHEB AT Z?

£ (&)

Percentage of

4. MBLRAHME(E)

TR FFER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTER/ AATREGERZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE B FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
AEEEEMEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #100,000,0007C
TEEEHEEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt (i) EERIIE= N
AR #100,000,0007C
TEEREXFRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) i RMB100,000,000 hotel operations
Bt &2 (i) EER RN MEER  BEEE
AR #100,000,0007T
ARERNEXER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) w RMB50,000,000 e S35
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #50,000,0007T
EIHEEXBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EEAR
AR #100,000,0007C
TAEEREEFER AR PRC Registered capital - 70  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) &R
AR #100,000,0007C
AEEREXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EfER
AR #50,000,0007T
AEEMNEEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt (i) EERIIE= N

AE#50,000,0007T

185



186  Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBREXEARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 R R B =

31 December 2021
44,

(CONTINUED)

2021412 H31H
PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

44.

B A R (4]

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
AL BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Aotk FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE A
IR EmBEFXEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB200,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #200,000,0007T
REBHEXERRAT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
M B R ERZE AR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB50,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #50,000,0007T
MR IEEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 51  Property development
Note (i) wh RMB10,000,000 MR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #10,000,0007T
HEMEREEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 90 Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 EERE
Bt &£ (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
EEREEEFARAA PRC Registered capital - 90  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) T &R
AR #20,000,0007T
MINEREFAFRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Investment holding
Note (i) L2 RMB100,000,000 AR
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR#100,000,0007T
EEEEEREEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 99.9 Property development
Note (i) il RMB30,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER

AE#30,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44. MIBRARHE(R)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2021 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of
Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Aotk FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiZ A
AEEEeREXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #50,000,0007T
G IEEREXAR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
A IERZE AP E X AR A PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) L2 RMB30,000,000 MEBRE
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #30,000,0007T
EEARESEXERAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) w RMB50,000,000 e S35
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #50,000,0007T
BMmEAEZGRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 MR
Bt &£ (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
BRI EXEERAT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T &R
AR #20,000,0007T
BILEFHEXEGRAR] PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
KL FEEGR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB30,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER

AE#30,000,0007T
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31 December 2021

44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

2021412 H31H

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2021 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

44.

B A R (4]

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

BT (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Eald FEEWR
Direct Indirect
B A
EHEMEREFXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
FINEEREXEBRAR] PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
ARBZEFEEXARAR PRC Registered capital - 56  Property development
Note (i) H RMB10,000,000 YIEER
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR#10,000,0007T
AYEREREREGR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
FEREEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 YEERE
Bt &£ (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
TAEEEEXEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) T &R
AR #50,000,0007T
TEEEEHEFXEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) EfER
AR #50,000,0007T
HEEZEEGRAT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt a2 (i) EfER

AE#20,000,0007T
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44. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 44. MIBRARHE(R)

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2021 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of
Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

R2021F 128318  ARAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTEE S AATEGEZZ
=18 S 3t B B2 BE 3t B AR A EE Aotk FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE A
BAEEREXERAR PRC Registered capital = 41 Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bzt (i) T ER
AR #20,000,0007T
BB EEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB20,000,000 YRR
Bt a2 (i) EfER
AR #20,000,0007T
[R5 HEEE EFR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) w RMB20,000,000 MEBRRE
Bt a2 (i) EERHIE= N
AR #20,000,0007T
ZILBREFHEXERAT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) wh RMB20,000,000 MR
Bt &t (i) FEA & AR
AR #20,000,0007T
AEEERREERRAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 YEERE
Bt &£ (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
EHBREEEFER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB30,000,000 MEER
Bt &£ (i) T &R

AR #30,000,0007C
Notes:

(i) No capital contribution is required from the member unless otherwise
required by law.

(i) Entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies with no
English names registered or available upon establishment.

Hiat -

(i) BIEERERTTHRE - BELEREERNERL
ARBKERA]

(ii) REBEKI 2 BEEABRAR - BREKE -
BB R SR TS o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B TSR aR M EE

31 December 2021 2021F12H31H

45.

46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 March 2022, the Group acquired land use rights of a land parcel
located in Dengfeng City, Henan Province, the PRC through listing for sale
process in a public auction held by Dengfeng City Natural Resources and
Planning Bureau* (&%t B A& RAE 2 /) for transfer of state-owned
land use rights with site area of approximately 42,081.84 square metres
at a consideration of RMB167,899,200. The land parcel was designated
for residential usage with term of use of 70 years and underground floor
for transportation service station usage with term of use of 50 years. The
handover of the land parcel is expected to be completed respectively in the
second quarter of 2022.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 25 March 2022.

45.

46.

BEMREE

202263220 - AEBEREHTHARER
MF BB EERA L FE BB 2 AR
HEREEHERF T IEGANF BN EE &
TG M E A& 4942,081.84F 77 2K 2 38 2 + h {#
Bk R{EBAARK167,899,2007T  ixithikig
EAEFERARFERAFRATOFE R TEMAR
BRI S AR ERFRAS0F o %t 785
HER2022F 55 — FE e R -

#EM R

R RO R2022F3 25 HEE S H AR
RRETEE o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M=

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31HILLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T AR® T AR® T AR®TT
(Restated)
(E31)
Results E
Revenue W zs 13,421,496 8,069,061 8,887,186 601,470 1,100,419
Profit for the year F S A 385,042 778,373 1,151,458 28,492 131,602
Attributable to: FE(L :
Owners of the Company ZN/NGIEZ 2 =N 399,470 782,988 1,151,571 29,971 131,709
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (14,428) (4,615) (113) (1,479) (107)
Profit for the year FERF 385,042 778,373 1,151,458 28,492 131,602
As at 31 December
M12H831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETR
(Restated)
(E31)
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Total assets WEE 68,239,873 67,152,356 51,942,189 39,569,259 18,542,750
Total liabilities WEE (60,041,216) (59,263,541) (48,205,148) (38,447,747) (17,398,865)
Net assets FEE 8,198,657 7,888,815 3,737,041 1,121,512 1,143,885
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A (185) (14,885) 3,593 7,053 9,581
Equity attributable to ERAEEEA

owners of the Company PE{h fEE 8,198,472 7,873,930 3,740,634 1,128,565 1,153,466
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EBREXARAA

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPE
FEREVEBE

As at 31 December 2021 1202112 H31H

Zensun Enterprises Limited

RTIES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYF
Gross area

Location (approximately) Effective % held Type Lease term

1t B AR EREEE  E5 iR
(%) (%)

No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 1/F. and 28,732 sq.ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
27 Home Office Units on various floors, 28,732F R XEPAE REAFA
Southbank, Singapore 198785

5 Residential Units, Dakota Residences, 9,128 sq.ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
34-42 Dakota Crescent, Singapore 399939 9,128F H IR BT REATHA

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on 2nd Carparking Floor, 3,480 sq.ft. 100% Office premises and Long-term lease
Wyndham Place, No.44 Wyndham Street, 3,480F R Car Parking space REAFL
Central, Hong Kong WAEYERBEAL

BERPIREFAMREREER D
3012 K215 5 C85R B fis

Glen Carr House, 1433 North Hamilton Drive, 29,000 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
Derby, Kansas, 67037, U.S. 29,000F /7R communities KA SN

Glen Carr House 774 35 B 5 & TN & kL REFERER
North Hamilton Drive 14335

Oxford Grand McKinney, 2851 Orchid Drive, 69,700 sq.ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
McKinney, Texas, 75070, U.S. 69,700 5 R communities KAERE

Oxford Grand McKinney i 73 Bl{Z & Hi M XX fE T REEREES
Orchid Drive 28515

Land parcels located at 671-180-012, 67.5 acres/ 100% Vacant land Freehold
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018 273,200 sg.m./ ZEETH KA SERE
Desert Hot Springs, County of Riverside, 2,940,300 sq.ft.

State of California, 92503, U.S. 67.5m,

RIR S B 01 7 & & Desert Hot Springs 2 273,200 77K/
H1$8671-180-012 + 013 ~ 014 ~ 015 2,940,300F 7R

016017 ~ 018




WEBSITE #91t
www.zensunenterprises.com

STOCK CODE B3 %5%
Stock Exchange H# 3z fr : 185
Bloomberg 18 & & : 185 HK
Reuters E&iE 4t : 0185.HK

CHINA

Zensun International Building, intersection of

Pu Tian Xi Road and Qi Li He Nan Road,

Jinshui District, Zhengzhou, Henan Province, PRC

A BRI R R BN T < [ ) P 7 R B BT o R 52 T g L 7 B K

HONG KONG #&

24th Floor, Wyndham Place,

40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong
EEHRIRER AT 40-44 5%, EREEFR L 24 18

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA :H
2 Bethesda Metro Center, Suite 440 Bethesda,
MD 20814, United States of America
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